
 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CABINET 
 

Tuesday, 12th September, 2017, 6.30 pm - Civic Centre, High Road, 
Wood Green, N22 8LE 
 
Members: Councillors Claire Kober (Chair), Peray Ahmet, Jason Arthur, 
Eugene Ayisi, Ali Demirci, Joseph Ejiofor,  Joe Goldberg, Alan Strickland, 
Bernice Vanier, and Elin Weston 
 
 
Quorum: 4 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on.   

 
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES   
 
To receive any apologies for absence.  
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business. 
(Late items of Urgent Business will be considered under the agenda item 
where they appear. New items of Urgent Business will be dealt with under 
Item 15 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at Item 19 
below). 
 



 

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A Member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 
 

5. NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN PRIVATE, ANY 
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED AND THE RESPONSE TO ANY SUCH 
REPRESENTATIONS   
 
On occasions part of the Cabinet meeting will be held in private and will not 
be open to the public if an item is being considered that is likely to lead to the 
disclosure of exempt or confidential information. In accordance with the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012 (the “Regulations”), members of the public can 
make representations about why that part of the meeting should be open to 
the public.  
 
This agenda contains exempt items as set out at Item [16]: Exclusion of the 
Press and Public.  No representations with regard to these have been 
received.  
 
This is the formal 5 clear day notice under the Regulations to confirm that this 
Cabinet meeting will be partly held in private for the reasons set out in this 
Agenda. 
 
 

6. MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 42) 
 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the meetings held on 3rd of July 2017 and 
20th July 2017 as a correct record.  
 
 
 
 



 

 

7. MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE   
 
There are no matters referred from Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

8. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS   
 
To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders. 
 

9. BUDGET MONITORING (PAGES 43 - 66) 
 
[Report of the Interim Chief Finance Officer. To be introduced by the Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Health.] Cabinet to consider Quarter 1 budget 
monitoring report which will provide forecast spend against budget and 
consideration of any proposed budget virements. 
 

10. HIGH ROAD WEST REGENERATION SCHEME- SELECTION OF A 
DEVELOPMENT PARTNER AND NEXT STEPS (PAGES 67 - 284) 
 
[Report of the Strategic Director for Planning, Regeneration and 
Development. To be introduced by the Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Regeneration and Planning.] This report will seek Cabinet approval for the 
selection of the preferred bidder for the High Road West Regeneration 
Scheme as part of the competitive dialogue procedure under the Public 
Contracts Regulations and give delegated authority to the Council's 
Section151 Officer after consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing 
Regeneration and Planning to agree the final version of the development 
agreement and other ancillary documents. This report will also seek a 
decision on the ownership of the replacement housing for the Love Lane 
residents and agree the next steps for progressing the High Road West 
Regeneration Scheme. 
 

11. 500 WHITE HART LANE - ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES (PAGES 285 - 
356) 
 
[Report of the Strategic Director for Planning, Regeneration and 
Development. To be introduced by the Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration.] In line with the provisions of the S106 agreement for the 
planning permission for 500 White Hart Lane, this report proposes the Council 
acquires affordable residential properties as part of the development; budget 
allocation from HRA Stock Acquisitions Reserve and Right to Buy Receipts. 
 

12. AMENDMENTS TO THE TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR THE SHARED ICT 
AND DIGITAL JOINT COMMITTEE (PAGES 357 - 368) 
 
[Report of the Chief Digital and Information Officer. To be introduced by the 
Cabinet Member for Corporate Resources.] To consider and agree the 
recommendation of the Shared ICT and Digital Joint Committee that 
amendments should be made to the terms of reference for that Committee. 
 



 

 

13. MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES (PAGES 369 - 404) 
 
To note the minutes of the following:  
 
Cabinet Member Signing 21 June 2017 
Cabinet Member Signing 26 June 2017 
Cabinet Member Signing 27 June 2017 
Cabinet Member Signing 30 June 2017 
Cabinet Member Signing 4 July 2017 
Cabinet Member Signing 5th July 2017 
Cabinet Member Signing 6 July 2017 
Cabinet Member Signing 11 July 2017 
Cabinet Member Signing 25 July 2017  
Cabinet Member Signing 31 July 2017 
 
Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee 4th July 2017 
 

14. SIGNIFICANT AND DELEGATED ACTIONS (PAGES 405 - 416) 
 
To note significant and delegated actions taken by Directors in July and 
August 2017. 
 

15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
To consider any items admitted at Item 3 above. 
 

16. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
Note from the Democratic Services &Scrutiny Manager 
 
Item 17 and 18 allow for the consideration of exempt information in relation to 
items 10 & 3 respectively.  
 
TO RESOLVE 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as 
the items below contain exempt information, as defined under paragraph, 3 
and 5, Part 1, schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

17. HIGH ROAD WEST REGENERATION SCHEME- SELECTION OF A 
DEVELOPMENT PARTNER AND NEXT STEPS (PAGES 417 - 724) 
 
As per item 10 
 

18. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS   
 
To consider any items admitted at Item 3 above. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
Ayshe Simsek 
Committees Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2929 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Published Monday 4 September 2017 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON MONDAY, 3RD 
JULY, 2017, 6.30pm 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillors: Claire Kober (Chair), Jason Arthur, Eugene Ayisi, Ali Demirci, 
Joe Goldberg, Alan Strickland and Elin Weston 
 
Also present - Councillors: Ibrahim, Brabazon, Engert, Newton, Carter, 
Morris, Connor, Opoku, Adje, G Bull, Bevan, M Blake, Stennett, Tucker, 
Rice, McNamara, Berryman, Diakides. 
 
 

 
 
26. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Leader referred to agenda item 1, as shown on the  agenda in respect of filming 
at this meeting and Members noted this information. 
 

27. APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were  received from Councillors: Vanier, Ahmet and Ejiofor. 
 

28. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no items of urgent business put forward. 
 

29. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest put forward. 
 

30. NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN PRIVATE, ANY 
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED AND THE RESPONSE TO ANY SUCH 
REPRESENTATIONS  
 
There were no representations received. 
 

31. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on the 20th of June 2017 were agreed as a 
correct record of the meeting. 
 

32. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



 

 

Deputation – Stop HDV Campaign and Haringey Defend Council Housing – Sue 
Hughes and Paul Burnham. 
 
Sue Hughes presented the deputation and made reference to the 1500 page 
documents provided to the public, one week before the meeting, which she 
considered did not provide adequate time for people to read the information provided.  
Ms Hughes contended that the information provided, made clear that Lendlease had 
their own housing policy, which sought to move away from affordable tenures, 
resulting in social cleansing for those who could not afford to pay.  Tenants had been 
promised the right to return, however the deputation felt the documents implied that 
tenants would be discouraged from doing so. 
 
Ms Hughes referred to the large viability gaps, and requested that the Council should 
pause and reconsider partnering with a company. Ms Hughes also asked whether the 
Council had spoken with any companies in Australia to find out if Lendlease had 
carried out works using combustible cladding materials, which were not in accordance 
with Australian laws. 
 
In response to questions from the Cabinet, the deputation party outlined the following: 

- The proposal was highly political, and they questioned the intentions of 

Lendlease for supporting social housing. 

-  The current political climate should be seen as a time of hope, and the Council 

should rethink the proposals, and not go ahead with this partnership. 

- One of the major issues with the proposal was that no arrangements would be 

made for those tenants on waiting lists.  The Council stated that they would be 

in a 50/50 partnership, however in Ms Hughes‟ opinion, Lendlease would take 

over and control development, resulting in no Council homes. 

- The Council had made offers and concessions that people could return to their 

homes, however, the deputation contended that Lendlease would not facilitate 

a return to homes and that the Council could only do this if they pay a subsidy.  

The Council should reconsider a partnership with a company who the 

deputation felt would not carry out Council policies. 

 
Councillor Strickland responded to points raised during the deputation and 
subsequent questions from the Cabinet.  In relation to the documents provided, he 
informed the meeting that whilst other Councils had set up joint ventures or similar 
agreements, they had not released the same amount of information. The Cabinet 
Member had given a clear public pledge to release as much information as possible. 
and he was keeping to this commitment to be transparent.  
 
Councillor Strickland explained that the development vehicle partnership would be 
bound by Council policies, such as the Housing Strategy agreed by the Council, and 
the Estate Renewal Rehousing and Payment strategy agreed by Cabinet. He stressed 
that that no major decision would be made by the company without the consent of the 
Board, which the Council had equal membership of. The Council was currently 
consulting on a revised version of the Estate Renewal, Re - housing and Payments 
Policy, and this made clear that there would be a guaranteed right to return. Only 
tenants could waive that right. Therefore, whether the tenant wants to stay on, or near 
the estate, or move to a different area, then this choice will be facilitated by the 

Page 2



 

 

Council as the housing authority. It was the responsibility of the Council to lead on re- 
housing, and not Lendlease. 
 
With regard to the references to „poor doors‟ on estates, the response to the Scrutiny 
Review document did not say that there will be different entrances everywhere. 
Reasons were given and this was due to service charges and estate management 
conditions as sometimes blocks were built for different tenures i.e.  to accommodate 
private rented units and affordable housing units. The Council was not in favour of 
separated entrances but the report had to be honest and advise that the Council and 
Housing Associations would take into consideration that in some blocks a shared 
entrance will lead to higher service charges. 
 
With regard to decision making on Viability Assessments which will set out the number 
and the types of housing to be included in the development, nothing can be decided 
on the viability assessment without Council Board members agreeing this.  
 
Councillor Strickland explained that any pause in the HDV process would lead to a 
delay in providing new homes, new jobs and new community facilities. The delivery 
model allowed for significant flexibility, and the substance of what was to be delivered 
with residents would be subject to further separate consultation. If there was a change 
in government, in the future, and increased funding for social housing then this 
agreement does give more flexibility to deliver these home. 
 
The Director for Housing and Growth responded to the question on Lendlease‟s 
record in Australia. Officers had discussed this at length with Lendlease and they were 
not aware or had this issue raised with them of any property in Australia that was 
unsafe to occupy  
 
Deputation 2 – Reverend Nicholson 
 
Mr Nicholson spoke of the impact of inequality and poverty which ultimately led to 
mental health and wellbeing issues and other associated issues such as involvement 
in crime, low attainment at school and ongoing health issues. He outlined the stress of 
poverty and he felt that Council tenants, in the borough, were being disrespected with 
these proposals and the Council was reinforcing inequality. Mr Nicholson was 
therefore demanding more Council homes were built instead of handing over land to 
Lendlease to develop homes for richer residents. 
 
He felt that the Council were accepting decline and perpetuating the decline by taking 
this decision forward which would increase land prices and provide profit for 
speculators. He felt that Lendlease have the means possible to cheat the Council and 
other public services and they would not keep to their obligations in this agreement. 
 
In response to Cabinet questions, Mr Nicholson replied: 
 

 Working as a Labour Party on a land policy for the UK and having a land value 

tax which is a progressive tax instead of taking this decision forward.  

 Transferring land to the vehicle would be a severe mistake. 

Page 3



 

 

 That the proposals would break up communities and existing networks, even 

with right of return, as people would need to move before returning and re-

establishing these networks.  

 Although there was affordable housing promised, this would be provided 

according to income levels and people with low incomes would still be unable 

to afford the homes, creating a further financial crisis for them. 

  Viability assessments/control of land would likely be guided by profit and were 

not to be trusted. 

 

The Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning responded and agreed 
with the long running issue of the reselling of land between developers which was 
leading to higher land prices. This was also one of the reasons why the Council was 
entering this partnership so they did not sell the land wholesale. The Council would 
use the land in partnership, with control of the land, through having members on the 
company board and stop the continual resale of land. He stressed that the partnership 
agreement with Lendlease, rejects how the housing market works and stops the 
speculative resale of land. The partnership would influence the housing market in a 
positive way and stop the speculation. 
 
The Cabinet Member expressed that the HDV would help tackle the wider issue of 
inequality and it was not true to say that the homes were being demolished to make 
way for richer tenants. The Council have a policy on re-housing which other boroughs 
do not have and were committed to right of return.  
 
The social side of inequality was important to address and the business plans take 
this issue forward. They advise, that this is not just about building new homes but 
including new facilities in local areas, and increasing local jobs. The Council were 
clear that tenants and leaseholder had a right of return, beyond what other Councils 
offer. The HDV provides for more community facilities, health centres, and better 
school buildings. Lendlease would also make a significant investment to support the 
„people‟ side of the regeneration as well.  
 
Communities were previously scattered around London in the 70‟s and 80‟s and this 
was not what the Council would be doing. The Council were keen to promote right of 
return because of its continued belief in strong communities. 
 
Deputation 3 - Dhiren Halder – Haringey Community Hub – Council of Asian 
People 
 
Mr Halder began his deputation by sharing information about the background of the 
Haringey Community Hub which was located on 8 Caxton road. The centre had been 
in operation for over 36 years and provided activities and support services that 
improve the health and wellbeing of local people. The Hub was not aware until 
recently, that their building was part of the Wood Green sites included in the HDV for 
disposal.  There had been a meeting between the regeneration team and the centre 
manager last week to discuss the future of the centre and Mr Halder wanted some 
assurance about the future of the Hub following decisions on the HDV tonight.  
 
Councillor Goldberg responded to the deputation and described his experience of 
understanding the importance of maintaining community bases in a regeneration .He 

Page 4



 

 

referred to Haringey‟s history of recognising ethnic groups and understanding the 
profound importance of having a strong community base for black and ethnic minority 
groups to gather in the borough. This had driven the cohesion of the borough and 
makes Haringey unique to other London boroughs.  
 
Councillor Goldberg addressed the concerns raised by the Hub and mosque on 
Caxton Road which related to Wood Green area plan covered by the HDV and 
outlined the following: 
 

 The WG Library redevelopment site as currently proposed in the Wood Green 
Business Plan includes Council owned land at 6- 10 Caxton Road (The 
Community Hub, TICC and Efdal Community Centre). The reason for this was 
that the boundaries for all sites in the HDV were amended to reflect the Local 
Plan DPD site allocations to ensure that development which comes forward is 
comprehensive and coordinated within the wider area in line with current 
planning policy. The site allocation boundaries were different in the Draft Wood 
Green AAP to respond to consultation, but the Council owned land at 6-10 
Caxton Road is still within a development site. Council officers and Cllrs have 
spoken to the Community Hub) about the Council‟s aspirations to redevelop the 
land and regenerate the area. 

 

 The value of The Community Hub, was recognised throughout the WGBP 
documents, and the equalities impact assessment makes specific reference to 
these community assets and how the HDV will be required to work with them 
through any redevelopment.  

 

 The current draft of the Wood Green “Preferred Option” AAP states that 
adequate re- provision for space for the community use should be provided 
prior to redevelopment. A new location for the facilities outlined will need to be 
identified and deliverable relocation strategy agreed prior to the redevelopment 
of the site. The WGBP commits to working within the planning policy framework 
and the policies therein. 

 
Cllr Goldberg advised that land can only be transferred into the HDV with vacant 
possession and so the Council will have to work with the Hub to agree a relocation 
plan before any redevelopment can take place. Councillor Goldberg made clear that 
the community Hub needs a location in Wood Green had already asked officers to 
look at new locations for the Hub. 
 
The Leader further emphasised the value of the Community Hub and provided 
assurance that the Community Hub would not move from its current premises until a 
suitable acceptable alternative location had been found. 
 

33. MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  
 
The Cabinet were asked to consider the Scrutiny Review of the HDV – Part 2, 
completed by the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Panel. 
 

Page 5



 

 

The Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning would provide the 
Cabinet response to the review recommendations. 
 

34. SCRUTINY REVIEW OF THE HDV[HARINGEY DEVELOPMENT VEHICLE] PART 2  
 
Councillor Ibrahim, Chair of the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Panel introduced 
the scrutiny review on the HDV, which followed on from the previous scrutiny review 
completed on the governance of the HDV and was presented to Cabinet at the 
February meeting. At this February meeting, there was an overarching concern about 
the Council taking forward the establishment of the HDV. Since then work had been 
undertaken to further refine and negotiate the HDV and the Panel had been 
undertaking further scrutiny of the proposed HDV. The Panel had gathered a wide 
range of evidence from: Universities, regeneration experts, Councillors from other 
boroughs, local residents, and local stakeholders; culminating in 30 recommendations 
for Cabinet to consider. 
 
Councillor Ibrahim drew attention to recommendation 12 [page 54] which was not fully 
agreed, concerning the exclusivity clause. Since completion of the scrutiny review, the 
exclusivity percentage had now been published with the HDV papers and was 
calculated at 60%. Given the life span of the HDV was 20 years, Cllr Ibrahim was still 
concerned that this percentage may not represent best value for the Council in 10 to 
15 years‟ time. Although there would be best value assessments completed on a site 
by site basis, there was still concern that the Council‟s financial position was not 
protected and it was not clear if there would be cost implications to withdrawing from 
this percentage agreement at a later date. 
 
Councillor Ibrahim referred to the premise for taking forward the HDV, which was the 
business plan agreed by Cabinet in 2015, and whether this was now applicable given 
the political and financial changes over the last two years.  
 
Councillor Ibrahim further sought clarification on the position for right of return and 
target rent application. 
 
Councillor Ibrahim raised concerns about the magnitude of information contained in 
the appendices packs for consideration at item 10, establishment of the HDV, which 
had not been shared with the scrutiny panel in their review process. 
 
There were further questions put forward from Councillors Engert, Brabazon, Tucker, 
and Carter and the following information was noted: 
 

 In relation to the commitment on right of return, the Leader responded to this, 

and highlighted the 20th of June Cabinet decision on the Estate Renewal Re- 

housing and Payments Policy which makes clear commitments to, tenants, 

leaseholders and freeholders on re - housing and also makes clear that this 

Council policy will apply to HDV schemes and Housing Association schemes 

which are promoted by the Council. Appendix 1a page 109 [paragraph 5.8.1] – 

supplementary pack, which is the summary of the legal documents, also 

explicitly set out the commitment to right of return in the Land Assembly 

Agreement where there is demolition of estates. 

 

Page 6



 

 

 The Cabinet Member explained that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

continue to have a role in scrutinising the HDV. Staff from the HDV can be 

invited to attend the Committee meetings as other associated bodies working 

with Council do. 

 

 The Cabinet Member was happy to continue to attend Overview and Scrutiny 

meetings to respond to questions about the HDV. 

 

 The Council strongly discouraged „poor door‟ arrangements from housing 

development applicants and were clear on having a shared entrance. However, 

the entrance to the properties would still depend on building design and 

sometimes housing associations/providers find having separate entrance is 

most effective way to ensure affordability is maintained and to keep service 

changes low. This type of request usually comes from the affordable housing 

provider to the Council. 

 

 There were no plans to develop on Metropolitan open land, and if such a 

proposal came forward this would be subject to stringent testing and significant 

assessment.  

 

 There was expected to be full publication of viability assessments, prior to 

planning permission being sought with the burden of proof on developers to 

justify any exempt information. So there was a strong presumption that viability 

assessments from the HDV would be fully published. 

 

 In relation to the publication of Cabinet papers, this was the third time that 

Cabinet were considering decisions on the HDV. The Cabinet Member advised 

that other Councils taking similar decisions had not published as much 

information. The Council had chosen to be open and publish all available public 

information. The Cabinet Member and officers had also been consistently clear 

with the Scrutiny Panel that legal documentation was being prepared for the 

Cabinet meeting in July and would not be ready for prior scrutiny. 

 

 In relation to fire protection, the Cabinet Member made clear, that there were 

no housing blocks to be built by the HDV imminently. In relation to blocks that 

may be built in future, these would likely be built after the Grenfell public inquiry 

findings and recommendations were published. Therefore, the 

recommendations from the inquiry would be fully incorporated into national 

building regulations which the HDV would of course observe. 

 

 The Cabinet Member stressed that reports at this evening‟s meeting did not 

address or explore design features of housing blocks. These type of regulatory 

issues would be explored once the planning applications come forward for the 

developments and are consulted upon with the public and then scrutinised by 

the Planning Committee. 

 

 The Cabinet Member outlined that the Council will continue to access external 

advice on the HDV for as long as it needs to. The Council also have 

Page 7



 

 

experienced senior staff working on the HDV. There was also a significant 

allocation of internal audit resources. There was further, an Independent 

Verification Team made up of professionals that can provide impartial advice to 

the HDV board on the exclusivity contracts. 

 

 On the question of when existing affordable housing provision would be 
assessed in order to determine the amount of re-provision, the Cabinet 
Member had always been clear that redevelopment was a slow incremental 
process which could only be confirmed after public consultation, planning 
permission and Cabinet decision on the estate regenerations. There was no 
fixed answer on precise timing, but in any scenario the Council were committed 
to the right of return for existing residents and to delivering the greatest 
possible amount of affordable housing.  

 

 In relation to the application of the HDV Business case agreed by the Cabinet 

in 2015, there had been a significant amount of additional financial work 

completed which superseded the financial elements of the original business 

case and was provided for Cabinet in their decision making. 

 

 With regards to rent policy, the replacement housing for existing estate renewal 

residents will be charged at target rents. The remaining affordable housing will 

be at a mix of rents defined as affordable in the Housing Strategy. The 

schemes have to comply with the Housing Strategy which sets out the mix of 

tenures to be offered and the rents to be charged according to this. 

 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning provided an overall 
response to the review, thanking the scrutiny panel for their hard work and gathering 
information from expert witnesses, as this was a significant decision for the Council 
and he appreciated the work of scrutiny on this. He further responded as follows: 
 

 The Cabinet has been considering reports and decisions on the HDV for over 

two years and were fully aware of the significance of their decision making. 

 

 The Commercial Portfolio would now transfer to the HDV on phased basis over 

time, instead of transferring over in one stage. 

 

 With regards to resident‟s rights - the Council had strengthened further the 

Estate Renewal Re-housing and Payments Policy to provide strong 

commitments to tenants, leaseholders and freeholders on re- housing and right 

of return. 

 

 The HDV would be bound by agreed Council policies, in particular the Housing 

Strategy and the Growth strategy which have been publically consulted upon 

and agreed by Cabinet. 

 
 
RESOLVED 
 

Page 8



 

 

1. To note the Overview and Scrutiny Report on the Haringey Development 

Vehicle („HDV‟) (attached as Appendix 1). 

 
2. To agree the responses to the Overview and Scrutiny report recommendations 

(attached as Appendix 2). 

 
Reasons for decision  
 
Not applicable as a non key decision 
 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not applicable as a non key decision 

 
 
 

35. HARINGEY DEVELOPMENT VEHICLE - FINANCIAL CLOSE AND 
ESTABLISHMENT  
 
Before the Cabinet Member introduced the report, the Leader advised the meeting, 
that the public appendices to this report were included at pages 97 to 1474 of the 
second pack of papers, for ease of reference.  
 
The Leader asked the Cabinet, in particular, to note the equalities comments in the 
report at section 8.49-8.57 and the equalities impact assessments completed for the 
strategic business plans for Northumberland Park at appendix 3b, Wood Green at 
appendix 4b, Cranwood at appendix 5b. Also to note the equalities impact 
assessments for the Commercial Portfolio at appendix 6B and the social economic 
business plan at appendix 7b. 
 
Councillor Strickland introduced the report and set out the overall aim in establishing 
the HDV [ Haringey Development Vehicle] which was to meet current and future 
demands in housing need, by building greater numbers and types of housing in the 
borough. In addition, tackling unemployment and child poverty, improving use of 
existing land for employment stock, and creating more local jobs. The HDV would 
further provide the right infrastructure to meet the regeneration needs and ambitions 
of the borough. 
 
Councillor Strickland continued to provide the background which had led to 
consideration of a joint venture vehicle. This was following participation in the Future 
of Housing Review with a cross party group of Members and visiting other Councils 
which had various development arrangements in place. The cross party group had 
been concerned that other Councils were handing over land with little or no control on 
the outcome and not having any skills / expertise to access to regenerate areas. 
 
The Cabinet Member underlined the importance of having a vehicle to facilitate estate 
and town centre regeneration of the borough with people at the centre of the decision 
making process. He continued to outline the benefits of the joint company model put 
forward which would mean setting up a 50/50 company with Haringey elected 

Page 9



 

 

members retaining control over key decisions, and the company can only act within 
the priorities and plans set out in the company‟s business plan. 
 
Specific requirements and guarantees were sought from Lendlease before the HDV 
was proposed for establishment. The Cabinet Member was satisfied that the Council 
was being offered: 
 
 

 6400 new homes built with at least 40 % affordable 

 Guarantees on right of return. 

 More control of the development of sites to ensure that there is 
increased housing. 

 Access to skills and expertise to make the most of the land. 

 Taking forward estate regeneration and being at the centre of the 
decision making for the next 20 years. 

 
There was also a landmark proposal, similar to the agreements reached on the 
Olympic Park on local jobs and employment standards including the Living Wage. The 
joint venture would ensure existing residents get better housing, improved community 
facilities, jobs, health centre access, community facilities, a library, new green space 
and youth programmes. This was beyond what has been previously secured by the 
borough through regeneration schemes. 
 
Councillor Strickland emphasised that the recommendations had come forward after a 
two-year process, which included scrutiny involvement. He recommended Cabinet 
approve the establishment of the HDV as this arrangement provided a good offer on 
homes and jobs and facilities for improving life chances and tackling inequality. 
 
Cabinet Members put forward questions to the Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Regeneration and Planning and the following information was noted: 
 

 There was significant difference between these arrangements and Southwark‟s 
relationship with Lendlease. The Heygate estate project had been under a 
traditional development agreement where the estate had been sold, wholesale, 
to a developer. The Council were not doing this, but proposing a joint 
partnership arrangement, on an equal basis, meaning that the Council could, at 
the start of the development process, clearly set out their needs and 
expectations of the development and ensure the pre – agreed business plans 
are adhered to. 

 

 The Council had a strong policy on right of return and re-provision of housing 
for existing residents. The Council was consulting on a revised Estate Renewal, 
Re- housing and Payments Policy for tenants and leaseholders. This was a 
vitally important policy and makes commitments to residents whose properties 
will be demolished as part of the estate renewal and regeneration schemes. 
The policy intention of Southwark was different and they had not been explicit 
on right of return.  

 

 The Monitoring Officer referred Cabinet to page 108 sections 3.7 of the report 
pack and clarified the decisions being taken forward by Cabinet, at this 

Page 10



 

 

meeting. These were decisions on the transfer of the Council‟s Commercial 
Portfolio to the HDV and the conditional option agreement in respect of the 
disposal of the Wood Green sites. As section 3.7 makes clear, no decisions 
were being taken in respect of disposals concerning Northumberland Park and 
Cranwood. There would be no decisions on disposal of any part of these sites 
before statutory consultations were undertaken. 

 

 There had been extensive discussion with Lendlease, about compiling a 
framework agreement, similar to the Olympic Park agreement, on jobs, skills, 
apprenticeships and investment. This agreement offers: London living wage 
and enforcing this throughout the supply chain, making sure local people have 
access to jobs and local businesses are signed up to the local supply chains. 
Also making sure that local people are skilled up to compete for the jobs that 
arise from the regeneration and development. 

 

 There were clear assurances to drive these commitments through supply chain 
by Lendlease. New ideas could come from communities and residents that can 
be added to the programme. 

 

 The Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning referred to the 
recent Council negotiations, for securing 40% affordable housing on the 
Hornsey depot and Apex House sites, as a good example of the Council 
negotiating with the private sector. 

 

 The social dividend procurement weighting had been equal to the weighting of 
other factors and demonstrated the Council‟s commitment to the wider 
community and improving lives. 

 
There were questions put forward from Councillors: Engert, Rice, Bevan, McNamara, 
M Blake, Stennett, Berryman, G Bull, Tucker, Cater, Connor, Brabazon, Ibrahim and 
Diakides. This information ,obtained from questions, has been grouped into the main 
subject areas of: decision making, housing, regeneration/ business plans, and 
arrangements with Lendlease for ease of reference] 
 
 
Decision making 
 

 The decision being taken forward, by Cabinet this evening, was concerning 
category 1 sites and there was no decision being made on category 2 sites this 
evening. Also the report made clear that no decisions were being taken in 
respect of disposal of Northumberland Park or Cranwood. 

 

 The Cabinet responses to the scrutiny review already summarised the 
response to scrutiny review recommendations. Councillor Bevan was offered a 
meeting with the Director for Housing and Growth to talk through the reports 
and how the changes and improvements suggested by the scrutiny panel were 
put into place.  

 

 In considering the number of documents included in the appendices packs, the 
Cabinet had placed a significant number of documents in the public domain for 

Page 11



 

 

openness and transparency purposes. The Cabinet had reports before it in 
respect of the HDV decision over the last two years and were familiar with the 
issues involved.  

 

 The meetings of the HDV would not be open to the public, as this was not 
deemed a public body but there would be further discussion with Lendlease on 
providing information on the business discussed. 

 

 The HDV would strive to be as transparent as possible. The Council will have 
three members on the board and they will have access to the commercial 
information.  

 

 The equalities comments were set out at section 8.49 to 8.57 of the report and 
outlined the equalities work completed thus far. The Cabinet Member 
emphasised that there will not be disposal of category 1B properties until there 
has been a full consultation. As and when further decisions on these sites 
come forward equalities impact assessments will be refined and improved in 
future as more information is available and as and when further decisions are 
made 

 

 The current equalities impact assessments, contained in the agenda packs, as 
referred to by the Leader, were prepared by regeneration officers, in the areas 
in question, with Council in house equalities policy expertise provided to 
support their completion. There had also been external legal advice sought to 
ensure the equalities impact assessments were consistent with the Council‟s 
public sector equality duties. 

 

 The Leader reported to the meeting, that the external auditors had advised the 
Council, today, of their initial review findings concerning the proposed 
establishment of the HDV. The scope of the review focused on: considering 
whether due process had been followed, if there were indications of poor value 
for money for the Council and its residents and further considering if the 
interests of the Council had been adequately protected. Their preliminary 
findings were reported in a letter to the Leader, and initial conclusions were that 
they were satisfied that appropriate work had been completed and information 
brought forward to Cabinet to allow a reasonable decision on whether to 
proceed with the HDV. No concerns were raised that needed to be considered 
by Cabinet and the external auditors were happy for the Leader to 
communicate to Cabinet that they had no issues to raise. 
 

 There would be multiple opportunities for Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
scrutinise the HDV and HDV staff could be invited to the Committee meetings 
as the case with other associated external bodies. The Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee could also call the Leader and Cabinet Member to meetings to 
respond to concerns. 

 
Housing 
 

 The Council would be maintaining 40% affordable housing on sites and would 
be part of the decision making process to find solutions that meet the boroughs 

Page 12



 

 

needs if there was a down turn in the housing market. This could be solutions 
such as ensuring that other phases of development are brought forward if 
needed. 

 

 There was no imminent building work planned for commencement by the HDV 
and it was hoped that there would be clear recommendations arising from the 
public inquiry into Grenfell by the time building works, by the HDV, 
commenced. The Council would abide by any new building regulations, and 
was determined to abide by fire safety regulations. There was also a legal 
obligation for the Council to abide by these rules.  

 

 The interim Chief Executive reported on learning the lessons from Grenfell. 
There was a commitment by central Government to provide interim findings of 
the Grenfell inquiry to the public and Councils. However, until these findings 
were released, the interim Chief Executive had spoken to the DCLG about, 
more immediately, obtaining the learning from the technical panels compiled by 
the DCLG to look at changes needed in building regulations and what needs to 
happen to adapt to these changes. The meeting noted that the DCLG had 
committed to advise the Council of the Technical Assessment Panel findings 
and some had already been released. 

 

 The Council remained absolutely committed to a right of return for residents, in 
a regeneration scheme and wherever possible to ensuring that families move 
only once. There was potential to be more sequences to moves but this would 
be to accommodate the resident‟s needs and their preference area. There 
would be continual close working with residents in estate renewal areas, 
individually and collectively, to continue to ensure their housing needs are met. 

 

 The Cabinet Member emphasised that there was not enough housing in the 
borough of any type and rents and house prices were going up. The Housing 
Strategy was committed to providing different types of housing. The 40 % ratio 
of affordable housing was above current national levels of affordable housing 
being built. 

 

 The Council were committed to right of return and Lendlease could not make 
their own decision, unilaterally, on this policy. Also, as the Council would have 
an equal stake in the HDV, they could block this unlikely situation occurring. 

 

 Noted that the right of return commitment trumps the habitable room policy. 
Individual assessment would be undertaken to meet the tenant‟s needs i.e. 
additional room for families or adaptations. It maybe that the configuration of 
the space will be different to meet the needs of a family but the amount of 
space still remains affordable 

 

 There would be no suspension of maintenance routines/ regimes to the estates 
that had been identified for regeneration and the Council would be maintaining 
building standards.  

 

Page 13



 

 

 When approaching the period when a site needs to be fully vacated and there 
are homes used for temporary accommodation and empty flats, these would 
still be counted as Council flats when calculating re-provision. 

 

 There was current consultation on a shared equity scheme for leaseholders 
covered in the revised Estate Renewal, re housing, Payments Policy where the 
Council is going beyond its statutory obligations so leaseholders can get a fair 
deal. 

 

 The Council were committed to continuing with the Decent Homes scheme and 
normal repairs where required by tenants. Where properties were in the early 
phase of the HDV, decent homes works had been paused and a further 
decision on decent homes works would be made Homes for Haringey board 
following this Cabinet meeting. 

 
Regeneration/ business plans 
 

 Academisation of Northumberland Park School was not a decision for the local 
authority but for the governing body of the school.  

 

 The Cabinet Member for Children and Families stressed that the 
Northumberland Park master plan was indicative and decisions on a new 
school and Sixth form would only be considered following a full consultation. 
This was set out in section 3.4.2.1.4 of the report. Therefore, the 
Northumberland Park development would still be subject to further consultation 
and Cabinet consideration. The Cabinet Member for Children and Families had 
asked officers to look at green spaces offer on this site as it was not adequate 
currently 

 

 In relation to current and potential future air pollution issues in Tottenham, near 
Northumberland Park School, arising from close proximity developments, this 
was a key planning consideration and would have formed part of the 
construction management agreement with Spurs. The Assistant Director for 
Planning could be asked to write to the Councillor Rice about these obligations 
with Spurs, in light of the increased development and the impact on the 
environment around Northumberland Park School. This immediate operational 
issue had also been discussed by the interim Chief Executive with the School 
last week and the conversation was ongoing. They discussed the large scale 
building work and discussed where exams take place and additional cleaning 
required as a result of dust issues.  

 

 In relation to pages 992- 1006 of the appendix pack, the addresses listed, were 
the land and sites in Northumberland Park area that could be developed by 
HDV. These were the same addresses listed in the Site Allocations Plan and 
Tottenham Area Action plan, and had been subject to repeated public 
consultation and approved for inclusion in Local Planning documents by the 
Government inspector. 

 

 The Caxton road site had been included in the Site Allocations planning 
document and was covered in the Wood Green Area Action Plan which has 

Page 14



 

 

been consulted on. Therefore, this site‟s inclusion in regeneration plans has 
been in public domain. 

 

 The Leader highlighted the continuing commitment to Cross Rail 2. The 
National infrastructure project report published last week, had emphasised the 
importance of Cross Rail 2. Also the upgrading of the Piccadilly line was funded 
and on course for completion in the mid 2020‟s with an expected 60% increase 
in passengers. This would be a 30 % of passengers following through 
increased frequency and 30% through rolling stock. 

 

 Cllr Goldberg clarified that he had provided an example of good public sector 
negotiations with the private sector, in achieving affordable housing numbers 
on the Hornsey depot and Apex house sites. The Leader had referred to lost 
local authority expertise on physical developments due to previous government 
decisions. 

 
Arrangements with Lendlease 
 

 In relation to the exclusivity agreement, essentially the Council needs 
Lendlease to develop and make use of the skills and expertise that they have 
available to deliver increased homes in the borough. There would be 
independent valuation of this cost to ensure that it did not increase beyond 
market rates. 

 

 The VAT charge would have a small effect on small business and the Council 
and Lendlease were committed to options for managing this cost so there was 
minimal impact. 

 

 In relation to voluntary termination of the contract between the Council and 
Lendlease, both sides would need to reach an agreement, should this situation 
occur. The appendices also set out the other scenarios which could lead to a 
termination of the contract i.e. deadlock or default. In all termination scenarios, 
the Council has right to acquire back property assets. In a voluntary scenario, 
they can acquire back at market value. In other scenarios there were different 
rights depending on whether either side had defaulted on the agreements. 

 

 There will be a lengthy decision making process associated with the 
regeneration and development of areas which will be subject to different 
consultations. If in a section 105 consultation, significant issues raised by 
residents that cannot be resolved then there is no obligation for the Council to 
transfer the land.  

 

 The HDV would be delivering growth, mix of jobs and priority industries. In 
relation to the calculation of the number of jobs to be achieved, 22,000 was the 
best estimate on what could be achieved. 

 

 It was clarified that vertical build is concerning the structure that arises from the 
ground and horizontal build is the infrastructure, drainage and conduit for 
electrics and internet. Lendlease would get vertical build allocation at 60% and 
also get the horizontal infrastructure works associated with that vertical build. 

Page 15



 

 

 

 There was no risk around dereliction of fiduciary duties for Councillors who 
were not decision makers. FOI [Freedom of information requests] was a 
nuanced position. If the HDV held information on behalf the Council, then this 
information could be subject to FOI but the HDV itself would not on its own be 
subject to FOI. 

 
Further to considering exempt information at item 16, Cabinet unanimously  
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. To note the outcome of the Preferred Bidder Stage of the Competitive Dialogue 
Procedure under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 as outlined in this 
report; 
 

2. To confirm Lendlease Europe Holdings Limited (“Lendlease”) as successful 
bidder to be the Council‟s HDV partner; and  

 
3. To approve the setting up of the HDV with Lendlease or a subsidiary vehicle 

set up by Lendlease on the basis that the Council will hold 50% and Lendlease 
50% of the vehicle and based on the proposed structure as set out in the 
attached report. 

 
4. To approve the legal documents at Appendices 1b through 1j of the attached 

report and summarised in paragraphs 6.35 to 6.90 of this report so as to give 
effect to resolutions 1, 2 and 3, subject to resolution 6 [ a to d] below. 
 

5. To approve the following Business Plans at Appendices 2a through 7a, and 
summarised in paragraphs 6.91 to 6.121 of this report, subject to 
recommendation 6 (d) below: 
 

a) Strategic Business Plan 
b) Northumberland Park Business Plan 
c) Wood Green Business Plan 
d) Cranwood Business Plan 
e) Commercial Portfolio Business Plan 
f) Social and Economic Business Plan 

  
6. Gives delegated authority to the section 151 officer, after consultation with the 

monitoring officer: 
 

a) To approve the final terms of the two Property Management 
Agreements, referred to in paragraphs 6.70 to 6.72 of this report, to a 
maximum total value as set out in the exempt part of this report, such 
agreements to be agreed before the Members Agreement is entered into; 
b) To approve any of the financial agreements and instruments listed in 
paragraph 2.1.1 of the Members‟ Agreement (at Appendix 1b); 
c) To approve any further deeds and documents which are ancillary to the 
legal documents approved here, as described in paragraph 2.1.1 of the 
Members‟ Agreement (at Appendix 1b); and 

Page 16



 

 

d) To approve any amendments to the legal documents and business plans 
approved here as may be necessary, for reasons including but not limited to 
ensuring consistency between them and finalising any outstanding areas. 

 
 

7. To declare that the Commercial Properties listed in Appendix 6c are no longer 
required for housing purposes, and to appropriate these properties for general 
fund purposes (subject to obtaining any necessary Secretary of State consent); 
 

8. To dispose of the Council‟s commercial portfolio (as listed in Appendices 6c 
and 6d) to the HDV‟s Investment LP subsidiary in phases (as set out in the 
Agreement for Sale of the Investment Portfolio at Appendix 1c) for the total sum 
of £45m, and that the disposal shall be on the basis of a long leasehold interest 
for a term of 250 years and based on the lease referred to in the Agreement for 
Sale of the Investment Portfolio; 
 

9. To agree that the sum of £45m referred to above will be the Council‟s initial 
investment in the HDV; and 
 

10. To give delegated authority to the section 151 officer to agree the timing for the 
disposal of these properties to the HDV‟s Investment LP subsidiary and to 
approve individual final leases to facilitate such disposals.  
 

11. To give the HDV an option for a 250-year lease on land identified in the 
Development Framework Agreement as being Category 1A land in Wood 
Green and within the Council‟s freehold ownership, subject to the valuation 
methodology set out in the Development Framework Agreement. 
 

12. To note that in agreeing to the suite of legal agreements and to the Business 
Plans, Cabinet is not being asked to decide whether any part of 
Northumberland Park or Cranwood is to be disposed of to the HDV or any of its 
subsidiaries, and that nothing within any of them commits the Council to make 
any such disposal; 
 
 

13. To note that any such decisions will only be made following community 
consultation, including statutory consultation under section 105 Housing Act 
1985, and further equality impact assessments, all of which will be reported 
back to Cabinet in future report(s) for decision; 
 

14. To note that if Cabinet in its discretion does make future decisions to dispose of 
any part of Northumberland Park or Cranwood to the HDV or any of its 
subsidiaries, there will also be need for Full Council authorisation for making an 
application for consent to dispose to the Secretary of State under sections 32 
and 43 Housing Act 1985.  
 

15. To note that as a result of the disposal of the commercial portfolio and the 
transfer of some of the management services there may be a small number of 
employees that will be TUPE transferred (to the HDV or its supply chain) and 

Page 17



 

 

the Council and Lendlease have agreed that – if this occurs – these employees 
should remain within the Haringey Pension Fund. 
 

Reasons for decision  
 
The case for growth 
 
The Council‟s corporate plan makes a strong commitment to growth. Specifically, it 
identifies the need for new homes to meet significant housing demand which is 
making decent housing unaffordable for increasing numbers of Haringey residents, 
and causing more and more families to be homeless. It also identifies the need for 
more and better jobs, to revitalise Haringey‟s town centres, increase household 
income for Haringey residents and give all residents the opportunity to take advantage 
of London‟s economic success. This commitment to growth is further reflected and 
developed in the Council‟s Housing Strategy and Economic Development & Growth 
Strategy.  

 
The need among Haringey‟s population is stark: 
 

 In Northumberland Park ward, unemployment (at 26%) is almost double the 
rate across the whole borough and three times the national average. More than 
a quarter of residents (26%) in the ward have no formal qualifications, against 
13% for all of Haringey.  

 

 There is also a growing incidence of “in- work poverty”: 32% of Haringey 
residents earn below the London Living Wage compared to 24% in 2010. 
Median income of employees living in Tottenham is £11.40 an hour, compared 
to £16.90 in the rest of Haringey and £16.60 in London. 

 

 Too many young Haringey residents are not in employment, education or 
training (NEET). Northumberland Park, St Ann‟s and Noel Park wards have a 
16 and 17-year-old NEET rate over 4%, compared to the Haringey average of 
3.6% and the national average of 3.1%. 

 

 Life expectancy is demonstrably worse in the east of the borough compared to 
the west of the borough: on average the difference between parts of the east 
and parts of the west is 7 years. Obesity amongst children in Tottenham and 
mental health challenges in the whole borough are significant, and stubborn. 

 

 Market rents in Haringey have increased from a median rent of £900 per month 
in 2011 to £1,400 per month in 2016. In order to afford the median, rent for a 
two-bedroom private rented flat in the borough, a household would need to 
earn an annual income of around £63,000, based on the principle that a 
household shouldn‟t have to spend more than 40% of their net income on 
housing costs. On this principle, a household on the median income in the 
borough could afford to pay rent of £878 per month, compared to the actual 
median rent (£1,400 per month as above). This means that a lot of households 
are in fact spending 50%+ of their net income on housing costs. 

 

Page 18



 

 

 Meanwhile, for prospective purchasers, the average house price in Haringey is 
now around £430,000, up from £225,000 ten years ago, which in turn leads to 
higher demand for private rented housing, pushing rents up still further. House 
prices in the borough are now 13.7 times the median income – in 2002 it was 7 
times.  

 

 This means that for both renters and buyers, market-price housing is less and 
less accessible – making the need for new affordable housing more important 
than ever, and showing how demand in all parts of the market is failing to keep 
up with supply. And in the next ten years, Haringey‟s population is estimated to 
grow by 10.9%, adding another 30,000 residents by 2025 and a total of 52,000 
additional residents by 2035.  

 

 At the end of March 2017 there were 9,098 households on Haringey Council‟s 
Housing Register. The number of social housing lets in Haringey in 2017/18 is 
expected to be just fewer than 500; in 2011/12 it was just over 1,100. Across 
London, supply of new homes has been below the London Plan target every 
year, and even further adrift of the London Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment target. 

 

 There are over 50,000 London households who are homeless and in temporary 
accommodation, with over 3,000 of those Haringey households. Homeless 
acceptances in Haringey have increased from 355 in 2010 to 683 last year. 
Increasingly these are households who were evicted from the private rented 
sector because they could not afford the rent. 

 
Overall, based on data from the combined Indices of Multiple Deprivation (2015), 
Northumberland Park ward falls among the 10% most deprived areas in England and 
many parts of the ward are in the 5% most deprived. 

 
Growth is also essential to the future sustainability of the Council itself. With 
Government grant dwindling, local authorities are increasingly dependent on income 
from Council tax and – in light of recent reforms – business rates. Without growing the 
Council tax and business rate base, the Council will increasingly struggle to fund the 
services on which its residents depend. Improvement in the living conditions, incomes, 
opportunities and wellbeing of Haringey residents will directly contribute to the full 
range of aims in the Council‟s Corporate Plan.  

 

 Particular groups - including women, disabled people and BAME groups – are 
more likely to experience these inequalities in prosperity and wellbeing, and 
therefore most likely to benefit from the positive outcomes from growth.  
 

 By securing growth in homes and jobs – and maximising the quantity, quality 
and/or pace of such growth – is core to achieving the Council‟s aims, including:  
 

 Meeting housing demand will lead to more and more families are able to afford 
a home in the borough, either to rent or buy, alleviating the stark housing crisis. 

 

Page 19



 

 

 Meeting housing demand also drives down levels of homelessness, so fewer 
households find themselves in crisis, and the significant pressure on the 
Council budget through increased temporary accommodation costs is relieved. 

 

 increasing the number of jobs in the borough will lead to more opportunities for 
Haringey residents to boost their incomes and job prospects, more vibrant and 
successful town centres with more activity and spending during the working 
day, with reduced risk of „dormitory borough‟ status as working residents leave 
the borough to work elsewhere.  

 

 increasing levels of development in turn increase the Council‟s receipts in s106 
funding and Community Infrastructure Levy, in turn increasing the Council‟s 
ability to invest in improved facilities and infrastructure (like schools, health 
centres, open spaces and transport) and in wider social and economic 
programmes such as those aimed at improving skills and employability.  

 

 Growing the Council tax and business rate base will reduce the risk of financial 
instability for the Council and of further, deeper cuts in Council budgets and 
hence to Council services as Government grants dwindle to zero over the 
coming years.  
 
Options for driving growth on Council land 
 

The Council cannot achieve its growth targets without realising the potential of unused 
and under-used Council-owned land. Accordingly, in autumn 2014 the Council 
commissioned work from Turnberry Real Estate into the options for delivering these 
growth objectives. Turnberry also examined the market appetite for partnership with 
the Council to deliver new housing and economic growth. 

 
In February 2015 Cabinet, on the basis of this work, agreed to commission a more 
detailed business case to explore options for delivery. At the same time, the member-
led Future of Housing Review concluded (as set out in its report to Cabinet in 
September 2015) that a development vehicle was „likely to be the most appropriate 
option‟ for driving estate renewal and other development on Council land.  

 
The business case developed following Cabinet‟s February 2015 decision compared a 
number of options for achieving the Council‟s objectives, and ultimately recommended 
that the Council should seek through open procurement a private sector partner with 
whom to deliver its objectives in an overarching joint venture development vehicle. 
This business case, and the commencement of a procurement process, was agreed 
by Cabinet on 10 November 2015. 

 
The joint venture development vehicle model 

 
The joint venture model approved by Cabinet on 10 November 2015 is based on 
bringing together the Council‟s land with investment and skills from a private partner, 
and on the sharing of risk and reward between the Council and partner. The Council 
accepts a degree of risk in that it will transfer its commercial portfolio to the vehicle (as 
part of its initial investment), and will (subject to the satisfaction of relevant pre-
conditions) also commit other property, as its equity stake in the vehicle. It has also to 

Page 20



 

 

bear the costs of the procurement and establishment of the vehicle, and a share of 
development risk. However, in return, the contribution to its Corporate Plan objectives, 
including high quality new jobs, new homes including affordable homes and economic 
and social benefits, would be at a scale and pace that would otherwise be 
unachievable. The Council will also receive a financial return, principally through a 
share of profits that it can reinvest in the fulfilment of its wider strategic aims as set out 
in the Corporate Plan. 

 
Under this model, the development partner matches the Council‟s equity stake, taking 
a 50% share of the vehicle and hence a 50% share of funding and development risk. 
In return, and by maintaining strong relationships and delivery momentum, they obtain 
a long term pipeline of development work in an area of London with rising land values, 
and with a stable partner. 

 
The procurement process 

 
As well as approving the business case for establishing the HDV, at its meeting on 10 
November 2015 Cabinet also resolved to commence a Competitive Dialogue 
Procedure under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 to procure an investment and 
development partner with which to establish the HDV. Following a compliant 
procurement process, Lendlease was approved as preferred bidder by Cabinet at its 
meeting on 7 March 2017. Cabinet also approved a reserve bidder in the event that it 
was not possible to finalise the agreement with Lendlease.  

 
Following that decision, further work was undertaken by the Council and Lendlease 
teams to confirm the terms of the Lendlease bid, in order to arrive at an agreed set of 
legal agreements (to establish the HDV) and business plans (to set out its first phase 
of work). By approving the legal agreements and business plans put forward here, and 
therefore authorising establishment of the HDV and agreeing its initial work 
programme, Cabinet will be taking a major step in unlocking the considerable growth 
potential of the Council‟s own land and meeting a number of core Council ambitions.  
 
The establishment of the HDV (through the execution of the legal agreements) and 
the agreement of its initial work programme (through the approval of the business 
plans) represent a significant step in delivering the Council‟s objectives for improving 
the prosperity and wellbeing of Haringey‟s residents. However, it is also important to 
recognise the flexibility in the arrangement to respond to changing circumstances and 
changing priorities – and the Council‟s capacity to control that change. For example: 

 
 It is likely that plans for major development schemes will change 

following extensive consultation with residents and other 

stakeholders; 

 If market conditions change, the HDV can decide to amend its 

proposals – for example, switching homes for sale to homes for rent 

– or to re-phase its programme; 

 Arrangements for the ownership and management of homes are 

flexible, and can respond over time including in response to changing 

Council priorities and changes in the local and national funding 

regime. 

Page 21



 

 

 
All material changes would be subject to the Council and Lendlease agreeing any 
necessary elements of – or amendments to – the scheme business plans. Further, 
any additional Council property proposed for development by the HDV would be 
subject to a new business plan which would have to be approved by the Council (and 
Lendlease) before work could commence.  

 
In addition to these controls over the work programme of the HDV through its status 
as a 50% partner, the Council will retain its statutory functions in respect of the HDV 
work programme, including as local planning authority, giving it further influence and 
assurance over the implementation of the HDV‟s programme of work.  
 
Alternative options considered 
 
In November 2015, Cabinet considered and approved a business case for 
establishing an overarching joint venture vehicle to drive housing and job growth on 
Council land. That business case identified and assessed a number of alternative 
options for achieving the Council‟s objectives, and found that the overarching joint 
venture vehicle would be the most effective mechanism for achieving those goals.  

 
Throughout the process of procuring a partner with which to establish the HDV, the 
Council has reserved its position to not appoint any of the bidders in the event of the 
bids not being satisfactory, or otherwise not wishing to proceed. This report outlines 
the benefits and projected outcomes that will arise from the establishment of the HDV, 
in the context of the Council‟s objectives and aspirations as set out in the November 
2015 report to Cabinet. If the Cabinet chooses not to proceed with establishing the 
HDV, it will risk not obtaining these likely benefits, or not obtaining them at the scale, 
pace and/or quality which would otherwise be possible. 

 
The Council has within its procurement documentation made clear that bidders‟ 
participation in the Competitive Dialogue process is at their own expense, that the 
Council will not be responsible for bid costs and that it is not obliged to accept any 
tender.  
 
 

36. COMMUNITY BUILDING REVIEW: COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER POLICY  
 

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Resources introduced the report which set out the 
Community Asset Transfer Policy (CAT) for the Council‟s community building portfolio. 
The Policy sets out the circumstances in which, where organisations wish it, the 
transfer of long leases to incumbent community organisations that are part of the 
Council‟s community building portfolio can take place. The aims of such a transfer are 
to enable organisations to self-manage their property assets, to make longer term 
decisions on their accommodation and to raise funds against the collateral of a long 
lease.  

Cabinet would need to agree separately to the transfer of any individual asset within 
the policy 

Page 22



 

 

In response to a question from Cllr Engert, the Assistant Director would explore if a 
note, on allowing refreshment provision, could be added to the policy. 

 
RESOLVED 

1. To approve of the Community Asset, transfer 2017 policy document attached at 

Appendix A of this report. 

 

2. To note the key terms of the policy as are set out at paragraph 6.5. 

Reasons for decision  

The Cabinet report of 14th July 2015 sought to set out the overarching principles and 
recommendations of the Community Buildings Review and it was resolved to agree to 
establish criteria around asset transfer and lease monitoring and evaluation. The 
creation of a Community Asset Transfer is therefore delivering on these previously 
agreed recommendations. 

The policy is required to establish a significant change in emphasis in the way that 
community organisations manage their assets.  Community Asset Transfer is 
recommended as good practice by the Localities Team as part of DCLG and has been 
tested as compliant with legislation arising from the Localism Act 2011 (the Act).  

Devolution of powers to manage assets is anticipated to enable more efficient and 
effective management and utilisation of built assets as well as securing savings in 
officer time in the maintenance of multiple forms of lease. 

The process is about giving local people and community groups greater control in the 
future of their area and their community.  If local organisations own long term interests 
or manage community buildings, such as community centres, it can help promote a 
sense of belonging in the community and bring people from different backgrounds 
together to work towards a shared goal, creating lasting change in local 
neighbourhoods. 

Alternative options considered 

An analysis has been undertaken of 4 of the 14 pathfinder authorities, all city Councils 
that agreed to introduce community asset transfer and right to bid policies as arising 
from the Localism Act 2011 to determine the appropriate set of principles to include in 
a Community Asset Transfer policy.  Policies of Lambeth and Calderdale Councils 
have also been examined as they were recommended by the Localities Team as 
being good practice. 

Freehold vs Leasehold Transfer 

Consideration has been given to the terms upon which an asset would be transferred 
and key to this is whether a long lease or the freehold would be transferred. The 
following points have guided the decision that a 125-year FRI lease would be offered.  

Page 23



 

 

The Council intends to ensure that the community asset it transfers is safeguarded for 
community use and does not provide any opportunity for development of the asset for 
alternative use.  

This full safeguarding of community use can only be achieved through terms and 
conditions set out in a lease.  Under the terms of the lease both the freeholder and 
leaseholder will remain committed to delivering community space and benefit for that 
particular location but with significant levels of autonomy over how this is delivered.  

The alternative model of a freehold sale with covenants around planning use class 
was considered in depth and offers much weaker protection. Precedent shows that 
covenants can be overturned, allowing development for commercial gain or 
reduction/loss of community space and transfer to an alternative use.  

For most groups and 125-year lease allows ample security and is considered as 
effectively equivalent to a freehold transfer. This length of term would allow any 
community organisation to borrow in order to invest in the property.  Organisations will 
also benefit financially from taking the building on a leasehold basis, as there would 
be a big difference in the value of the transfer (consideration payment) with the cost 
becoming more affordable in reflection of the D1 only use.  

The policy will provide the opportunity for freehold transfer to be considered only in 
exceptional circumstances where a business case can demonstrate a justified need. 
For example, where other opportunities for investment in the building can only be 
secured with benefit to the community realised through this route. However, 
organisations should be aware that covenants would still be imposed to protect its use 
and they would expect to pay a significantly higher consideration payment than a 
leasehold value. 

 
37. ADJUSTMENT TO THE PLANNED ADMISSION NUMBER (PAN) OF THE 

BOROUGH'S COMMUNITY SECONDARY SCHOOLS  
 
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families introduced the report which set out the 
context of an emerging national funding formula and its impact on schools‟ finances; 
 

 Provided an outline of the representations, the Council  received in autumn 

2016 when consulting on proposed adjustments to the published admission 

numbers (PANs)1 of the borough‟s  secondary community schools; 

 Provides latest data on: 

a. year 7 numbers (including for the incoming September 2017 

cohort); and 

b. school roll projections (2017) and their implications for year 7 

demand now and in the future; 

 Sets out how the Council expect to meet demand for year 7 places over 

the coming years; 

                                            
1 Planned admission number (PAN) - the maximum number of pupils to be admitted into a particular 
year group at a school. 

Page 24



 

 

 Sets out the proposed condition survey work the Council will carry out in 

our community secondary schools in summer 2017 to allow the Council to 

plan for any necessary capital works to facilitate: 

a. any increase in pupil numbers within our community secondary 

school(s); and  

b. head teachers and governors being able to adjust their class sizes 

from 27 to 30 if they wish to do so. 

 
RESOLVED 
 

1.  To retain the current PANs at our five community secondary schools 

until such time as: 

b. condition surveys have been completed for our community 

secondary schools to assess how increased numbers in each 

school might impact on teaching, learning and recreation; 

c. further year 7 secondary transfer applications (2018 and beyond) 

have taken place and school roll projections have been obtained 

to inform decision making in year 7 place numbers; 

2. The Council  uses  bulge2 classes as required if/when pupil numbers 

take us from a position of surplus to one of deficit between now and 

2021 (2019 being the year when we project that we will need additional 

places); 

3. Officers bring a further report to Cabinet if either demand or projections 

mean that we need additional year 7 capacity before 2019 at a level that 

cannot be met through the use of bulge classes alone.  
 

Reasons for decision 
 

The recommendations set out in this Cabinet report seek to ensure that the Council 
are able to continue to meet its statutory duty of ensuring enough school places but at 
the same time guards against an early oversupply of places which would place one or 
more schools in financial difficulty as a result of reduced pupil to funding ratio, as they 
wouldn‟t be able to fill rolls, which would have a detrimental impact on their ability to 
successfully manage their budget.  

 
Alternative options considered 

 
There are two alternative options that have been considered:  

 
i. Do nothing to increase year 7 places which carries the high risk of 

running out of sufficiency of school places by 2019 or before; or 
ii. Increase places now which would seem premature given the downward 

amendment to the year 7 projections based on 2017 projections i.e. we 
know we are likely to need more year 7 places but that need has a) been 

                                            
2 Bulge classes are one off additional classes in any given cohort that are used to increase the supply of 
school places.  They are most frequently used for an unexpected spike in the demand for places that 

can’t be met locally.  They are sometimes used to accommodate increasing demand where projections 

mean that we aren’t certain that a permanent expansion is the most effective way forward as the 
expansion may not be sustainable. 

Page 25



 

 

pushed back to 2019, and b) is to some extent alleviated by capacity 
additions by APS and Fortismere schools in September 2016. 

 
A cautious but pragmatic approach was proposed around increasing year 7 capacity, 
but one that ensures the Council can react in a timely and appropriate way to both the 
expected (projected) and any unexpected increasing (or decreasing) demand based 
on 2017 and future projections. 
 
 

38. MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES  
 
RESOLVED  
 
To note the following minutes: 
 

 Cabinet Member Signing 20th June 2017 

 Leader’s Signing 20th June 2017 

 
39. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None 
 

40. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as item 16 
contained exempt information, as defined under paragraph, 3 and 5, Part 1, schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972, namely Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information) and Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege 
could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

41. HARINGEY DEVELOPMENT VEHICLE - FINANCIAL CLOSE AND 
ESTABLISHMENT  
 
As per item 35. 
 

42. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Claire Kober 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 

Page 26



 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON 
THURSDAY, 20TH JULY, 2017, 6.00pm 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillors: Claire Kober (Chair), Jason Arthur, Eugene Ayisi, Ali Demirci, 
Alan Strickland, Bernice Vanier and Elin Weston 
 

Also present - Councillors: Wright, Ibrahim, Brabazon, Tucker, McNamara, 
Carter, Connor, Hare 
 
 
43. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Leader referred to agenda item 1, as shown on the  agenda in respect of filming 
at this meeting and Members noted this information. 
 

44. APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors: Ejiofor, Ahmet and Goldberg. 
 

45. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest put forward. 
 

46. MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE - DECISION OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
HELD ON THE 17 JULY 2017 REGARDING  MINUTE 35 HARINGEY 
DEVELOPMENT VEHICLE - FINANCIAL CLOSE AND ESTABLISHMENT  
 
 
The Leader referred to the agenda which set out that this was a special meeting of the 
Cabinet convened, within the constitutionally required timescale of 5 working days, to 
re-consider the 3rd of July Cabinet decision on the Haringey Development Vehicle 
Financial Close and Establishment. This was following the outcome of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee meeting, held on the 17th of July to consider the call in of this 
key decision. 
 
Cabinet agreed that they did not require private discussion of the exempt material and 
would re-consider the decision in the open part of the meeting. 
 
Councillor Wright, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, was invited to 
introduce his report and he spoke in relation to the 7 recommendations, agreed by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. He acknowledged that Council Members were 
reaching the final stage of decision making on the HDV and thanked scrutiny 
Members for the number of hours spent scrutinising this decision and raising 
important issues. 

Page 29



 

 
The call-in meeting had concentrated on the risks concerning the HDV establishment 
which had been a long running theme in the debate about the HDV. This initiative to 
increase housing carried risks and Cllr Wright felt that Overview and Scrutiny were 
right to deliberate this to understand what position to take. 
 
In their deliberations, the Overview and Scrutiny had considered: public policy 
outcomes, the much-needed increase in housing and in particular social housing. The 
Council had a public duty to families on waiting lists for housing and this had also 
been a paramount issue in the Overview and Scrutiny discussions. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny recommendations were focussed on: need to provide 
target rents, support people failed by the housing market, ensure that there was a 
clear prioritisation on the right of return, ensuring that the exclusivity arrangements 
provided value for money and can be monitored through the HDV process,  providing 
a public company which secured public interests for housing, ensuring that there were   
separate and specific member roles to take forward the interests of residents in 
respect of  housing and employment without any conflict, full engagement by HDV 
staff in the scrutiny process, and supporting the social and community use of  the 
commercial portfolio buildings.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning and thanked the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their recommendations and responded as 
follows: 
 
 

a) Clarification of what the overall numbers of social homes at target will be 
for Site 1 allocations immediately, as well as a clear commitment to a net 
increase in homes available for social housing at target rent. 

 
The Cabinet Member reiterated that there can be no definitive statement at the 
present time about the overall total number of homes, or the homes of different 
tenures, on the first phase of development sites.  This would only be clear once the 
schemes have been fully worked up, in collaboration with local people, and based in 
part of the detailed needs of existing residents and after the formal planning process 
had been concluded. Therefore, there needed to be more consultation and master 
planning work before this clarification was provided. 

 
However, the following assurances could be provided:  

 

 Of the estimated 6,400 homes on these first „Category 1 sites‟, 40% will be 
affordable. 

 Replacement homes, under Right to Return, provided at target rents in 
perpetuity. 

 The make-up of the 40% will be in line with the Council‟s Housing Strategy, 
both in the mix of different tenures, and the definitions of affordability which are 
based on average incomes, not average rents or house prices. 
The Cabinet Member further referred to paragraph 3.7 of the Cabinet report, 
which advised that no decision on disposal of any part of Northumberland Park 
or Cranwood to the HDV had yet been taken by the Council and any such 

Page 30



 

decisions would only be taken in future following the necessary community 
consultation and further equality impact assessments. The Cabinet Member 
further emphasised that there was no detailed decision on these sites tonight 
before consultation with residents which was why detailed numbers could not 
be given. 

 
 

b) Clear commitment to the prioritisation of the absolute right of return 

 
The Cabinet Member emphasised that the commitment to a right of return was already 
absolute, both in the HDV Land Assembly Agreement and in the Estate Renewal 
Rehousing and Payments Policy. 

  
The Cabinet Member accepted that some of the wording in the Land Assembly 
Agreement could have been clearer, and he agreed to amend this in the final 
documents to make it more clear and transparent.  
 
 

c) That any exclusivity arrangement be on a site-by-site basis, rather than 
overall exclusivity. 

 
The Cabinet Member advised that this recommendation could not be agreed as this 
arrangement was integral to the Lendlease bid and the proposed agreement. Also, the 
landmark agreement securing local jobs, training and contracts would be difficult to 
take forward without having an overall agreement of this nature.  
 

d) To establish a wholly owned company in order to buy up social rented 
units at target rents 
 

The Cabinet Member advised that the Head of Housing was already exploring the 
option of a wholly owned housing company, currently for the primary reason of 
purchasing properties to support the supply of Temporary Accommodation.  If this 
company was established, there would be an option to buy homes but this would need 
to be looked at in the future on a phase by phase basis. 

 
 

e) A commitment to the Councillor appointed to the social impact vehicle 
being different to that appointed to the HDV Board 

 
The Cabinet Member agreed that this was a good idea, but the Social Investment 
Vehicle governance arrangements had not yet been finalised. There would be future 
full discussion with Members on this issue and this could also need a Cabinet 
decision. 

 
 

f) Obligation for senior HDV staff to attend and engage fully in the scrutiny 
process 
 

The Cabinet Member advised that there was no issue with HDV staff attending 
Scrutiny and being open to questions as other Council partners were. 

Page 31



 

 
 

g) A commitment to an assessment of buildings in community use, prior to 
their transfer to the HDV, to identify and protect their social and 
community value.    
 
 

The Cabinet Member emphasised the importance of understanding that there was a 
separation of the Council's community buildings and buildings in the commercial 
portfolio at commercial rents that happen to be rented by a charity or a third sector 
organisation. The Cabinet Member reiterated that none of the Council‟s Community 
Buildings were proposed for addition to the HDV. 

 
The Cabinet Member advised that a great deal of work has already been completed to 
identify the list of properties proposed for transfer to the HDV and impact.   

 
While the Council would continue to consider all potential impacts up to the point of 
any given property transferring, the presumption remained that all commercial 
properties identified in this Cabinet decision will transfer.  This was motivated not least 
by the desire to ensure that all tenants benefit from the improved landlord service that 
the HDV can provide.   

 
The Cabinet Member outlined that the Commercial Portfolio Business Plan sets out 
the provisions in place in HDV decision making to protect charities, childcare 
providers, and places of worship, public functions or any other case where tenants 
and/or users might be vulnerable or disadvantaged. Equality impact assessments 
would be undertaken to mitigate any negative impacts and promote equality. It was 
important to note that most of the business users had chosen to rent the commercial 
building from the Council and had been doing so for some time. 

 
There were questions put forward from Councillors: McNamara, Ibrahim, Carter, 
Tucker, Brabazon, Hare, Connor and the following information was provided: 
 

 In relation to judicial reviews and complaints about the HDV, the Council would 
take legal advice on the likelihood of success. However, this was not the forum 
to discuss advice received. The Council would defend claims put forward. 
 

 The HDV staff would be accountable to Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
the same way other Council‟s partners were, when called to meetings.  In terms 
of the availability of board minutes and reports, the Cabinet Member had seen 
good scrutiny of other partners where this information was not available. It was 
also important to note that all major decisions on sites would still require 
Cabinet decision making. Therefore, Scrutiny would continue to scrutinise 
detailed documents relating to HDV decisions coming through the decision-
making process to Cabinet in the normal way  

 

 The residents in the Northumberland Park area, outlined by Cllr Carter, would 
have been notified that their homes were included in proposed regeneration as 
part of the Tottenham Area Action Plan consultation process.  

 

Page 32



 

 In relation to paragraph 6.101 which set out information on home ownership 
and management, this was not an exhaustive list of options and did not 
preclude the option of a wholly owned housing company. 

 

 In respect of the signing of the legal agreements, the Council would continue to 
take legal advice and the legal agreements would be signed at the appropriate 
time.  

 

 The £50m fine was not attributed to Lendlease but paid by the organisation that 
had fitted the faulty glass at the development of the Old London Stock 
exchange development. The Cabinet Member underlined that the Council takes 
safety standards seriously and as with all developments would consider 
standards through the planning process and through building regulation control. 

 

 Exit agreement options had already been discussed at the Overview and 
Scrutiny meeting on the 17th of July meeting. 

 

 The Land Assembly agreement would be redrafted to make clear and capture 
that the right of return has priority and trumps all other agreements. This 
document had already been cleared with an external lawyer to ensure it 
captured this point before publication, but the Cabinet Member was happy to 
ensure that the document clarified this further. 

 

 In relation to Homes for Haringey homes that were situated above commercial 
properties, the Cabinet Member emphasised that these homes were not being 
transferred to the HDV. The commercial properties being transferred were on a 
leasehold basis. 

 

 There was a precedent for scrutiny to scrutinise partners. The Council and all 
Members would have access to all major decisions of the HDV as they will 
require Cabinet approval and progress through the mainstream democratic 
process. 
 

 Risk assessment mitigation was considered in the Cabinet documents, and the 
very structure of the HDV had been designed to mitigate risk. The Cabinet 
Member emphasised that land goes into the HDV on a phased basis to 
minimise risk. The Cabinet Member was also satisfied that risk had been 
properly considered when compiling proposals on the HDV. 
 

 In relation to carbon levels, the Cabinet Member reiterated that the HDV will 
strive for C40 accreditation. This was recognised as the most demanding level 
of accreditation. The HDV was expected to be an exemplar for carbon 
management and would be considering issues related to embedded carbon 
whilst balancing the priority to deliver modern new homes that have been 
asked for in the consultations with residents. 
 

 Leaseholders were not expected to have significant financial losses as the 
shared equity provisions being offered went beyond statutory provision and 
would help leaseholders who want to stay in their area. 

Page 33



 

 

 In terms of housing numbers, there were not detailed physical plans because 
there was a need to consult with tenants on sites in order to make these 
decisions. This was further set out in the response to scrutiny recommendation 
A. 
 

 Social rents were discussed at the Overview and Scrutiny meeting on the 17th 
of July and the Housing Strategy makes clear that the Council will not accept 
rents up to 80% on most properties. This Strategy was agreed by Members at 
full Council after consultation with residents 
 

 In relation to the length of phasing for VAT payments, this was only one option 
being considered. Therefore, it was not known yet what the approach will be for 
mitigating the potential impact of VAT, let alone the timing. 

 
 
Following the completion of responses to the scrutiny recommendations and 
responses to member questions at the meeting, the Leader asked Cabinet to consider 
the resolutions at minute number 35, which were unchanged. Cabinet unanimously,  
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. To note the outcome of the Preferred Bidder Stage of the Competitive Dialogue 
Procedure under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 as outlined in this 
report; 
 

2. To confirm Lendlease Europe Holdings Limited (“Lendlease”) as successful 
bidder to be the Council‟s HDV partner; and  

 
3. To approve the setting up of the HDV with Lendlease or a subsidiary vehicle 

set up by Lendlease on the basis that the Council will hold 50% and Lendlease 
50% of the vehicle and based on the proposed structure as set out in the 
attached report. 

 
4. To approve the legal documents at Appendices 1b through 1j of the attached 

report and summarised in paragraphs 6.35 to 6.90 of this report so as to give 
effect to resolutions 1, 2 and 3, subject to resolution 6 [ a to d] below. 
 

5. To approve the following Business Plans at Appendices 2a through 7a, and 
summarised in paragraphs 6.91 to 6.121 of this report, subject to 
recommendation 6 (d) below: 
 

a) Strategic Business Plan 
b) Northumberland Park Business Plan 
c) Wood Green Business Plan 
d) Cranwood Business Plan 
e) Commercial Portfolio Business Plan 
f) Social and Economic Business Plan 

  

Page 34



 

6. Gives delegated authority to the section 151 officer, after consultation with the 
monitoring officer: 

 
a) To approve the final terms of the two Property Management 
Agreements, referred to in paragraphs 6.70 to 6.72 of this report, to a 
maximum total value as set out in the exempt part of this report, such 
agreements to be agreed before the Members Agreement is entered into; 
b) To approve any of the financial agreements and instruments listed in 
paragraph 2.1.1 of the Members‟ Agreement (at Appendix 1b); 
c) To approve any further deeds and documents which are ancillary to the 
legal documents approved here, as described in paragraph 2.1.1 of the 
Members‟ Agreement (at Appendix 1b); and 
d) To approve any amendments to the legal documents and business plans 
approved here as may be necessary, for reasons including but not limited to 
ensuring consistency between them and finalising any outstanding areas. 

 
 

7. To declare that the Commercial Properties listed in Appendix 6c are no longer 
required for housing purposes, and to appropriate these properties for general 
fund purposes (subject to obtaining any necessary Secretary of State consent); 
 

8. To dispose of the Council‟s commercial portfolio (as listed in Appendices 6c 
and 6d) to the HDV‟s Investment LP subsidiary in phases (as set out in the 
Agreement for Sale of the Investment Portfolio at Appendix 1c) for the total sum 
of £45m, and that the disposal shall be on the basis of a long leasehold interest 
for a term of 250 years and based on the lease referred to in the Agreement for 
Sale of the Investment Portfolio; 
 

9. To agree that the sum of £45m referred to above will be the Council‟s initial 
investment in the HDV; and 
 

10. To give delegated authority to the section 151 officer to agree the timing for the 
disposal of these properties to the HDV‟s Investment LP subsidiary and to 
approve individual final leases to facilitate such disposals.  
 

11. To give the HDV an option for a 250-year lease on land identified in the 
Development Framework Agreement as being Category 1A land in Wood 
Green and within the Council‟s freehold ownership, subject to the valuation 
methodology set out in the Development Framework Agreement. 
 

12. To note that in agreeing to the suite of legal agreements and to the Business 
Plans, Cabinet is not being asked to decide whether any part of 
Northumberland Park or Cranwood is to be disposed of to the HDV or any of its 
subsidiaries, and that nothing within any of them commits the Council to make 
any such disposal; 
 
 

13. To note that any such decisions will only be made following community 
consultation, including statutory consultation under section 105 Housing Act 

Page 35



 

1985, and further equality impact assessments, all of which will be reported 
back to Cabinet in future report(s) for decision; 
 

14. To note that if Cabinet in its discretion does make future decisions to dispose of 
any part of Northumberland Park or Cranwood to the HDV or any of its 
subsidiaries, there will also be need for Full Council authorisation for making an 
application for consent to dispose to the Secretary of State under sections 32 
and 43 Housing Act 1985.  
 

15. To note that as a result of the disposal of the commercial portfolio and the 
transfer of some of the management services there may be a small number of 
employees that will be TUPE transferred (to the HDV or its supply chain) and 
the Council and Lendlease have agreed that – if this occurs – these employees 
should remain within the Haringey Pension Fund. 
 

Reasons for decision  
 
The case for growth 
 
The Council‟s corporate plan makes a strong commitment to growth. Specifically, it 
identifies the need for new homes to meet significant housing demand which is 
making decent housing unaffordable for increasing numbers of Haringey residents, 
and causing more and more families to be homeless. It also identifies the need for 
more and better jobs, to revitalise Haringey‟s town centres, increase household 
income for Haringey residents and give all residents the opportunity to take advantage 
of London‟s economic success. This commitment to growth is further reflected and 
developed in the Council‟s Housing Strategy and Economic Development & Growth 
Strategy.  

 
The need among Haringey‟s population is stark: 
 

 In Northumberland Park ward, unemployment (at 26%) is almost double the 
rate across the whole borough and three times the national average. More than 
a quarter of residents (26%) in the ward have no formal qualifications, against 
13% for all of Haringey.  

 

 There is also a growing incidence of “in- work poverty”: 32% of Haringey 
residents earn below the London Living Wage compared to 24% in 2010. 
Median income of employees living in Tottenham is £11.40 an hour, compared 
to £16.90 in the rest of Haringey and £16.60 in London. 

 

 Too many young Haringey residents are not in employment, education or 
training (NEET). Northumberland Park, St Ann‟s and Noel Park wards have a 
16 and 17-year-old NEET rate over 4%, compared to the Haringey average of 
3.6% and the national average of 3.1%. 

 

 Life expectancy is demonstrably worse in the east of the borough compared to 
the west of the borough: on average, the difference between parts of the east 
and parts of the west is 7 years. Obesity amongst children in Tottenham and 
mental health challenges in the whole borough are significant, and stubborn. 

Page 36



 

 

 Market rents in Haringey have increased from a median rent of £900 per month 
in 2011 to £1,400 per month in 2016. In order to afford the median, rent for a 
two-bedroom private rented flat in the borough, a household would need to 
earn an annual income of around £63,000, based on the principle that a 
household shouldn‟t have to spend more than 40% of their net income on 
housing costs. On this principle, a household on the median income in the 
borough could afford to pay rent of £878 per month, compared to the actual 
median rent (£1,400 per month as above). This means that a lot of households 
are in fact spending 50%+ of their net income on housing costs. 

 

 Meanwhile, for prospective purchasers, the average house price in Haringey is 
now around £430,000, up from £225,000 ten years ago, which in turn leads to 
higher demand for private rented housing, pushing rents up still further. House 
prices in the borough are now 13.7 times the median income – in 2002 it was 7 
times.  

 

 This means that for both renters and buyers, market-price housing is less and 
less accessible – making the need for new affordable housing more important 
than ever, and showing how demand in all parts of the market is failing to keep 
up with supply. And in the next ten years, Haringey‟s population is estimated to 
grow by 10.9%, adding another 30,000 residents by 2025 and a total of 52,000 
additional residents by 2035.  

 

 At the end of March 2017 there were 9,098 households on Haringey Council‟s 
Housing Register. The number of social housing lets in Haringey in 2017/18 is 
expected to be just fewer than 500; in 2011/12, it was just over 1,100. Across 
London, supply of new homes has been below the London Plan target every 
year, and even further adrift of the London Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment target. 

 

 There are over 50,000 London households who are homeless and in temporary 
accommodation, with over 3,000 of those Haringey households. Homeless 
acceptances in Haringey have increased from 355 in 2010 to 683 last year. 
Increasingly these are households who were evicted from the private rented 
sector because they could not afford the rent. 

 
Overall, based on data from the combined Indices of Multiple Deprivation (2015), 
Northumberland Park ward falls among the 10% most deprived areas in England and 
many parts of the ward are in the 5% most deprived. 

 
Growth is also essential to the future sustainability of the Council itself. With 
Government grant dwindling, local authorities are increasingly dependent on income 
from Council tax and – in light of recent reforms – business rates. Without growing the 
Council tax and business rate base, the Council will increasingly struggle to fund the 
services on which its residents depend. Improvement in the living conditions, incomes, 
opportunities and wellbeing of Haringey residents will directly contribute to the full 
range of aims in the Council‟s Corporate Plan.  

 

Page 37



 

 Particular groups - including women, disabled people and BAME groups – are 
more likely to experience these inequalities in prosperity and wellbeing, and 
therefore most likely to benefit from the positive outcomes from growth.  
 

 By securing growth in homes and jobs – and maximising the quantity, quality 
and/or pace of such growth – is core to achieving the Council‟s aims, including:  
 

 Meeting housing demand will lead to more and more families are able to afford 
a home in the borough, either to rent or buy, alleviating the stark housing crisis. 

 

 Meeting housing demand also drives down levels of homelessness, so fewer 
households find themselves in crisis, and the significant pressure on the 
Council budget through increased temporary accommodation costs is relieved. 

 

 increasing the number of jobs in the borough will lead to more opportunities for 
Haringey residents to boost their incomes and job prospects, more vibrant and 
successful town centres with more activity and spending during the working 
day, with reduced risk of „dormitory borough‟ status as working residents leave 
the borough to work elsewhere.  

 

 increasing levels of development in turn increase the Council‟s receipts in s106 
funding and Community Infrastructure Levy, in turn increasing the Council‟s 
ability to invest in improved facilities and infrastructure (like schools, health 
centres, open spaces and transport) and in wider social and economic 
programmes such as those aimed at improving skills and employability.  

 

 Growing the Council tax and business rate base will reduce the risk of financial 
instability for the Council and of further, deeper cuts in Council budgets and 
hence to Council services as Government grants dwindle to zero over the 
coming years.  
 
Options for driving growth on Council land 
 

The Council cannot achieve its growth targets without realising the potential of unused 
and under-used Council-owned land. Accordingly, in autumn 2014 the Council 
commissioned work from Turnberry Real Estate into the options for delivering these 
growth objectives. Turnberry also examined the market appetite for partnership with 
the Council to deliver new housing and economic growth. 

 
In February 2015 Cabinet, on the basis of this work, agreed to commission a more 
detailed business case to explore options for delivery. At the same time, the member-
led Future of Housing Review concluded (as set out in its report to Cabinet in 
September 2015) that a development vehicle was „likely to be the most appropriate 
option‟ for driving estate renewal and other development on Council land.  

 
The business case developed following Cabinet‟s February 2015 decision compared a 
number of options for achieving the Council‟s objectives, and ultimately recommended 
that the Council should seek through open procurement a private sector partner with 
whom to deliver its objectives in an overarching joint venture development vehicle. 

Page 38



 

This business case, and the commencement of a procurement process, was agreed 
by Cabinet on 10 November 2015. 

 
The joint venture development vehicle model 

 
The joint venture model approved by Cabinet on 10 November 2015 is based on 
bringing together the Council‟s land with investment and skills from a private partner, 
and on the sharing of risk and reward between the Council and partner. The Council 
accepts a degree of risk in that it will transfer its commercial portfolio to the vehicle (as 
part of its initial investment), and will (subject to the satisfaction of relevant pre-
conditions) also commit other property, as its equity stake in the vehicle. It has also to 
bear the costs of the procurement and establishment of the vehicle, and a share of 
development risk. However, in return, the contribution to its Corporate Plan objectives, 
including high quality new jobs, new homes including affordable homes and economic 
and social benefits, would be at a scale and pace that would otherwise be 
unachievable. The Council will also receive a financial return, principally through a 
share of profits that it can reinvest in the fulfilment of its wider strategic aims as set out 
in the Corporate Plan. 

 
Under this model, the development partner matches the Council‟s equity stake, taking 
a 50% share of the vehicle and hence a 50% share of funding and development risk. 
In return, and by maintaining strong relationships and delivery momentum, they obtain 
a long-term pipeline of development work in an area of London with rising land values, 
and with a stable partner. 

 
The procurement processes 

 
As well as approving the business case for establishing the HDV, at its meeting on 10 
November 2015 Cabinet also resolved to commence a Competitive Dialogue 
Procedure under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 to procure an investment and 
development partner with which to establish the HDV. Following a compliant 
procurement process, Lendlease was approved as preferred bidder by Cabinet at its 
meeting on 7 March 2017. Cabinet also approved a reserve bidder in the event that it 
was not possible to finalise the agreement with Lendlease.  

 
Following that decision, further work was undertaken by the Council and Lendlease 
teams to confirm the terms of the Lendlease bid, in order to arrive at an agreed set of 
legal agreements (to establish the HDV) and business plans (to set out its first phase 
of work). By approving the legal agreements and business plans put forward here, and 
therefore authorising establishment of the HDV and agreeing its initial work 
programme, Cabinet will be taking a major step in unlocking the considerable growth 
potential of the Council‟s own land and meeting a number of core Council ambitions.  
 
The establishment of the HDV (through the execution of the legal agreements) and 
the agreement of its initial work programme (through the approval of the business 
plans) represent a significant step in delivering the Council‟s objectives for improving 
the prosperity and wellbeing of Haringey‟s residents. However, it is also important to 
recognise the flexibility in the arrangement to respond to changing circumstances and 
changing priorities – and the Council‟s capacity to control that change. For example: 

 

Page 39



 

 It is likely that plans for major development schemes will change 

following extensive consultation with residents and other 

stakeholders; 

 If market conditions change, the HDV can decide to amend its 

proposals – for example, switching homes for sale to homes for rent 

– or to re-phase its programme; 

 Arrangements for the ownership and management of homes are 

flexible, and can respond over time including in response to changing 

Council priorities and changes in the local and national funding 

regime. 

 
All material changes would be subject to the Council and Lendlease agreeing any 
necessary elements of – or amendments to – the scheme business plans. Further, 
any additional Council property proposed for development by the HDV would be 
subject to a new business plan which would have to be approved by the Council (and 
Lendlease) before work could commence.  

 
In addition to these controls over the work programme of the HDV through its status 
as a 50% partner, the Council will retain its statutory functions in respect of the HDV 
work programme, including as local planning authority, giving it further influence and 
assurance over the implementation of the HDV‟s programme of work.  
 
Alternative options considered 
 
In November 2015, Cabinet considered and approved a business case for 
establishing an overarching joint venture vehicle to drive housing and job growth on 
Council land. That business case identified and assessed a number of alternative 
options for achieving the Council‟s objectives, and found that the overarching joint 
venture vehicle would be the most effective mechanism for achieving those goals.  

 
Throughout the process of procuring a partner with which to establish the HDV, the 
Council has reserved its position to not appoint any of the bidders in the event of the 
bids not being satisfactory, or otherwise not wishing to proceed. This report outlines 
the benefits and projected outcomes that will arise from the establishment of the HDV, 
in the context of the Council‟s objectives and aspirations as set out in the November 
2015 report to Cabinet. If the Cabinet chooses not to proceed with establishing the 
HDV, it will risk not obtaining these likely benefits, or not obtaining them at the scale, 
pace and/or quality which would otherwise be possible. 

 
The Council has within its procurement documentation made clear that bidders‟ 
participation in the Competitive Dialogue process is at their own expense, that the 
Council will not be responsible for bid costs and that it is not obliged to accept any 
tender.  
 

47. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
Not required. 
 

Page 40



 

48. HARINGEY DEVELOPMENT VEHICLE  - FINANCIAL CLOSE AND 
ESTABLISMENT  
 
As per item 46. 
 

 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



1 
 

Report for: Cabinet 12th September 2017 
 
Item number: 9 
 
Title: 2017/18 Quarter 1 (to June 2017) Finance Report 
 
Report  
authorised by:  Clive Heaphy, Chief Finance Officer and Section 151 Officer 
 
Lead Officer: Oladapo Shonola – Lead Officer – Budget & MTFS Programme 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

1.1. This report sets out the 2017/18 Quarter 1 (Q1) financial position; including 
Revenue, Capital, Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG). 

1.2. To consider the proposed management actions set out in this report and 
approve the budget adjustments (virements) in Appendix 4 as required by 
Financial Regulations. 

 

2. Cabinet Member Introduction 

2.1. Haringey Council, like others, faces significant challenges in delivering high 
quality but financially sustainable services. By focussing on our key priority 
areas and driving improved outcomes at lower cost, we aim to achieve that 
balance in spite of increased demand across all of our services.  We have a 
well-developed savings plan across all Council services which is managed 
and monitored to ensure that it is delivered effectively. 

2.2. This budget monitoring report covers the financial year position for Q1 of 
2017/18. The report focuses on significant budget variances including those 
arising as a result of non-achievement of Cabinet approved Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) savings. 

2.3. The report provides a snapshot of the revenue position at Priority level and 
for the Council as a whole. It highlights budget pressures, budget risks and 
significant over/under spends.  Where there are budget pressures, the 
directors and assistant directors are expected to identify mitigating actions 
and develop action plans to bring overspend positions back in line with 
approved budgets. 

2.4. At the end of Quarter 1 (Period 3), the Council is projected to overspend by 
£6.6m in 2017/18.  The General Fund is projecting overspend of £6.2m and 
the HRA £0.4m. The majority of the overspend in the General Fund relate to 
demand pressures in key frontline services such as:  

 Priority 1 (Children’s) - £3.2m; 

 Priority 2 (Adults) - £1.2m;  

 Priority 5 (Temporary Accommodation) - £0.8m. 

2.5. The Council has implemented a risk based approach to budget monitoring 
across its services this financial year. The approach ensures the Council 

Page 43 Agenda Item 9



2 
 

focuses effort on monitoring those higher risk budgets due to their value, 
volatility and social impact along with the monitoring of Cabinet approved 
savings. 

2.6. Each Priority area has provided commentary that explains the reason for 
significant variances where the difference between forecast outturn and 
approved full year budget is more than £100k or higher than 10% of 
approved budget. 

2.7. Given the level of savings proposals identified to be delivered in 2017/18, 
there is a RAG rating specifically related to the delivery of the savings. The 
RAG status takes account of risk of delivering the full savings in the year 
and risk of delay to give an overall risk rating. The rating is as follows: 

Green: The risk is tolerable and requires no action unless status 
increases. 

Amber/Green: The risk requires active monitoring but does not currently 
require mitigating action. 

Amber/Red: Mitigating action is required and active monitoring should 
take place with immediate escalation if the position does 
not improve or deteriorates. 

 

3. Recommendations 

3.1. That Cabinet: 

i. Note the Q1 forecast revenue outturn for the General Fund of £6.2m 
overspend, including corporate items. (Section 6, Table 1 and 
Appendix 1); 
 

ii. Note the net HRA forecast position of £0.4m overspend. (Section 7, 
Table 2 and Appendix 2); 

 
iii. Note the latest capital position with forecast capital expenditure of 

£66.5m in 2017/18. (Section 9, Table 3);  
 

iv. Note the risks and mitigating actions identified in the report in the 
context of the Council’s on-going budget management 
responsibilities/savings, as detailed in Appendices 3 (a) (g); 

 
v. Endorse the measures in place to reduce overspend in service areas; 

and 
 

vi. Approve budget virements set out in section 11 and Appendix 4 of this 
report. 

 
 
 

4. Reason for Decision 

Page 44



3 
 

4.1. A strong financial management framework, including oversight by Members 
and senior management, is an essential part of delivering the Council’s 
priorities and statutory duties. 

 

5. Alternative Options Considered 

5.1. This is the 2017/18 Quarter 1 budget monitoring financial report.  As such, 
there are no alternative options. 

 

6. Background Information 

Budget Monitoring Overview 

6.1. As at 30st June 2017 (Quarter 1) of the financial year ending 2017/18, the 
Council’s projected overspend on its revenue budget of £6.6m (including 
£0.4m for HRA). 

6.2. Table 1 below sets out financial performance at priority level. A detailed 
analysis at directorate level is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

Table 1 – Revenue Budget Monitoring Forecast for Quarter 1 2017/18 

Priority 
Revised 

2017/8 
Budget 

Quarter 1 
Outturn 

Forecast 

Quarter 1 
Forecast to 

Budget Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

PR1 Children’s 64,247 67,447 3,200 

PR2 Adults 93,970 95,226 1,256 

PR3 Safe & Sustainable Places 26,303 27,399 1,096 

PR4 Growth & Employment 9,251 9,425 174 

PR5 Homes & Communities 20,415 21,200 785 

PRX Enabling 41,576 41,286 -290 

General Revenue Total 255,762 261,983 6,221 

PR5 Homes & Communities 
(HRA) 

-48 363 411 

Haringey Total 255,714 262,346 6,632 

 

7. Revenue Finance Overview 

7.1. A summary of outturn position for each priority area is as follows: 

 

PRIORITY 1                                                               Overspend £3.2m 

7.2. Children’s residential – forecasting an overspend of £1.3m.  The variance to 
budget in this areas is due to the average unit cost of placements being 
more than what was budgeted.  Although the budgeted number of Looked 
After Children (LAC) is increasing, the average unit cost for residential 
placements is approximately £400 more than the budgeted unit cost.  The 

Page 45



4 
 

cost drivers for this budget are volume and price, and variations in price can 
significantly affect the outturn, particularly for residential placements which 
often relate to complex needs.  Finance is working with the service to 
regularly review the high cost placements and the service continues to 
explore opportunities for alternative provision at reduced cost (whilst still 
meeting the primary needs of the service user), and without compromising 
the required outcomes. 

7.3. Young Adults – forecasting an overspend of £1.3m.  MTFS savings for 
Supported Housing Review, which was profiled into 2017/18 will now be re-
profiled into 2018/19.  This accounts for £0.6m of the reported overspend.  
The residual overspend is due to current commitments for housing related 
services and additional support for young adults, which exceeds the 
budget.   The service is reviewing all the end dates for service users to 
ensure that commitments are accurately reflected in the projected outturn, 
and it is anticipated that the reported overspend will move favourably in the 
next period once this exercise is completed.  

7.4. First Response – forecasting an overspend of £1.0m. There are currently a 
high number of agency staff within the service covering vacancies and 
suspensions. However, there are a number of permanent recruitments 
scheduled and there is a planned review of the agency forecasting model to 
ensure that this is as accurate as possible. This will be factored into the 
next budget monitoring report. 

7.5. Early Help and Prevention is forecast to overspend by £0.13m due to the 
delay in the delivery of savings within Family Support and Special 
Educational Needs.  This is partly offset by underspends within Targeted 
Response and Early Help budgets. 

7.6. The sums above are netted off against other minor variances totalling 
£0.17m. 

 

PRIORITY 2      Overspend £1.2m 

7.7. Adults Social Services are reporting budget pressures in the following 
areas: 

7.8. £0.7m Osborne Grove Nursing Home - due to concerns around quality of 
care provision, a restriction is in place on placing new clients in the home 
which in turn causes several pressures including the cost of finding 
alternative provision, the loss of client contributions and a loss of health 
funding for purchased beds. 

7.9. £2.0m demand pressures on care packages arising from – demand which is 
above the planned MTFS trajectory particularly for younger clients with 
Learning Disability Support needs and older clients with Physical Support 
needs; re-provisioning costs of finding alternative service provision for those 
clients whose needs were previously met through in-house services are 
higher than anticipated; delays in the closure of in-house services have 
meant that staffing and premises costs are being incurred for a longer 
period than was planned and expected reductions achievable through re-
provisioning have been delayed. 

Page 46



5 
 

7.10. In-year pressures are being mitigated through the release of 2 provisions 
totalling £1.30m – 

 Haynes Centre £0.66m - the provision relates to a long standing 
dispute with Haringey CCG over the liability for rental costs at the 
Haynes Centre.  Based upon current advice from Legal and Property 
Services that the council is not liable for these costs, this provision 
can be released. 

 Care packages £0.64m – the provision was established in 2016/17 
and relates to potential liabilities for committed homecare hours.  
Based on a reassessment of potential exposure, this provision can be 
released. 

7.11. A range of other minor variances net off to an underspend of £0.2m.  

 

PRIORITY 3      Overspend £1.1m 

7.12. The service is forecasting a £1.1m overspend having put in place an action 
plan to mitigate some of the other budget pressures that are being 
managed. 

Corporate Related Variances:  
7.13. £0.66m contractual inflation and £0.30m energy inflation will be corporately 

funded.   

Service Contained Variances: 
7.14. The final decision to move the Spurs football matches to Wembley this 

season was not confirmed until April 2017, which was subsequent to the 
budget preparation process, therefore the projected income levels from 
PCN On Street parking are less than budgeted. The service is looking to 
mitigate this risk through savings from essential permits. There is however a 
delay to this because the proposal for savings on essential permits is going 
through statutory consultation and will result in a shortfall in income within 
the range of £0.20m to £0.40m.   

MTFS Savings at Risk:  
7.15. Delays in scoping the cashless project has put at risk the related MTFS 

saving of £0.08m. Funding has now been secured to progress the project, 
however due to the delay, 50% of savings is projected to be at risk.  

Procurement Variances:    
7.16. The overspend in procurement relates to Dynamic Purchasing System 

software license fees of £0.30m which should have been recovered as part 
of savings allocation to non-Priority 3 services. Corporate finance is working 
with Procurement and the services to confirm the savings. 

 

PRIORITY 4      Overspend £0.17m 

7.17. An overspend of £0.25m is largely due to the extended employment of a 
team of commercial property valuers from March 2017 to March 2018. The 
majority of these posts will no longer be required once the HDV is 
established and some of the commercial properties have been transferred.  

Page 47



6 
 

7.18. The overspend in this area is offset by £0.08m from an overachievement of 
planning income and additional contribution from NWLA to staff costs. 

  

PRIORITY 5 (General Fund)    Overspend £0.80m 

7.19. Housing and Growth’s full year forecast is showing an overspend of £0.80m 
at the end of Q1. 

 There is a projected £0.60m overspend in in-borough private sector 
leases,  

 £0.70m overspend in bed and breakfast accommodation and  

 £0.40m underspend in Supplier managed Private sector leases.  

7.20. A key factor is the ability of the service area to meet the target/assumptions 
behind the MTFS especially the targets for out of London moves and new 
acquisitions. 

7.21. The service has identified a number of actions to attempt to reduce the 
projected overspend by year end. Officers are currently in dialogue with 
providers to deliver further shared facility hostels in 2017/18. Officers are 
also in discussion with various landlords to ensure retaining existing and 
sourcing future leased accommodation. Also, there are initiatives in the 
pipeline to increase supply and acquisitions.  

 

PRIORITY 5 (HRA)     Overspend £0.4m 

7.22. The HRA budget is projecting overspend of £0.4m for the year ending 
March 2018. The HRA outturn summary is set out in Table 2 below. 

 

Table 2 – HRA Budget Forecast (Quarter 1) 

Total for HRA 

Revised 
2017/8 
Budget 

Quarter 1 
Outturn 
Forecast 

Forecast to 
Budget 

Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Managed Services Income -107,736 -107,377 359 

Managed Services Expenditure 12,492 12,678 187 

Retained Services Expenditure 95,196 95,061 -135 

Total for HRA -48 363 411 

 

7.23. Appendix 2 provides a summary of the income and expenditure for the HRA 
budget. 

7.24. The HRA income shortfall relates primarily to income receivable from 
garage lets and Officers are drawing up an action plan to bring this budget 
back in line.  

Page 48



7 
 

7.25. Waste management costs have increased due to contract inflation but are 
offset by a lower than anticipated charge in landlord insurance costs. These 
changes will be reflected in next year’s Tenant and Leaseholders’ service 
charges and hence therefore reimburse the HRA as necessary. 

7.26. There remains outstanding debt relating to the water rates. The contract as 
it stands with Thames Water continues to create financial pressure for the 
HRA, as the HRA has to bear the costs of non-payment of bills which 
cannot be passed back to Thames Water. 

 

PRIORITY X      Underspend £0.29m 

7.27. Priority X is currently forecasting net underspend of £0.29m. The make- up 
of the over/underspend is spread out across the services in Priority X as 
detailed below:  

 

Transformation and Resources 

7.28. This area is currently forecast to overspend by £0.55m due largely to 
continuing reliance on temporary staff in Finance to fill vacancies in key 
areas and unfunded posts in the Corporate Project Management Office 
(CPMO) carried over from previously committed project work.  The planned 
restructure of Transformation and Resources will address CPMO overspend 
and finance agency costs will be addressed through ongoing recruitment 
activity, although it is expected that this will remain a risk for this financial 
year. 

7.29. Approximately £0.1m overspend relates to Homes for Haringey (HfH) 
Human Resources (HR) structure and negotiations are taking place with 
HfH to agree to a refund of the overspend.    

 

Shared Service Centre(SSC) 

7.30. The SSC is forecast to underspend by £0.15m at Q1. The main budget 
pressure for the service is Human Resources (HR) Schools Traded 
Services. Since April, three schools have given notice to withdraw from the 
service. A paper on future options for service delivery will be presented to a 
future CAB meeting. 

7.31. The estimated income shortfall from HR traded services in 2017/18 is 
£0.27m, however this overspend will partially be offset by HR Operations 
underspends. 

7.32. There remains a pressure within the SSC finance team, as a result of   
continued reliance on temporary staff to fill vacancies in key areas. This is 
causing a budget pressure of £49k for the year. 

7.33. All other forecast reported in SSC’s over and underspends are minor and 
deemed manageable within approved budget. 

 

 

Page 49



8 
 

Non Service Revenue          

7.34. An overspend of £0.79m on Pension related costs within the Non Service 
Revenue (NSR) budget relates to the minimum cash payable into the 
Pension Fund by the Council being more than the on-cost provided for 
services’ salaries budgets. 

7.35. This overspend is partially offset by underspend of £0.42m on debt 
financing costs which are expected to be lower than budget due to the 
Council utilising internal/short term borrowing.  

7.36. Final confirmation of actual agreed charges to HfH has resulted in a £1.0m 
one-off windfall for Haringey Council in 2017/18. 

 

8. Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)    Overspend £0.55m 

8.1. The DSG allocation to Haringey Council for 2017/8 is £192.1m excluding 
schools block recoupment to Academies and High Needs direct funded 
places by the Education Funding Agency. This area is reporting an 
overspend of £0.55m resulting from continuing pressures on the high needs 
block element of the Special Education Needs (SEN) grant - High Needs 
Block and a fall in grant allocation of £3.0m due to drop in pupil numbers in 
Early Years.  The service in conjunction with Schools Forum are working on 
mitigating actions. 

 

9. Capital Expenditure Forecast at Quarter 1 

9.1. At Q1, the capital programme is forecasting an underspend of £66.0m 
shown in Table 3 below. It is essential to the delivery of the Council’s longer 
term objectives that capital expenditure takes place in a timely fashion to 
ensure the Council has the ability to deliver service improvements and 
longer term revenue savings. 

9.2. Further scrutiny will take place to ensure that any capital proposals are 
capable of being delivered and that resources are allocated to their delivery. 

 
Table 3 – Capital Expenditure (Quarter 1) 
  Revised 

Budget 
2017/18 

Quarter 1 
Forecast 

Quarter 1 
Budget to 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 
Priority 1 – Children’s 13,350 7,000 6,350 

Priority 2 – Adults 2,893 920 1,973 

Priority 3 - Safe & Sustainable Places 20,048 17,500 2,548 

Priority 4 - Growth & Employment 63,310 30,000 33,310 

Priority 5 - Homes & Communities 16,431 1,100 15,331 

Priority X - Enabling 16,484 10,000 6,484 

Grand Total 132,516 66,520 65,996 

 

Page 50



9 
 

9.3. At Q1, the revised budget is equal to the agreed MTFS budget plus the 
carry forwards agreed by Cabinet at its meeting in June 2017 plus the 
adjustments set out below. 

9.4. Since Cabinet’s meeting of June 2017 there have been a number of 
adjustments to the capital budget that have increased it by £7.4m. The most 
significant of these was the addition of the public realm works at Tottenham 
Hotspurs Football Club (£5m), confirmation of the GLA’s continuing support 
for the Council’s Opportunity Investment Fund (£1.3m), support for the 
procurement of the North Tottenham DEN (£0.8) and a higher allocation of 
Disabled Facilities Grant (£0.185m).  

9.5. A high level commentary on the priority projected outturn is set out below; 

 
Priority 1 

9.6. The Schools Capital Programme is currently projecting an underspend of 
£6.0m against resources of £13.3m. Detailed plans are being developed to 
ensure that the in-year slippage position for 2017/18 is addressed so that 
the same position does not reoccur in the next financial year. 

 

Priority 2 
9.7. The majority of this priority’s budget relates to the Disabled Facilities 

Grants. The current rate of spend (£230k per quarter) implies an outturn of 
£920k. This would represent an under spend of £1,973k. This expenditure 
is supported by external grant which can be carried forward to future years.  
 

Priority 3 
9.8. It is anticipated that, with the exception of the CCTV relocation budget 

(£2.1m) this priority will have minimal slippage into the next financial year. 
 

Priority 4  
9.9. Within the overall budget are significant allocation subject to external 

dependencies including: the HRW business acquisitions budget (£5.5m) 
Strategic Site Acquisitions budget (£9.0m) and the Wards Corner CPO 
budget (£17.9m) which total £32.4m or over 50% of the budget. The timing 
of a significant amount of this expenditure has slipped to 2018/19. 
 

9.10. Of the residual budget, £30.9m, almost half of this relates to the Marsh 
Lane relocation project (£14.5m). It is unlikely that there will be significant 
spend on this project this financial year.  
 

9.11. The budgets for the Alexandra Palace heritage project (£3.3m) and general 
maintenance (£0.47m) have already been spent.  
 

9.12. Taking the above into account, and accepting that forecasting these 
budgets is problematic, it is estimated that the priority will spend c£30m this 
financial year. 
 

Page 51



10 
 

Priority 5 
9.13. This budget on temporary accommodation solutions (the development of 

temporary accommodation hostels) is currently forecasting to spend £1.1m 
against a budget of £4.3m.   
 

9.14. A strategy paper for the £11.1 capital budget for temporary accommodation 
acquisitions scheme (the purchasing of units to use as temporary 
accommodation placements) is being considered by priority 5 board. If 
adopted the strategy will accelerate expenditure. At this stage (assuming 
that the strategy is not implemented) it is anticipated that there will be 
slippage of approximately £15m total for this priority. 
 
Priority X  

9.15. At this stage the budget is forecast to spend £10m.   Within this priority the 
F2F programme has appointed a programme manager and plans are being 
developed to accelerate spend to c£3.15m. In addition, expenditure of c£2m 
on the Marcus Garvey Library project will be incurred this financial year. It 
has been confirmed that the BIP programme will spend its allocation of 
£0.8m and that the IT rolling replacement (evergreening) budget is 
estimated to spend £0.75m. 
 

10. MTFS Savings 2017/8 

10.1. The MTFS savings target for 2017/8 is £21.0m. As at the Q1 of the financial 
year, it is projected that £13.84m (67%) of the target will be achieved. Table 
4 below summarises the savings position at priority level and Appendix 3 
has a detailed breakdown of savings and, where provided, comments to 
explain reason for non-delivery of savings. 

 

Table 4 – Summary – 2017/18 MTFS Savings by Priority 

 

 

10.2. Table 4 show the total amount reported as achievable at Quarter 1 as 
£13.84m –  this represents 67% of the savings agreed in the MTFS for 
2017/18. 

New 

MTFS

Old MTFS Total Savings 

Achieved 

2017/8

Savings 

Shortfall

% 

Achieved

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Priority 1 1,437      2,694      4,131    1,430    2,701    35%

Priority 2 2,411      5,399      7,810    7,672    138       98%

Priority 3 1,685      930         2,615    2,540    75         97%

Priority 4 503         325         828       578       250       70%

Priority 5 -             765         765       765       -            100%

Priority X 612         116         728       670       58         92%

Council Wide Savings 2,036      1,650      3,686    188       3,498    5%

Total 8,684    11,879  20,563  13,843  6,720    67%

Page 52



11 
 

10.3. The factors that have resulted in shortfall in the savings programme for 

each priority area are summarised below.   

Priority 1 
10.4. Priority 1 is currently reporting that only 35% of approved savings will be 

delivered this year although work is ongoing to identify options to improve 
this position. Delays in achieving savings include £600k relating to 
supported housing which the Service has requested be deferred to the next 
financial year. Line by line comment on individual priority 1 savings, where 
provided, are detailed at Appendix 3a. 
 

Priority 2 
10.5. Priority 2 is reporting that it will deliver 98% of total approved savings in 

2017/18. To deliver this level of overall savings, the Service has committed 
to reconfigure and overachieve on some approved savings to offset shortfall 
in others. Line by line comment on individual priority 2 savings, where 
provided, are detailed at Appendix 3b. 
 

Priority Three 
10.6. Of the reported shortfall in savings achievable in 2017/18, Priority 3 have 

reported that the delay of the scoping exercise for the move to cashless 
payment project is causing the £0.1m shortfall in their Target. The Service 
is projecting to achieve 97% of approved savings. Further details on priority 
3 savings are detailed at Appendix 3c. 
 

Priority Four 
10.7. The shortfall of £0.25m relates to transitional costs linked to the HDV 

including the extended employment of a team of commercial property 
valuers from March 2017 to March 2018. The Service is expected to deliver 
70% of approved savings. Line by line comments on individual priority 4 
savings, where provided, are detailed at Appendix 3d. 
 
Priority Five 

10.8. Priority 5 is projecting that all its savings will be achieved. Further details on 
priority 5 savings are detailed at Appendix 3e. 
 
Priority X 

10.9. Priority X is projecting that 92% of MTFS savings will be achieved this 
financial year. Line by line comment on individual savings, where provided, 
are detailed at Appendix 3f. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Wide Savings 

Page 53



12 
 

10.10. Within the 2017/18 budget, there are cross cutting savings that affect more 
than one priority/service area, totalling £3.6m. The planned savings are:  
 

 redundancy (£1.5m);  

 bad debt provision (£0.7m);  

 procurement (£0.95m); and  

 senior management savings (£0.4m).  

10.11. Of the total agreed council wide savings, a significant shortfall of £3.5m 
(95%) is currently projected.  Corporate Finance is working with relevant 
service areas to develop action plans to maximise the delivery of these 
planned savings. Line by line comment on individual savings, where 
provided, are detailed at Appendix 3g. 

 

11. Budget Virements 

11.1. The budget virements requiring noting/approval are set out in Appendix 4. 
Virements that exceed £0.25m which have been included in the noting item 
section of appendix 4 relate to budget changes actioned in order to 
implement Cabinet decisions. 
 

11.2. One-off virements (£10.9m) are budget movements affecting this financial 
year only, whilst permanent virements (£1.98m) are budget movements 
which will permanently affect the cash limit of the priority.  
 

12. Contributions to strategic outcomes 

12.1. Adherence to strong and effective financial management will enable the 
Council to deliver all of its stated objectives and priorities. 

 

13. Statutory Officers Comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 

Finance and Procurement 

13.1. This is a report of the Chief Finance Officer and concerns the Council’s 
financial position. 

Legal 

13.2. The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted on this 
report.  
 

13.3. Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 imposes a statutory duty on 
the Council to monitor during the financial year its expenditure and income 
against the budget calculations. If the monitoring establishes that the 
budgetary situation has deteriorated, the Council must take such action as it 
considers necessary to deal with the situation. This could include, as set out 
in the report, action to reduce spending in the rest of the year.  

Page 54



13 
 

13.4. The Council must act reasonably and in accordance with its statutory duties 
and responsibilities when taking the necessary action to reduce the over 
spend. 

 
13.5. The Cabinet is responsible for approving virements in excess of certain 

limits as laid down in the Financial Regulations at Part 4 Section I, and 
within the Executive’s functions at Part 3 Section C, of the Constitution.  

Equalities 

13.6. The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equalities Act 
(2010) to have due regard to: 

 Tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the 
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the 
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and 
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex (formerly gender) and sexual orientation; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those 
protected characteristics and people who do not; 

 Foster good relations between people who share those 
characteristics and people who do not. 

13.7. This report provides an update on the Council’s financial position in relation 
to planned MTFS savings and mitigating actions to address current budget 
overspends. Given the impact on services of savings targets, all MTFS 
savings were subject to equalities impact assessment as reported to Full 
Council on 27th February 2017.  

13.8. Any planned mitigating actions that may have an impact beyond that 
identified within the MTFS impact assessment process should be subject to 
new equalities impact assessment. 

 

14. Use of Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Directorate Level Forecast (Quarter 1) 

Appendix 2 – HRA Forecast (Quarter 1) 

Appendix 3 – Detailed MTFS Savings Monitor (Quarter 1) 

Appendix 4 – Budget Virements (Quarter 1) 

 

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

15.1. For access to the background papers or any further information please 
contact Oladapo Shonola – Lead Officer, Budget & MTFS Programme. 

Page 55



14 
 

Revenue Budget Forecast as at Quarter 1   APPENDIX 1 

  

  

Priority for Report Directorate

Revised 

2017/8 Budget

Quarter 1 

Forecast Variance

PR1 Childrens CM Assistant Director for Commissioning 3,710,016 3,719,109 9,093

CY Director Of Children Services 51,205,447 54,376,324 3,170,877

PH Director for Public Health 6,594,672 6,614,672 20,000

SCH Assistant Director for School 2,736,970 2,736,970 0

PR1 Childrens Total 64,247,105 67,447,075 3,199,970

PR2 Adults AS Director for Adult Social Services 80,069,425 81,083,919 1,014,494

CM Assistant Director for Commissioning 2,869,382 3,091,481 222,098

PH Director for Public Health 11,030,950 11,050,550 19,600

PR2 Adults Total 93,969,757 95,225,949 1,256,192

PR3 Safe & Sustainable Places CM Assistant Director for Commissioning 240,908 306,520 65,612

OPS Director for Commercial & Operations 25,705,449 26,804,579 1,099,130

PH Director for Public Health 203,056 186,528 -16,528

PLAN Assistant Director of Planning 153,725 101,825 -51,900

PR3 Safe & Sustainable Places Total 26,303,138 27,399,452 1,096,314

PR4 Growth & Employment CM Assistant Director for Commissioning 794,330 816,552 22,221

M1 Non Service Revenue 1,900,200 1,902,200 2,000

PLAN Assistant Director of Planning 1,522,830 1,524,249 1,419

RGEN Director for Housing and Growth 1,246,646 1,394,546 147,900

RPD02 Director of Regeneration 3,320,128 3,320,128 0

V00001 Dir of Regeneration Planning,Development 467,152 467,152 0

PR4 Growth & Employment Total 9,251,286 9,424,827 173,540

PR5 Homes & Communities AH03 Community Housing Services 10,719,938 11,504,647 784,709

AH05 Housing Commissioned Services 9,695,066 9,695,066 0

PR5 Homes & Communities Total 20,415,004 21,199,713 784,709

PRX Enabling C00002 Deputy Chief Executive 438,257 438,257 0

COM Assistant Director for Strategy & Communication 634,526 692,403 57,877

COOOO F00001 Chief Operating Officer -115,251 -115,001 250

CUS Assistant Director for Customer Services 5,838,750 5,861,773 23,023

GOV Assistant Dir of Corporate Governance 2,592,903 2,592,903 0

M1 Non Service Revenue 24,241,769 23,794,562 -447,207

M113 YE Adjustment NSR 2,050,481 2,050,481 0

Other Non Service Revenue 1,700 1,700 0

RES Director for Transformation & Resources 401,398 878,572 477,174

SSC Assistant Director for Shared Service Centre 5,121,345 5,136,843 15,498

Shared Digital Services 370,204 -46,354 -416,558

PRX Enabling Total 41,576,082 41,286,138 -289,944 

General Revenue Total 255,762,372 261,983,154 6,220,782

HSE Housing Revenue Account -48,300 362,748 411,048

Haringey Total 255,714,072 262,345,902 6,631,830

Page 56



15 
 

HRA Budget Forecast as at Quarter 1    Appendix 2 

HRA Budget 2017/18                   
 2017/18 

Revised 
Budget  

 Forecast 
Spend  

 Quarter 
1 

Forecast 
Variance   

   £000's   £000's   £000's  

Income       

Dwelling Rental Income (81,838) (81,809) 29 

Non Dwelling Rents (2,997) (2,872) 125 

Hostel Rental Income (1,996) (1,914) 82 

Leasehold Service Charge Income (7,143) (7,143) 0 

Tenant Service Charge Income (10,972) (10,716) 256 

Miscellaneous Income (7,418) (7,018) 401 

Total Income (112,364) (111,471) 893 

        

Expenditure       

Non-HfH Estates Costs 7,485 7,823 338 

Housing Management Costs & NNDR 6,113 5,866 (247) 

Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 0 

Bad Debt Provision 1,022 1,022 0 

Hostel Expenditure 579 579 0 

Supported Housing 135 250 115 

Community Alarm 1,298 1,411 113 

Regeneration Team Recharge 810 859 49 

Other Property Costs 2,438 1,956 (481) 

General Fund Recharges 4,917 4,549 (368) 

Capital Financing Costs 12,400 12,400 0 

Depreciation Charge 18,000 18,000 0 

Management Fee 40,135 40,135 0 

Total Expenditure 95,332 94,850 (482) 

        

(Surplus) for the year on HRA services (17,032) (16,621) 411 

Page 57



 

16 
 

MTFS Savings - P1 – Children’          Appendix 3a  

  

Ref  Proposal 

Savings 

Target 

2017-18 

£000’s 

Risk of 

delay

Risk of 

deliveri

ng full 

saving

Overall 

risk RAG

Overall 

risk RAG

Firm 

Commitment 

for savings 

achieveable  

2017/18 

£'000

Details of impact of under achievement of savings and 

mitigating actions

P1 - Childrens

1.1 Service Redesign & Workforce              300            1            2 2  Green                80 

There is a plan to deliver this saving in year by providing an enhanced 

service offer at a reduced cost. The service has explored all savings 

opportunities and there is no saving possible due to the level of 

caseload and the need to ensure the service is not at risk. 

The agency/establishment analysis has confirmed there is no saving 

to yield from conversions. However, there will be a piece of work to 

look at vacancies, with a view to identifying posts that have not been 

filled for some time and could be deleted. Although there are no plans 

yet in place, it is thought that this will not be too challenging given it 

would equate to a reduction of 3 staff by April 2018. Work underway to 

identify workforce design opportunities

1.2 Early Help & Targeted Response                62            1            1 1  Green                62 
 The model / formula for the delivery of savings is yet to be finalised.  

Firm details will be available once agreed. 

1.3 Family Group Conferencing              200            2            2 4  Green             200 

1.4 Family Based Placements              100           -             -   0                 -   

There will be no savings in 2017/18, as the NRS contract failed.  

Attempts to recommission to another provider was not successful. In-

house team to take this forward.  Recruitment will effectively start in 

Sept 2017, as there is no recruitment activity over the Summer 

holidays.

1.5 Care Leavers - Semi Independent Living                25            3            3 9
 Amber/ 

Green 
                -   

The work of the Design Council and YAS will develop a more effective 

Care Leaver offer. The offer will take into account the reduced budget 

envelope, therefore enabling the saving to be achieved. However, until 

the offer is developed and agreed, it is difficult to confirm the 

possibility of the saving in terms of proportion of saving and period 

achieved.

In addition, there are volume pressures in the service, further 

compounding the saving challenge.

1.6
Adoption and Special Guardianship Order 

payments
             150            3            3 9

 

Amber/Gr

een 

                -   

Proposals for a new policy for Special Guardians is currently being 

drafted for Cabinet / Member decision.  The risk that a fundamental 

change in the payment policy may lead to legal action and deter 

prospective Special Guardians means that a less ambitious approach 

may have to be adopted, with a corresponding impact on the level of 

savings.  A more effective review system should deliver savings but 

unable to estimate at this stage.  This is likely to be in future years.

1.7 Supported Housing              600            4            2 8
 

Amber/Gr
                -    Project plan scheduled for full implementation by 2018/19 

1.8 New Models of Care                 -              1            1 1  Green 

1.9
Schools & Learning (Manage loss of Education 

Services Grant)
                -             -             -   0

Subtotal (New MTFS)          1,437             342 

OLD MTFS (GREEN SAVINGS)

1

Early Years 

- remodel Childrens Centres 

- review borough wide provision of childcare

             150           -             -   0                 -   

3

Public Health - 5-19

- recommissioning of services with improved 

efficiency including school nursing and health 

visiting

             376            1            1              1             376 

9

Services to Schools

- Increasing trading activity and providing high 

quality services.

- Review service offer 

             148            3            5 15

 

Amber/Re

d 

            180 

There has been commitment from members to keep Pendarren open 

for at least one more (2017/19) academic year while a steeriogn 

group of members makes a final decision on its future having regard 

to all material considerations.  This decsion is expected in alte 

summer 2017.

Pendarren              220           -             -   0                 -   

New Model for Social Care Delivery              900            3            3 9
 Amber/ 

Green 
            148 

There are a number of services where the viabilty going forward is 

unknown, ie Schools HR and CPD offer due to the clusre of the PDC 

and uncertainly over the long term future of Pendarren

7

Special Educational Needs & Disabilities

- Withdraw from direct management of Haslemere 

and provide respite in different ways

- increased personalisation giving parents more 

choice and control

- address high cost of out of borough school 

placements

             900            4            3 12
 Amber/ 

Red 
            384 

 Savings will not be fully achieved in full in current year, due to delays 

in restructuring.  Some savings remain challenging. 

Subtotal (Old MTFS)          2,694          1,088 

Total          4,131          1,430 

P
age 58



 

17 
 

MTFS Savings - P2 - Adults             Appendix 3b 

  

Ref  Proposal 

Savings 

Target 

2017-18 

£000’s 

Risk of 

delay

Risk of 

deliveri

ng full 

saving

Overall 

risk RAG

Firm 

Commitme

nt 

for 

savings 

achieveabl

e for 

2017/18

£'000

Details of impact of under achievement of savings and 

mitigating actions

P2 - Adults 0

2.1 Supported Housing Review              475            2            3 6
 Amber/ 

Green 
               98 

 Work well underway to maximise use of voids for higher level need 

and to ensure users in the most cost effective options.  £98k relates to 

cashable in-year savings only.   

2.2 Osborne Grove                 -   0

 There will be no savings from Osborne Grove in this financial year. 

Subject to the outcome of a Cabinet decision on closure in the 

Autumn and subsequent decision to re-commisison there may be 

some savings possible.  

2.3 Fees and charges review              199            5            5 25  Red             100   

2.4 Technology Improvement              750            3            3 9
 Amber/ 

Green 
            160 

 Work is well underway, although there has been slippage.  £160k 

relates to in-year cashable savings to ASC only - there may be 

additional savings to the HRA rather than the General Fund.  

2.5 Market efficiencies              987            5            5 25  Red             500 
 Work is underway with the market to ensure we have the best model 

of care. Implementation will depend on market response.  

2.6 New Models of Care 0

Subtotal (New MTFS)          2,411             858 

OLD MTFS (GREEN SAVINGS) 0

11 Closure of Haven and Grange              440            3            3 9
 Amber/ 

Green 
            440   

12 LD Day Opportunities Redesign (LBH provision)          1,257            3            3 9
 Amber/ 

Green 
         1,257   

15 Extra Care Provision              703            5            5 25  Red             703   

13 Supported Living Provision          1,083            2            4 8
 Amber/ 

Green 
            500   

16

New Model for Care Management

- increased integration with health and other 

agencies

             970            1            1 1  Green             970   

         14  Promoting Independence Reviews                63            3            5 15
 Amber/ 

Red 
         1,203   

TOTAL ADULTS          4,516          5,073 

PUBLIC HEALTH

19

Voluntary Sector

- review support to Voluntary Sector

- provide help to local organisations to be more self 

sufficient and find other funding

             200            5            5 25  Red             200  Director raise questions on this saving please can you confirm? 

20

Healthy Life Expectancy

- Bringing separate services (stop smoking, 

exercise etc) together to improve value for money

               47            1            1 1  Green                47  Savings Achieved 

21

Substance Misuse - Public Health/Other

- Maintain core clinical services with efficiency 

savings

- focus on recovery with more reliance on peer 

support and mainstream services

- reduce support to hospitals to manage alcohol 

related admissions and detoxification

             386            1            1 1  Green             386  Savings Achieved 

24

Public Health

- restructure the Public Health team to improve 

efficiency

             250            1            1 1  Green             250  Director raise questions on this saving please can you confirm? 

Total Public Health              883             883 

Subtotal (Old MTFS)          5,399          6,814 

Total          7,810          7,672 

P
age 59



 

18 
 

 

MTFS Savings - P3 - Cleaner and Safer Communities         Appendix 3c 

 

  

Ref  Proposal 

Savings 

Target 

2017-18 

£000’s 

Risk of 

delay

Risk of 

deliveri

ng full 

saving

Overall 

risk RAG

Firm 

Commitme

nt 

for 

savings 

achieveabl

e for 

2017/18

£'000

Details of impact of under achievement of savings and 

mitigating actions

P3 - Cleaner and Safer 0

3.1 Charge Green Waste - income generation              375            1            3 3  Green             375 
 Delay in issuing new charges to residents. Cabinet to review on 30th 

June '17. 

3.2 Charging for Bulky Household Waste              300            1            2 2  Green             300   

3.3 Charging for Replacement Wheelie Bins              100            1            1 1  Green             100 
 Going Live, chancellors have asked for concession for those on 

income support and pensioners 

3.4
Charging for recycling bins and increasing residual 

bins for RSLs, Managing Agents, Developers etc...
               50            1            1 1  Green                50   

3.5
Flats Above Shops

–Provision of bags  - Service reduction
             120            1            1 1  Green             120   

3.6
Reduce Outreach/ Education team  

- Service reduction
               50            1            2 2  Green                50   

3.7
Closure of Park View Road R&R  

- Service reduction
             115            2            2 4  Green             115 

 NLWA have recently indicated acceptance of closure end of October 

2017 (One month of savings at risk). 

3.8 Veolia Operational Efficiencies              200            2            2 4  Green             200  Awaiting worked up proposals from Veolia. 

3.9 Rationalisation of Parking Visitor Permits              125            1            1 1  Green             125   

3.10
Parking Enforcement

- new operating model
                -   0                 -    Rejected by Cabinet 

3.11
Relocation of Parking/CCTV processes and 

appeals
0                 -   

 £75k savings at risk because of delay of scoping exercise for the 

project. 

3.12 Move to Cashless Parking              150            3            4 12
 Amber/ 

Red 
               75  capital spend, approved by Transformation board 

3.13
Move to Online Parking Permit Applications & 

Visitor Permits
                -   0                 -     

3.14 Parking New IT Platform                 -   0                 -     

3.15 Increase in CO2 Parking Permit Charge              100            1            1 1  Green             100  proposal to g to DVLA 13 band permit 

Subtotal (New MTFS)          1,685          1,610 

OLD MTFS (GREEN SAVINGS) 0

25 Increasing parking debt recovery              150            1            1 1  Green             150   

28 Efficiency savings and delivery review of the Parks              200            1            1 1  Green             200   

43 Increase in Parking Charges                50            1            1 1  Green                50   

37 Restructure of the Emergency Planning Team                50            1            1 1  Green                50   

35
Reorganisation of Community Safety and 

Antisocial Behaviour Team (ASBAT)
             150            1            1 1  Green             150   

60
Unification - Streamline and integrate housing and 

related functions.
               55            1            1 1  Green                55   

Increased income from licensing and enforcement 

action
               25            3            3 9

 Amber/ 

Green 
               25 

 Most of this savings applies to pest control and there was a lack of 

demand. Most Pest control commences in summer. Delays in getting 

required datas. DCLG not interested in ward areas but street levels. 

34
Reductions in back office technical and 

administrative support
             250            1            1 1  Green             250   

Subtotal (Old MTFS)              930             930 

Total          2,615          2,540 

P
age 60



 

19 
 

 

MTFS Savings  P4 Growth and Employment          Appendix 3d 

 

 

  

Ref  Proposal 

Savings 

Target 

2017-18 

£000’s 

Risk of 

delay

Risk of 

deliveri

ng full 

saving

Overall 

risk RAG

Firm 

Commitme

nt 

for 

savings 

achieveabl

e for 

2017/18

£'000

Details of impact of under achievement of savings and 

mitigating actions

P4 - Growth & Employment 0

4.1 Tottenham Regeneration programme              213            1            1 1  Green             213  Achieved: Savings already taken from the budget 

4.2
Planning service                                                      

- Increase in planning income
               40            2            1 2  Green                40  savings achieved 

4.3
Corporate projects                                                        

- Transfer of functions to HDV 
             250            5            3 15                 -   

 Mitigating action: because the overspend relates to the transition to 

the HDV costs will be rolled into the Director Regen and Growth’s 

HDV Transformation Fund bid and funds vired across to balance the 

budget once secured 

Subtotal (New MTFS)              503             253 

OLD MTFS (GREEN SAVINGS)

48
Planning - Wider restructure reducing to core 

service
               75            1            1 1  Green                75  savings achieved 

49
Restructure Economic Development Team to 

deliver new Strategy
             250            1            1 1  Green             250   

Subtotal (Old MTFS)              325             325 

Total              828             578 

P
age 61



 

20 
 

MTFS Savings  - P5 - Housing            Appendix 3e 

 

 

  

Ref  Proposal 

Savings 

Target 

2017-18 

£000’s 

Risk of 

delay

Risk of 

deliveri

ng full 

saving

Overall 

risk RAG

Firm 

Commitme

nt 

for 

savings 

achieveabl

e for 

2017/18

£'000

Details of impact of under achievement of savings and 

mitigating actions

P5 - Housing

OLD MTFS (GREEN SAVINGS)

59 Housing Related Support commissioning efficiencies              470            2            3 6
 Amber/ 

Green  
            470   

60
Unification - Streamline and integrate housing and 

related functions.
               95            2            3 6

 Amber/ 

Green 
               95   

61 Achieve year on year efficiencies              200            2            3 6
 Amber/ 

Green 
            200   

Total              765             765 

P
age 62



 

21 
 

MTFS Savings                Appendix 3f 

  

Ref  Proposal 

Savings 

Target 

2017-18 

£000’s 

Risk of 

delay

Risk of 

deliveri

ng full 

saving

Overall 

risk RAG

Firm 

Commitme

nt 

for 

savings 

achieveabl

e for 

2017/18

£'000

Details of impact of under achievement of savings and 

mitigating actions

PX - Enabling

6.1

Legal Services

- Reduction in staffing and other related 

expenditure

                -             -             -   0                 -     

6.2
Audit and Risk Management

- reduction in cost on the external audit contract
               11            1            1 1  Green                11   

6.3
Democratic Services

- reduction in staffing
               40            1            2 2  Green                40   

6.4
Shared Service Centre Business Support

- reduction in staffing
             300            1            1 1  Green             300   

6.5
Shared Service Centre 

- new delivery model for shared services
           2            2 4  Green                 -    Not relevant for 2017/8 

6.6
Reduce Opening Hours in our six branch libraries 

to 36 hours per week
                -             -             -   0                 -    this has been rejected at cabinet 

6.7 Shared Service Offer for Customer Services                 -              3            3 9
 Amber/ 

Green 
                -   

 Feasibility study for 2018/9 savings, there is a lot work about to start 

but its significant. 

6.10 Translation and Interpreting Service - new contract                41            1            1 1  Green                41                                                                                                                     -   

6.11 Closure of internal Print Room                 -             -             -   0                 -     

6.12 Communications - reduction in staffing                53            1            1 1  Green                53   

6.13 Income generation – Advertising and Sponsorship                15            1            1 1  Green                15   

6.15 Insurance              152            1            1 1  Green             152   

Subtotal (New MTFS)              612             612 

OLD MTFS (GREEN SAVINGS)

73c SSC Restructure (Mark Rudd)                 -     

73d Accounts Payable Restructure (Mark Rudd)              116           -             -                   -     

Subtotal (Old MTFS)              116                 -   

Total              728             612 

P
age 63



 

22 
 

MTFS Savings                Appendix 3g 

 

 

Ref  Proposal 

Savings 

Target 

2017-18 

£000’s 

Risk of 

delay

Risk of 

deliveri

ng full 

saving

Overall 

risk RAG

Firm 

Commitme

nt 

for 

savings 

achieveabl

e for 

2017/18

£'000

Details of impact of under achievement of savings and 

mitigating actions

Corporate Savings

6.8 Senior Management Savings              400            3            3 9
 Amber/ 

Green 
            138 

 Partial savings, plans are in place to achieve the remainder of the 

savings in-year 

6.9 Alexandra House - Decant            4            2 8
 Amber/ 

Green 
                -   

6.14 Professional Development Centre              136           -             -   0                 -   

6.16 Voluntary Severance Savings          1,500            2            5 10
 Amber/ 

Green 
               50 

Redundancy savings scheme was submitted to Cabinet as a 

corporate initiative to deliver savings. However, it appears that 

Services have also counted the same savings in their savings 

submission to Council resulting in double counting. As at 31 May 

2017, only £50k of the total has been confirmed as deliverable. 

Corporate Finance continues to do the work required to analyse 

available information to identify further savings that may be 

recoverable under this savings initiative.

Subtotal (New MTFS)          2,036             188 

OLD MTFS (GREEN SAVINGS)

74 BIP Commercial/ Organisation Wide: Barry Phelps              950           -             -   0                 -   

Procurement savings was initiated by the Procurement team, but 

savings to be recovered from service budgets. The process for 

determining recoverable savings from service budgets is ongoing. 

There has also been a delay to the implementation of the recruitment 

advertising savings  

Bad Debt Provision              700            3            4 12
 Amber/ 

Red 
                -   

Actions in place.The full £700k cannot be achieved in 17/18 and 

some will either need to be re-profiled to 18/19+ or identified as 

unachievable.  Greater clarity on this should be available mid Sept.

Brexit & on-going austerity could lead to increased customers falling 

into arrears. 

Services are failing to comply with new processes

Subtotal (Old MTFS)          1,650                 -   

Total          3,686             188 

Grand Total        20,563        13,597 

P
age 64



 

23 
 

Virements for Cabinet Noting and Approval                  Appendix 4  

 

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67 Agenda Item 10

mailto:Sarah.lovell@haringey.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 68



Page 69



 

 

 

 

 ‟

 

 

 

Page 70



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



 

 

 

 

Page 72



 

Page 73



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 74



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



 
- 

- 
- 

- 

- 

- 

 
- 
- 
- 

- 

 
- 

Page 76



 

 

 

Page 77



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

 

 

Page 79



 

 

 

Page 80



 

 

 

 

Page 81



Page 82



 

 

 

Page 83



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 84



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



Page 86



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



 

 
- 
- 
- 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



‟

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 94



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



 

 

 

 

Page 96



Page 97



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



 

 

 

Page 99



Page 100



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 102



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



 

 

 

Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



 

Page 110



 

Page 111



 

 
‟

 ‟

 

 

 

Page 112



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



 

Page 114



11

19 Garden17 Garden
13 Garden

W
h
ite

 H
a
rt L

a
n
e

 S
ta

tio
n

WHITEHALL STREET

BEAUFOY R
OAD

1 to 8 Brooklyn

W
IL

L
IA

M
 S

T
R

E
E

T

T
E

N
T

E
R

D
E

N
 R

O
A

D
MOSELLE STREETMoselle House

C
A

S
T

L
E

F
O

R
D

 C
L

O
S

E

MOSELLE PLACE

P
e

a
c
o
c
k E

s
ta

te

P
e

a
c
o
c
k E

s
ta

te

GRETTON ROAD

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

HEADCORN ROAD

BRUNSWICK SQUARE

WHITE HART LANE

C
H

A
P

E
L
 P

L
A

C
E

B
R

A
D

F
O

R
D

 C
L

O
S

E

P
R

E
T

O
R

IA
 R

O
A

D

BRERETON ROAD

Apartments

Haringey Sixth Form Centre

NORTHUMBERLAND PARK

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
 P

A
R

K

P
R

E
T

O
R

IA
 R

O
A

D

COLLEGE ROAD

1
 t

o
 8

 B
e

rg
a
n

PENSHURST

St Francis de Sales RC

BILL NICHOLSON

Haringey Irish Centre

DURBAN ROAD

21b to 21c

L
O

V
E

 L
A

N
E

C
O

O
P

E
R

A
G

E
 C

L
O

S
E

St Francis de Sales

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

BRANTWOOD ROAD

Terra
ce

4
6
 t
o
 4

8

A
L

T
A

IR
 C

L
O

S
E

1 to 10

9 to 39

Kathleen Ferrier

Beachcroft Court

1 to 60

1 to 60

1 to 19

1 to 60

H
IG

H
 R

O
A

D

T
h
e

 L
in

d
a

l e
s

PERCIVAL

8
2

3
 t

o
 8

2
9

Enterprise Park

H
IG

H
 R

O
A

D

2 to 32

BENNETTS CLOSE

8
5

5
 t

o
 8

6
3

2
 t
o
 2

8

Williams House

El Sub Sta

8
5

2
 to

 8
5

8

31 to 61

63 to 89

A
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

Builders Yard

Charles House

W
hite

Mallory Court

Builders Yard

Builders Yard

Infant School

CLOSE

1 to 5

1 to 6

Ermine House

2
5

 t
o
 2

6

3 to 29

ORCHARD

S
h

e
lte

r

Supermarket

1 to 19

7
7

9
 7

8
1

27 to 28

33 to 34

S
h

e
lte

r

5
3

 to
 5

9

2
8

 to
 3

4

4
1

 to
 4

6
3

5
 to

 4
0

4
7

 to
 5

2

El Sub Sta

Job Centre

El Sub Sta

2
2

 t o
 3

2

Play Area

Community

Play Area

Hart

1
 t

o
 1

2

1 to 8

1
3

 t
o

 2
3

2
5

 t
o

 3
9

COURT

2 to 16

Post

1 3 5

8
0

3
 8

0
5

ROEBUCK

1
 t

o
 1

1

Surgery

Sub Sta

Railway

Sub Sta

Library

Shelter

Shelter

1 to 44
1 to 21

Sub Sta

Carbery

PLACE

R
O

A
D

65a

Church

Centre

Tavern

Presby

744a

R
O

A
D

12.8m

Depot

12.3m

11.6m

Posts

11.1m

14.9m

13.2m

Works

Works

11.7m

Works

Tanks

11.0m

Court

House

12.7m

Wedge

13.1m

11.9m

Posts

771a

Works

12.2m

12.5m

13.4m

1
0
0

1
0
2

1
2
2

1
1
2

1
9

a

7
4

6

2
1

a

3 5

8
2

0
a

7
7
6

8
6
0

8
6
2

34a

7
7
4

731

741

7
2
9

(PH)

TCBs

Bank

74

TCBs

65

7
4
2

7
4
4

7
4
8

34a

72b

7
7

7

743

7
5

9

751

8
6

4

70

CW

8
6

5

60

771

769

63

CF

57

8
6

7
8

6
9

8
5

1

7
9

0

8
5

0

8
4

3
8

4
1

8
3

3
8

3
1

835

845

839

7
8

8
0

6

7
9

7

7
5

0

WAY

18

80

7
9

5
7

9
3

8
1

4
8

2
2

8
2

4
8

2
8

to

to

21

to

16

26
to

10

31

to

to

11

25

8
2

0

8
1

1
7

9
1

18

39

24

8
4

0

8
0

9

11

35

20
15

30

19

8
6

30

to

51
57 to

50

8
7

to 8
1

to

to

7
5

2
2

37

30

69 56

8
2

to

44

62

1
3

21

31

40

68

8
0

7

23

9
2

8
0

9
2

8
3

8
8

2
6

to

74

63

8
2

1
8

0
1

8
0

2

8
3

0
8

1
6

1
2

1
5

1
4

1
6

TCB

8
1

8

Chy

8
1

3

Sub
Sta

11

2
1

4
9

5
3

2
0

1
9

1
8

3
6

4
0

4
5

2
6

10

13

1
3

33

24
14

38

23

12

34

2
1

43

1a

1
4

46

2
1

11

36
34

to

48

28

50

18
to

1
5

1
7

1
2

3
5

3
4

60

3129

32

4
4

to

52

65

15

5
6

6
7

13

to

FB

1
8

2
0

1
9

1
5

13

1
4

1
3

6

23

SP

4

SP

FB

PH

LB

WB

LB

FB

El

PH

PH

El

SP

PH

El

PH

PO

FW

CF

CW

El

3
2

3

7

1

8

2

1

8

2

6

1

4
6

8

5

2

4
8

3
2

1
7

6

1

1

1

8

2

1

1

4

4

7

2

9 8

3

7

1
7

1

7

2 1

53

Haringey Council

STRATEGIC PROPERTY

HIGH ROAD WEST

Overlay : PropTerLive + RegenJAD Scale  1:1750@A3

Plan produced by Janice Dabinett on 30/08/2017 BVES Drawing No. BVES A3 misc.

Shaded pink - Haringey Council freehold ownership.
Shaded green - Haringey Council leasehold ownership
Red dot - Over 21yr lease out
Green dot - Over 21yr lease in
Shaded brown - Other Council interest (right of way, held in trust etc.)
Hatched grey - Query

Blue verging - High Road West boundary

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright 2017 LBH. All rights reserved. Licence number 100019199

HARINGEY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP in vicinity of

Scale
0 10 20 30 40 50 m

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5: OWNERSHIP OF PROPERTIES FOR INCLUSION IN HIGH ROAD WEST 

SECTION 1 – HRA PROPERTIES   

Composition of homes on the Love Lane estate (August 2017) is summarised as follows and 

represent HRA ownership in relation to the High Road West scheme.  Properties in the General Fund 

and acquired for Planning purposes are included in section 2 below. Reference numbers refer to the 

Land Referencing plan at the end of this appendix. 

Composition of Homes by ownership / tenure 
 

Resident Leaseholder 31 

Non-resident leaseholder 45 

Secure tenant 65 

Temporary Accommodation (Council 
owned) 156 

TOTAL 297 

 

In addition to this, the HRA portfolio includes the following properties within the High Road West 

scheme. 

- Coombes Croft Library 

- Car parking including garages adjacent to 3 Whitehall Street 

- Love Lane estate ‘grounds’ 

- British Queen PH and adjoining residential unit at 21 Love Lane 

- Southern edge of garages on Love Lane (that area of garages not already approved for 

transfer as part of White Hart Lane station) 

Homes and other HRA land is included below, witha detailed breakdown of units by tenure included 

below this. 

Page 117



LB Haringey land included in referencing for the High Road West Scheme– excluding public highway 

 

Plot 
No 

Description in land 
referencing schedule 

Current 
Use 

 

Statutory powers under which land held Consultation 

97 Residential premises (9 to 
39 (odd) White Hart Lane) 

part of:- 

(Title Number: 
MX321986) 

16 flats 

(tenants 
and long 
lessees) 

HRA – residential block 

 

2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

117 Residential premises 
(Charles House, Love 
Lane) 

part of:- 

(Title Number: 
MX321986) 

60 flats 

(tenants 
and long 
lessees)) 

HRA – residential block + amenity land 

 

2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

119 Residential premises 
(Moselle House, 1 to 60 
Moselle Street) 

part of:- 

(Title Number: 
MX321986) 

60 flats 

(tenants 
and long 
lessees) 

HRA – residential block 

 

2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

121 Land, residential 
premises, (2 -32 (even) 
Whitehall Street and 
Ermine House) 

part of:- 

(Title Numbers: 
NGL224482 & 
MX321986) 

76 flats 

(tenants 
and long 
lessees)) 

HRA – residential block + amenity land 

 

2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

P
age 118



138 Coombes Croft Library 
and residential premises 
(1 to 19 Kathleen Ferrier 
Court, Brereton Road) 

(Title Number: 
NGL224482) 

Library & 
19 flats 

(tenants 
and long 
lessees) 

HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

139 Residential premises (4 to 
18 (even) Brereton Road) 

(Title Number: 
MX227110) 

9 flats 

(tenants 
and long 
lessees) 

HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

140 Land (west of 4- 18 
(even) Brereton Road and 
south of 31 to 61 
Whitehall Street) 

(Title Numbers: 
MX412906; MX410474; 
MX338406; MX282512; 
MX27965 & MX467646) 

 HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

143 Car park, pathways and 
residential premises (2 to 
28 (even) Orchard Place 
and part of 63 to 89 (odd) 
Whitehall Street) 

(Title Numbers: 
AGL158913 & 
MX219994) 

Car Park & 
28 flats 

(tenants 
and long 
lessees, 
including 
Newlon 
Housing 
Trust) 

HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

144 Access way, car park and 
footbridge (west of 2 to 28 
(even) Orchard Place) 

(Title Number: 
MX475360) 

 HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

 

P
age 119



145 Land and car park (west 
of 2 to 28 (even) Orchard 
Place) 

(Title Number: 
MX479263) 

 HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

 

147 Car park and land (north 
of 63 to 89 (odd) 
Whitehall Street) 

(Title Number: 
NGL30731) 

 HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

 

151 Footway and part of 
residential premises (63 
to 89 (odd) Whitehall 
Street) 

(Title Number: 
NGL224482) 

 

 

(residential 
part =plot 
143) 

HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

152 Footway and residential 
premises (3 to 61 (odd) 
Whitehall Street) 

(Title Number: 
MX467643) 

30 flats 

(tenants 
and long 
lessees) 

HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

153 Garages (east side 3 
Whitehall Street) 

(Title Number: 
MX471871) 

 HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

 

157 Land, garages and 
residential premises (21 
Love Lane) 

(Title Number: 
MX321986) 

Public 
House  

Residential 

HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

2017 Ownership including 
s.105 

P
age 120



172 Access way and private 
car parking spaces (31 
Headcorn Road) 

(Title Number: MX34149) 

 HRA 2015 Masterplan including 
s105.  

 

 

 

P
age 121



 

Breakdown of Units on Love Lane Estate 

The breakdown of these ownership / tenures is indicated below, with individual properties shown. 

RESIDENT LEASEHOLDERS 

12 Brereton Road London N17 8BY Leaseholder YES 

18 Brereton Road London N17 8BY Leaseholder YES 

10 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

London N17 8BY Leaseholder YES 

14 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

London N17 8BY Leaseholder YES 

15 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

London N17 8BY Leaseholder YES 

18 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

London N17 8BY Leaseholder YES 

7 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

London N17 8BY Leaseholder YES 

4 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

London N17 8BY Leaseholder YES 

47 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Leaseholder YES 

18 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Leaseholder YES 

30 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Leaseholder YES 

6 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder YES 

12 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder YES 

14 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder YES 

16 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder YES 

28 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder YES 

27 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU Leaseholder YES 

29 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU Leaseholder YES 

31 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU Leaseholder YES 

4 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder YES 

11 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder YES 

31 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder YES 

39 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder YES 

43 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder YES 

63 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder YES 

77 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder YES 

85 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder YES 

3 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD Leaseholder YES 

33 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD Leaseholder YES 

51 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD Leaseholder YES 

60 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD Leaseholder YES 

Page 122



 

 

NON-RESIDENT LEASEHOLDERS 

4 Brereton Road London N17 8BY Leaseholder NO 

6 Brereton Road London N17 8BY Leaseholder NO 

10 Brereton Road London N17 8DA Leaseholder NO 

13 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

London N17 8BY Leaseholder NO 

8 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8BY Leaseholder NO 

6 Kathleen Ferrier Court, 
Brereton Road 

London N17 8BY Leaseholder NO 

1 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB Leaseholder NO 

11 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB Leaseholder NO 

19 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB Leaseholder NO 

30 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB Leaseholder NO 

32 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB Leaseholder NO 

37 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB Leaseholder NO 

21 Charles House, Love Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DB Leaseholder NO 

3 Ermine House, Moselle Street Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DE Leaseholder NO 

15 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Leaseholder NO 

17 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Leaseholder NO 

24 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Leaseholder NO 

4 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder NO 

10 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder NO 

24 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder NO 

26 Orchard Place London N17 8BH Leaseholder NO 

15 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU Leaseholder NO 

21 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU Leaseholder NO 

23 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU Leaseholder NO 

87 Whitehall Street Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

19 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU Leaseholder NO 

2 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

3 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

7 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

10 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

13 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

14 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

Page 123



15 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

16 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

17 Whitehall Street Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

18 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

27 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

30 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

51 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

57 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

61 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

67 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

81 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Leaseholder NO 

42 Moselle House, William Street Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DD Leaseholder NO 

39 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD Leaseholder NO 

 

SECURE COUNCIL TENANTS 

16 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY Council tenant 

18 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

24 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

8 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

15 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

19 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

21 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

33 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 
8DU 

Council tenant 

31 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

23 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

14 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

36 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

22 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

58 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

6 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

Page 124



49 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

13 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

56 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

31 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

38 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

35 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 
8DU 

Council tenant 

25 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

43 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

43 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

2 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

54 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

12 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

35 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

51 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

60 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

43 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

44 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

45 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

48 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

50 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

10 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

14 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

27 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

1 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

40 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

56 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE Council tenant 

22 Orchard Place London N17 
8BH 

Council tenant 

9 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 
8DU 

Council tenant 

35 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

58 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

Page 125



29 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Council tenant 

45 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Council tenant 

49 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Council tenant 

75 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP Council tenant 

52 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

41 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

6 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

30 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

40 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

53 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

20 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

44 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

10 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

17 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

26 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

3 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

47 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

2 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

9 Moselle House, William Street London N17 
8DD 

Council tenant 

33 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 
8DB 

Council tenant 

 

COUNCIL TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION TENANTS 

8 Brereton Road London N17 8BY TA tenant 

14 Brereton Road London N17 8BY TA tenant 

16 Brereton Road London N17 8DA TA tenant 

11 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

12 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

17 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

Page 126



19 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

9 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

5 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

3 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

2 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

1 Kathleen Ferrier Court, Brereton 
Road 

London N17 8BY TA tenant 

56 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

7 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

13 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

8 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

14 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

16 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

37 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU TA tenant 

27 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

28 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

34 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

41 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

44 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

46 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

59 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

52 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

50 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

12 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

38 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

11 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

55 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

45 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

28 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

59 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

55 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

19 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

23 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

7 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

41 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

46 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

49 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

51 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

52 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

53 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

Page 127



54 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

55 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

57 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

58 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

59 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

60 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

2 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

4 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

5 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

6 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

8 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

9 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

11 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

12 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

13 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

16 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

20 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

21 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

22 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

25 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

26 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

28 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

29 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

31 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

32 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

33 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

34 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

35 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

36 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

37 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

42 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

38 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

39 Ermine House, Moselle Street London N17 8DE TA tenant 

2 Orchard Place London N17 8BH TA tenant 

8 Orchard Place London N17 8BH TA tenant 

18 Orchard Place London N17 8BH TA tenant 

20 Orchard Place London N17 8BH TA tenant 

11 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU TA tenant 

13 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU TA tenant 

17 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU TA tenant 

25 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

47 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

Page 128



25 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU TA tenant 

45 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

1 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

7 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

16 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

54 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

26 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

32 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

48 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

49 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

18 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

5 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

6 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

8 Whitehall Street Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8BP TA tenant 

9 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

12 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

19 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

20 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

21 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

22 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

23 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

24 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

25 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

26 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

28 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

32 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

33 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

35 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

37 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

41 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

47 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

53 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

55 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

59 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

65 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

69 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

71 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

73 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

79 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

83 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

89 Whitehall Street London N17 8BP TA tenant 

20 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

23 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

Page 129



40 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

34 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

53 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

4 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

46 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

15 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

29 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

5 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

39 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

57 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

22 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

10 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

24 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

27 Moselle House, William Street Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DD TA tenant 

5 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

48 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

42 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

17 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

39 White Hart Lane Tottenham, 
London 

N17 8DU TA tenant 

37 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

29 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

9 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

50 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

4 Charles House, Love Lane London N17 8DB TA tenant 

36 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

57 Moselle House, William Street London N17 8DD TA tenant 

 

Page 130



Appendix 5: OWNERSHIP OF PROPERTIES FOR INCLUSION IN HIGH ROAD WEST 

SECTION 2 – GENERAL FUND AND PLANNING USE PROPERTIES   

Properties included in the Haringey Council ‘General Fund’ or acquired for Planning Purposes. 

Plot 
No 

Description in land 
referencing schedule 

Current 
Use 

 

Statutory powers under which land held Consultation 

18 1 square metres, or 
thereabouts, of residential 
and commercial premises 
(831-833 High Road) 

(Title Number: 
MX139783) 

 GF 2015 Masterplan 
including s105.  

 

87 The Grange Community 
Hub (32-34 White Hart 
Lane) 

(Title Number: 
NGL32041) 

Community 
use 

GF 2015 Masterplan 
including s105.  

 

97 Access way (access road 
fronting block (adopted 
highway)) 

part of:- 

(Title Number: 
MX321986) 

 GF 2015 Masterplan 
including s105.  

 

117 Footway, car park 
(access road (Adopted 
highway)) 

part of:- 

(Title Number: 
MX321986) 

 GF 2015 Masterplan 
including s105.  

 

P
age 131



121 Land and car park adj to 
(2 -32 (even) Whitehall 
Street and Ermine House) 

part of:- 

(Title Numbers: 
NGL224482 & 
MX321986) 

 GF – access road (Adopted highway) 2015 Masterplan 
including s105.  

 

136 Residential and 
commercial premises 
(731 High Road) 

(Title Number: 
MX166584) 

Residential 
and 
commercial 

GF  2015 Masterplan 

154 Land (rear of 741 High 
Road) 

(Title Number: 
MX166584) 

 GF – Acquired with 731 High Rd 2015 Masterplan 
including s105.  

 

174 Play area and community 
centre (Grace Day Care 
Centre and Church, south 
of 1 to 19 (odd) Penshurst 
Road) 

(Title Numbers: 
NGL56432; NGL34579; 
MX453543; MX423984; 
MX402451; MX402317; 
MX401528; MX355476; 
MX304795; MX169367 & 
NGL42495) 

Community GF 2015 Masterplan 

175 Part of car park (east of 
100 Whitehall Street) 

part of:- 

 GF 2015 Masterplan 

P
age 132



(Title Numbers: 
MX344842; MX284325; 
MX124184 & MX277962) 

176 Land, footway and 
residential premises (100 
Whitehall Street) 

(Title Numbers: NGL186; 
NGL33912; NGL218432; 
MX269004; MX268151; 
MX264213; MX226539; 
MX10788 & NGL224482) 

 GF 2015 Masterplan 
including s105.  

 

 

 

P
age 133



 

P
age 134



 

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 137



 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

Page 138



 

 

 

 

Page 139



 

 

 

 

Page 140



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 141



Page 142



 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

Page 143

http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s56686/Appendix%2010-%20Business%20Charter.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s56680/Appendix%204-%20Love%20Lane%20Residents%20Charter%20sl.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s56681/Appendix%205-%20Secure%20Tenant%20Guide.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s56682/Appendix%206%20-%20Leaseholder%20Guide.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s56683/Appendix%207-%20Private%20Tenant%20guide.pdf
http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s56684/Appendix%208%20-%20Indicative%20Phasing%20Plan.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 144



Page 145



 

 

Page 146



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



 

 

 

 

8.8

6.4

5.8

5.5

5.1

4.7

4.5

3.3

Statutory Rights Average Score (as scores out of 9)

rent level

right to repair

right to be consulted

right to buy

right to succeed

right to be compensated

right to exchange

right to assign

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 150



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151



 

 

 

0 5 10 15 20

secure/allocated parking

keep terms the same

social rent

service charges to stay the same

free parking

No pets

disabled parking

Repairs

security / access

floor preference

keep pets

keeping tenancy for as long as possible

succession

communal areas

notice period and consultation of changes

gardening

Tenancy term/area Total Number of Mentions

Page 152



 

 

 

9.9

8.2

8.0

7.87.1

6.5

6.0

4.6

4.6

4.2

Services Average Score (as scored out of 11)

CCTV

Cleaning and refuse

Lift maintenance

Door entry

Fire safety

More lighting

Concierge

Green space

Communal areas

High quality fixtures

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 153



 

 

 

 

 

Page 154



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 155



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 5 10 15 20

security of tenure

trust the council more

happy/comfortable with the council

been council tenant a long time / don’t want 
change

HA terms/rights are not statutory = less secure

know other people or past experience in
Housing Associations which were bad

HA can change

HA move people more often

Mentions relating to trust

Page 156



0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

know where to go to get help from the council

can visit the council office

council is one organisation - so different
departments can talk to eachother easily

HAs do not respond to problems

HA communications are worse

mentions related to communication

0 5 10 15 20

do not want rent increase

do not want service charge increase

the council is cheaper

HA will increase charges

Right to Buy discount

need to know cost to make a decision

Mentions related to cost

Page 157



 

 

0 5 10 15 20

the council sorts out my problems/repairs

concern with ASB and crime

only want to have to to move once

maisonette means less services required

HAs provide higher quality housing

Mentions related to living environment

0 1 2 3

housing is an asset to the coucnil/public
sector

council reputation will be damaged

promoting community trust in the council

want to be in the new scheme

Mentions relating to wider implications

Page 158



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

0 1 2 3 4 5

It is the ambition of the council that the property will 
have the same number of bedrooms as the 

leaseholder’s existing property. If the leaseholder 
would like to increase the number of bedrooms, they 
should be offered a shared ownership arrangement.

It is the ambition of the council that the leaseholder
will be able to increase their share of the property at

any time subject to valuation which is the
responsibility of the leaseholder.

It is the ambition of the council that the leaseholder
will not be required to make repayments on the equity

loan and it only needs to be paid upon sale of the
property.

It is the ambition of the council that the leaseholder
will have the right to succession.

Average score: 4 = agree, 5 = completely agree

Page 159



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 160



 

 

9.6

8.2

7.8

6.86.7

6.5

6.0

5.0

5.0

3.4

Most important Service Average Score

Cleaning and refuse
CCTV
Door entry
Fire safety
Lift maintenance
High quality fixtures
Communal areas
More lighting
Green space
Concierge

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 161



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 162



 

 

- 
- 
- 
- 

 

 

- 

 

0 1 2 3 4

too old to get a mortgae

cant afford

council charges less

will require children to take on the mortgage
to remain

service charge will be too high

don't know if I can get a mortgage

Mentions relating to cost

Page 163



0 1 2 3 4 5

should be transferred to those that can't
afford

want 100% willing to downsize for that

want to be able to fully own in the future

don't trust having less than 100%

Mentions relating to equity share

0 1 2 3 4 5

cant make decision without knowing HA
offer

do not trust RSLs

used to the council

HA less accountable

Mentions relating to trust and information

0 1 2 3 4 5

want same number of bedrooms

don’t want shared ownership if want more bedrooms

should be available for immediate family members

reporting issues are ignored

other

Page 164



0 1 2 3 4 5

council said or implied they would buy

feeling manipulated

information misleading

will stand against

negotation is scary

not enough information

Mentions critical of the consultation

Page 165



 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

25-39 40-54 55-69 70-84

total respondents by age

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

f m

total respondents by gender

0

5

10

15

20

25

Black White White Other Asian

total respondents by ethnicity

17

18

Total respondents by 
disability

y n

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

rent level

right to succeed

right to be consulted

right to buy

right to assign

right to repair

right to exchange

right to be compensated

Distribution of responses by age group 
for most important statutory right

25-39 40-54 55-69 70-84

Page 166



0 2 4 6 8 10 12

keep terms the same

secure/allocated parking

free parking

disabled parking

social rent

service charges to stay the same

keeping tenancy for as long as possible

No pets

Repairs

security / access

floor preference

keep pets

succession

communal areas

notice period and consultation of changes

gardening

Number of mentions of tenancy terms/areas by age

25-39 40-54 55-69 70-84

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

CCTV

Concierge

Lift Maintenance

More Lighting

Communal areas

Green Space

High Quality Fixtures

Cleaning and refuse

Door Entry

Fire Safety

Distribution of responses by age group 
for most important service

25-39 40-54 55-69 70-84

Page 167



0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

rent level

right to succeed

right to be consulted

right to buy

right to assign

right to repair

right to exchange

right to be compensated

Distribution of responses by gender for 
most important statutory right

f m

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

keep terms the same

secure/allocated parking

free parking

disabled parking

social rent

service charges to stay the same

keeping tenancy for as long as possible

No pets

Repairs

security / access

floor preference

keep pets

succession

communal areas

notice period and consultation of changes

gardening

Number of mentions of tenancy 
terms/areas by gender

f m

Page 168



0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

CCTV

Lift Maintenance

Communal areas

High Quality Fixtures

Door Entry

Distribution of responses by gender 
for most important service

f m

0% 50% 100%

rent level

right to succeed

right to be consulted

right to buy

right to assign

right to repair

right to exchange

right to be compensated

Distribution of responses by ethnicity 
for most important statutory right

Black White White Other Chinese

Page 169



0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

keep terms the same

secure/allocated parking

free parking

disabled parking

social rent

service charges to stay the same

keeping tenancy for as long as possible

No pets

Repairs

security / access

floor preference

keep pets

succession

communal areas

notice period and consultation of changes

gardening

Number of mentions of tenancy 
terms/areas by ethnicity

Black White White Other Chinese

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

CCTV

Concierge

Lift Maintenance

More Lighting

Communal areas

Green Space

High Quality Fixtures

Cleaning and refuse

Door Entry

Fire Safety

Distribution of responses by ethnicity 
for most important services

Black White White Other Chinese

Page 170



0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

rent level

right to succeed

right to be consulted

right to buy

right to assign

right to repair

right to exchange

right to be compensated

Distribution of responses by disability 
for most important statutory right

yes no

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

keep terms the same

secure/allocated parking

free parking

disabled parking

social rent

service charges to stay the same

keeping tenancy for as long as possible

No pets

Repairs

security / access

floor preference

keep pets

succession

communal areas

notice period and consultation of changes

gardening

Number of mentions of tenancy 
terms/areas by disability

yes no

Page 171



- - 

- 

- 

- 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

CCTV

Concierge

Lift Maintenance

More Lighting

Communal areas

Green Space

High Quality Fixtures

Cleaning and refuse

Door Entry

Fire Safety

Distribution of responses by disability 
for most important services

yes no

Page 172



- 

- 

- 

- 

Page 173



SECTION 105 HOUSING ACT 1985 
CONSULTATION ON THE OWNERSHIP  
AND MANAGEMENT OF REPLACEMENT  
SOCIAL RENTED HOUSING

www.tottenham.london

ROADHIGH WEST

Page 174



HAVE YOUR SAY 2

Page 175



HAVE YOUR SAY 3

Introduction 4,5

What we would like you to do 6

About the consultation  7, 8

Key considerations 9, 10, 11 

Our preferred option   12

The High Road West regeneration scheme 13, 14

Glossary of terms  15

Contents

Page 176



HAVE YOUR SAY 4

Dear Secure Council Tenant

As you will be aware, in December 2014 we agreed a 
masterplan and regeneration proposals for the High Road 
West area which includes the Love Lane Estate.

Your feedback was overwhelming in support of 
regenerating the estate and building new homes, with 
70% of residents supporting the change.

I believe that the plans, created in partnership with the 
community, will bring far reaching benefits to you and 
your neighbours, including new homes, job opportunities, 
new community and health facilities and a brand new 
Library and Learning Centre. But I want to continue to 
consult residents every step of the way about the future 
of High Road West.

Thank-you for being so involved and for working with us 
to create a Residents Charter, Residents Association 
and Design Guide and thank-you to those residents 
who have been involved in the procurement process to 
find a development partner to build the High Road West 
Scheme, helping us select three development partners 
from a long list of 6. I hope these residents will continue to 
be involved as we discuss the partners’ proposals for High 
Road West and choose one partner.

In 2014, 90 Love Lane residents contributed to a list 
of 101 regeneration principles forming the Resident 
Charter. I took the Charter to the Council’s Cabinet 
and the Cabinet agreed the Charter and committed to 
addressing all 101 principles. One of the key principles 
within the Charter was that ‘existing council tenants 
should have the right to remain council tenants’, our 
commitment was that ‘whilst we are ambitious that 
replacement social housing in the masterplan area 
remains in council ownership we cannot guarantee this at 
this stage in the regeneration process.’

This means that I was always expecting to have further 
engagement and consultation with you on the ownership 
and management of the new homes when more 
information about the regeneration scheme was known.

Introduction

HAVE YOUR SAY 4

Page 177



HAVE YOUR SAY 5

The questions we are asking you 
today form part of this consultation 
and the next steps to delivering your 
new homes. I want to know what your 
thoughts are on the management and 
ownership of the new homes, whilst 
we are still talking to three potential 
development partners and are able to 
shape each partner’s proposals.

The three potential development 
partners are; Barratt Developments 
Plc, Leandlease Developments Ltd and 
Linkcity (Bouygues). We are engaged 
in what is called a competitive dialogue 
process with the potential partners 
which means that your views will feed 
into those conversations and shape 
the final agreement with the selected 
developer for High Road West. We aim 
to select the partner in the summer.

The questions we are asking you  
today are the next steps to delivering 
your new homes, with the options 
clearly laid out in this document,  
and is formal consultation under 
section 105 Housing Act 1985. 

I really look forward to hearing 
your views.

Cllr Alan Strickland  
Cabinet Member for Housing  
and Regeneration 

HAVE YOUR SAY 5

Page 178



HAVE YOUR SAY 6

What we would like you to do

Please read this pack to help you understand the 
options we are considering and what this means 
for you.

Then, to make your views known to the council  
you can do one of the following:

• Complete a feedback form online at  
www.tottenham.london/HRWConsultation

• Complete the paper feedback form included 
with this pack and return in the supplied 
prepaid envelope

• Hand your form back in person to one of your 
Rehousing Officers, Sheila Miranda and Fatima 
Kirsarkye, who are based at the Grange 32-34a 
White Hart Lane, N17 8DP 

• Hand your form back in person to your 
Independent Tenant and Leaseholder 
Association representative for the Love Lane 
Estate, Damian Tissier

• Email your views to  
tottenhamregeneration@haringey.gov.uk 

• Write to: 
High Road West Consultation 
Haringey Council  
639 Enterprise Centre, 
639 High Road,  
London, N17 8AA

The consultation ends on the 5 May 2017. Your 
feedback and views must be received by this date.

If you would like to speak to a Council Officer about 
the information within this pack you can:

• Attend one of the drop- in events (dates detailed 
below) where you can speak to a Council Officer 
on a one-to-one basis or Damian Tissier, the 
Independent Tenant and Leaseholder Advisor for 
the Love Lane Estate

• Arrange for your Rehousing Officer to visit you  
in your home.

Your Rehousing Officers’ details and the dates  
of the drop-in sessions can be found below:

Drop in events will be held for Love Lane 
residents at the Grange, 32-34A White Hart 
Lane, Tottenham, London, N17 8DP, on the 
following dates:

•  Tuesday 4 April 2017, 12 noon – 4pm.  
A Turkish interpreter will be available

•  Thursday 20 April 2017, 7pm – 9pm.  
A Turkish interpreter will be available

To arrange for a Rehousing Officer to visit you in 
your home, please contact one of the Re-housing 
Officers on the contact details below:

•   Sheila Miranda,  
Email: Sheila.miranda@haringey.gov.uk  
Tel: 020 8489 5298/ 078 9055 6506

• Fatima Kirsarkye,  
Email: Fatima.kirsarkye@haringey.gov.uk  
Tel: 020 8489 2499/ 078 1265 9154

If you would like this document in another language, 
please call 020 8489 5317

Page 179



HAVE YOUR SAY 7

What is the section 105 Housing Act  
1985 consultation about/why am I  
being consulted? 

When the High Road West regeneration scheme 
goes ahead it will mean all properties on the Love 
Lane estate will need to be demolished and new 
high quality replacement homes will be built. 

As a secure council tenant on the Love Lane 
estate you have been provided with a range of 
rehousing options, one of which is to move to a 
high quality modern home in the High Road West 
regeneration area. 

The consultation is about the ownership and 
management of the replacement social rented 
housing to be built in the new High Road West 
redevelopment and so will only apply to you if you 

move into one of these homes. We have a duty 
to consult you under section 105 of the Housing 
Act 1985.

If you would like more information about the High 
Road West redevelopment and your rehousing 
options – please contact your rehousing officer 
(see page 6) or visit www.tottenham.london/
HighRoadWest

Properties included in the consultation

This area includes the following properties on 
the Love Lane estate: Charles House, Ermine 
House, Moselle House, 2-32 Whitehall Street, 
3-89 Whitehall Street, 4-18 Brereton Road, 2-28 
Orchard Place, 9-39 White Hart Lane and Kathleen 
Ferrier Court.

About the consultation

Page 180



HAVE YOUR SAY 8

What are the options I am being 
consulted on?

You are being consulted on who should buy and 
own the 145 replacement social rented homes 
on the High Road West redevelopment, and who 
therefore, would be the landlord of your new 
home, if you choose to be rehoused in one of the 
replacement homes.

We have two options: 

• Option 1: Haringey Council buys and owns  
the replacement social rented housing 

• Option 2: A Housing Association buys and 
owns the replacement social rented housing 
Throughout this document we have used the 
term “Housing Association” by which we mean 
a private registered provider of social housing 
held on a government register (formerly known 
as housing associations or registered social 
landlords). Some are charitable bodies and  
others are not. 

All of the feedback received will be used 
to inform discussions with the three 
bidders and subsequently the selected 
development partner and will inform the 
following decisions:

• Ownership and management of the 
replacement social rented housing to be 
council or Housing Association

• The management arrangements, i.e. services 
and service charge of the replacement social 
rented housing

• The tenancy terms of the replacement 
social rented housing if they are bought by a 
Housing Association, These terms can match 
or enhance your existing tenancy terms and 
can replicate your existing statutory (legal) 
rights by writing them into a contract with the 
Housing Association which will last the whole 
of your lifetime tenancy

Page 181



HAVE YOUR SAY 9

Key considerations
Change of tenancy type

Currently you have a secure tenancy with Haringey 
Council as your landlord. Secure tenancies are 
provided for under the Housing Act 1985. If a 
Housing Association was to buy the social housing in 
High Road West, it would mean that the tenancy of 
your new home would not be a secure tenancy. 

This is because Housing Associations cannot grant 
these forms of tenancy. Your new tenancy would 
be an assured tenancy and the property would be 
owned and managed by them. Assured tenancies 
are provided for under the Housing Act 1988.

Your existing secure tenancy with Haringey Council 
consists of statutory rights, which are set in law 
and include rights such as the right to buy, and your 
tenancy terms which are set by Haringey Council 
and include what you can and cannot do in your 
property (for example have pets in the property).

Existing Statutory rights

There are some statutory (legal) differences 
between a secure and an assured tenancy, which 
results in secure tenants having greater rights. 
However, it is possible to grant to an assured tenant 
similar rights to a secure tenancy. This can be 
done by different routes, in particular by including 
additional terms in the tenancy agreement. Where 
these routes are taken, in practice secure and 
assured tenancies can feel the same.

We want to reassure you that if we decide 
that your new landlord is to be a Housing 
Association, and not the Council, we will take 
all the steps we reasonably can to see that:

• Your new tenancy will be a lifetime tenancy 

• Your rent, excluding service charge, will  
remain a “social rent”, set at approximately  
the same level as if you were a council tenant 
i.e target rent

• You will have a similar right to buy your 
new property

• You will be able to pass your property to a 
successor e.g. spouse, civil partner, long term 
live-in partner in the same way as if the council 
was the landlord of your new property

• You will still have similar rights to be consulted 
on any changes to your tenancy terms 
and conditions

For more information about your Existing Statutory 
Tenancy rights contact your dedicated rehousing 
officers Sheila on Sheila.Miranda@haringey.gov.uk 
or Fatima on Fatima.Kirsarkye@haringey.gov.uk 

You can also speak to the Independent Tenant and 
Leaseholder Association for the Love Lane Estate, 
Damian Tissier – DamianTissier@gmail.com 

Page 182



HAVE YOUR SAY 10

Existing Tenancy Terms 

Currently you have a written Secure Tenancy 
Agreement with Haringey Council. This Agreement 
sets out the terms of your tenancy, i.e what you can 
and can’t do and what the council can and cannot do. 
In this informationpack this is what we mean by your 
‘Existing Tenancy terms’.

You are welcome to review your tenancy agreement for  
more information, but to remind you of what tenancy  
terms you have, examples of headings in the 
agreement are: 

• Using your home

• Cleaning and Refuse

• Gardens and Outside Spaces

• Repairs

• Alterations and Improvements

Your Existing Tenancy terms can be found at  
www.tottenham.london/HRWconsultation 

If the new social rented housing in High Road West 
is bought by a Housing Association, then you would 
have a new written Assured Tenancy Agreement 
with them. We will ensure that your rights in the 
Existing Tenancy Terms will be carried through into a 
new Assured Tenancy Agreement.

We want to reassure you that if we decide 
that your new landlord is to be a Housing 
Association, and not the Council, we will take 
all the steps we reasonably can to see that 
the tenancy terms remain the same, or are 
enhanced based on the feedback you provide.

For more information about tenancy terms 
contact your dedicated rehousing officers or 
to the Independent Tenant and Leaseholder 
Association representative.

Page 183



HAVE YOUR SAY 11

Service package

The service package is the range of services 
provided to you as a tenant in your building and 
includes the costs directly related to your building 
that the landlord or their management company 
must pay for those services. These costs are called 
a service charge. The services provided could be 
things like repairing lifts, maintaining gardens and 
decorating the building and communal areas.

Currently your building is managed and maintained 
by Homes for Haringey. You already pay service 
charge but this is included with your rent and 
charged as a single sum.

If the social housing in High Road West is sold to a 
Housing Association, the housing will be managed 
by them. Your Assured Tenancy Agreement will 
require you to pay a service charge as a sum 
separate from your rent.

We are committed to ensuring that the service 
charge for the new homes within the development 
are affordable for all residents, however, due to 
the fact that there will be more services provided 
for tenants in an improved and more secure 
environment, it is likely that the cost will go up – this 
may be due to increased services such as CCTV, 
concierge, lift maintenance, cleaning and repairs, 
more lighting and lots of green space and planting.

If the replacement social rented housing is bought 
by the council, your service charge is likely to 
increase due to the reasons above and this will be 
added to your rental payment. If the replacement 
social rented housing is bought by a Housing 
Association, your service charge will likely increase 
for those same reasons and you will be charged this 
on top of your social rent (target rent).

Your feedback in this consultation can influence 
the services that are delivered for the replacement 
social rented housing in High Road West which 
would therefore influence the service charge. 
However the overall quality and service offer 
improvements mean that the service charge is still 
likely to increase.

We want to ensure that we provide safe, secure 
homes in an attractive and welcoming environment 
and provide the services you require at an 
affordable level. We have not yet agreed the design 
and level of services delivered through the High 
Road West Scheme, therefore your feedback in this 
consultation can influence the services that are 
delivered for the replacement social rented housing 
in High Road West which would consequently 
influence the service charge costs.

We would also add that whether the landlord of 
your new property is the council or a Housing 
Association you will also be required to pay for all 
energy bills and utilities costs.

We want to reassure you that we will get 
the best possible deal for tenants when 
negotiating a new service charge and 
service package.

Page 184



HAVE YOUR SAY 12

Our preferred option
Financial implications

When we consulted in the autumn of 2014 a 
number of you expressed a desire that the  
council should be the landlord of the replacement 
social rented housing to be built on the High  
Road West development. Following the 
consultation our preference was also to own the 
replacement social rented housing. We have looked 
very carefully at this possibility and it is now our 
preferred option for a Housing Association  
to own this replacement housing due to the  
financial implications below.

The cost of the replacement social housing on 
the High Road West scheme is projected to be 
approximately £13m.

If this was to be council housing we would have to 
buy it back from the developer which would mean 
less money to spend or invest in current housing 
stock elsewhere in the Borough e.g. major works or 
repairs or building new houses.

We would like to undertake these activities to 
increase and improve our existing housing stock  
as well as having new regeneration schemes  
which can benefit as many residents in the  
borough as we can.

Page 185



HAVE YOUR SAY 13

What has happened so far?
In order to get to this point we have created a series of proposals, each informed by consultation with residents. 

Spring 2012 Arup was appointed to help Haringey Council develop the High Road West 
masterplan and the process of developing a masterplan was commenced.

 

Spring 2012- 
September 
2014 

A series of consultation events were held with the local community to help 
shape the masterplan options and the final masterplan. These events included 
workshops, training, one-to-one meetings, drop-in sessions.

 

2013-2014 Haringey Council worked with Love Lane residents to develop the secure tenant 
and leaseholder guides and the Resident Charter.

 

September 
2014

The Community Hub, at the Grange, 32-34A White Hart Lane, N17 8AD opens.  
In December 2014 and ongoing, the Love Lane rehousing team support residents 
from this central location and hub.

 

December 2014 The High Road West Masterplan was approved by Haringey Council’s Cabinet. 

Included a Resident Charter which made the commitment that all secure council 
tenants on the Love Lane Estate will:

• Be offered a new, high quality, modern home in the redevelopment area that 
meets their needs

• Continue to pay social rent, not new affordable rents

• Continue to have a long-term tenancy

• Have a dedicated re-housing officer to support them through the whole 
moving process

• Receive home loss compensation, with all reasonable moving costs paid

 

December 2015 Approval by Cabinet of procurement of development partner for High Road West 
regeneration scheme.

 

Summer/
Autumn 2016

High Road West procurement process commenced to select a development partner.

 

October 2016 Resident representatives on a specially formed ‘Design Panel’ took part in dialogue 
sessions with six shortlisted bidders to feedback on the vision and designs 
proposed for High Road West. 

 

January 2017 Three bidders are selected to continue in competitive dialogue. They are selected 
by scoring highest overall on the different elements of their propositions – 
including their response to the Resident Charter and Design Panel.

The High Road West regeneration scheme

Page 186



HAVE YOUR SAY 14

What stage are we at now?

From a longlist of six potential developers, we have 
shortlisted three. They are; Barratt Developments Plc, 
Lendlease Developments Ltd, Linkcity (Bouygues).

As part of the selection process the developers 
met with Love Lane residents and pitched their 
ideas to resident representatives on a specially 
formed ‘Design Panel’.

In the Spring, the bidders will each submit a final 
tender document and these will be scored and 
independently moderated in order to reach a 
preferred bidder.

The final decision on which developer is chosen  
will be taken by Haringey Council’s Cabinet in 
Summer 2017. 

What happens with my comments on 
this consultation?

Your comments will feed into the decision by 
Haringey Council’s cabinet on who should own the 
replacement social rented housing and therefore 
be the landlord of these properties. This will happen 
in summer 2017 alongside the Cabinet decision on 

the preferred developer for the High Road West 
regeneration scheme.

We are holding this consultation now as your 
responses will shape discussions with the 
developers, inform their future plans and inform 
our decision regarding whether it should buy the 
replacement homes (and be your landlord) or 
whether a Housing Association should do so (and 
be your landlord).

We do not propose to consult you again on the 
precise identity of the Housing Association if the 
we do decide that that is the route to be taken. We 
do not consider it would be necessary because the 
chosen Housing Association would have to agree 
to honour the reassurances we have made in this 
consultation document. However the council and 
any future Housing Association will continue to 
work closely with existing Love Lane residents.

For your information the Housing Association that 
is potentially partnering with Barratt Developments 
Plc is L&Q (London & Quadrant), whilst Genesis 
is potentially partnering with Linkcity (Bouygues). 
These are both substantial, well-established 
Housing Associations. 

Page 187



HAVE YOUR SAY 15

• High Road West – a proposed regeneration 
scheme covering 11 hectares broadly between 
Tottenham High Road and the railway line (White 
Hart Lane Station), running from Brereton Road 
in the south to the former Sainsbury’s site in 
the north

• Replacement social rented housing – the 
new housing to be built in the High Road West 
regeneration scheme that has been allocated 
for current secure council tenants in the Love 
Lane estate and which will continue to offer 
social rents

• Private registered provider – a private provider 
of social housing held on a government register 
(formerly known as registered social landlords or 
Housing Associations). Some PRPs are charitable 
bodies and others are not

• Secure tenancy – Most council tenancies are 
secure tenancies. They carry certain statutory 
(legal) rights

• Assured tenancy – Most social tenancies 
granted by Housing Associations are assured 
tenancies. They are regulated and guided by 
government bodies but do not carry the same 
stator rights as an assured tenancy

• Existing Statutory rights – statutory rights 
conferred on secure tenants which are not 
conferred in an identical way or at all on 
assured tenants

• Existing Tenancy terms – the rights and 
responsibilities contained within your current 
written Secure Tenancy Agreement 

• Tenancy Agreement – the contract between 
a landlord and a tenant regarding the rights and 
responsibilities of both parties

• Target Rent – the Government’s standard 
formula for setting social rents, including a 
standard rent increase formula

• Succession – the right to pass on the tenancy 
to a successor, usually a family member who is 
resident in the home

• Right to buy – the legal right to buy, at a 
discount, the home lived in by eligible secure 
council tenants

• Assignment – the legal transfer of a secure 
tenancy by an eligible secure council tenant 
to another person, who then becomes the 
secure tenant

• Right to repair – entitlement to have ‘qualifying 
repair’s undertaken and completed within a 
prescribed amount of time’

• Right to exchange – entitlement to swap a 
secure council home with another council or PRP 
tenant anywhere in the UK

• Right to be compensated for improvements – 
compensation for certain tenant improvements 
(to which consent was or should have been 
granted) that may be payable when a secure 
council tenancy comes to an end

• Service charge – a payment made by the tenant 
to the landlord or management company as a 
portion of the costs of servicing only the tenant’s 
building e.g. repairing lifts, maintaining gardens 
and decorating the building and communal areas

• Homes for Haringey – Homes for Haringey is an 
Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO), 
set up in April 2006 to manage Haringey’s 
council housing

• Concierge – a security guard present in your 
building or protected neighbourhood

• CCTV – Close Circuit Television uses camera  
to provide surveillance

• Door Entry – the access into a secure building

Glossary of Terms

Page 188



Page 189



Feedback sheet. Page 1 of 6

If you would like this document in another language or large print call 020 8489 5298

ROADHIGH WEST

Section 105 Consultation of Secure Council 
Tenants on the Love Lane Estate
Your views are very important to us and 
will be a key part of the final decision 
on ownership and management of the 
replacement social rented housing for Love 
Lane secure council tenants.

The options for ownership of the replacement 
social rented housing are either that Haringey 
Council, or that a Housing Association* buys  
and owns the housing.

Full information on the consultation and what 
it means for you can be found in the enclosed 
information pack. Please read the pack in full 
before answering the below questions.

If you would like this document in another 
language or large print please call  
0208 489 5317.

How to give your views
You can give your views by:

• Completing a feedback form online at  
www.tottenham.london/HRWconsultation

• Completing the paper feedback form 
included with this pack and return in the 
supplied prepaid envelope

• Hand your form back in person to your 
rehousing officers, Sheila Miranda or  
Fatima Kirsarkye, who are based at the  
Grange 32-34a White Hart Lane, N17 8DP

• Hand your form back in person to your 
Independent Tenant and Leaseholder 
Association representative for the Love Lane 
Estate, Damian Tissier

• Emailing your views to 
tottenhamregeneration@haringey.gov.uk

• Writing to: High Road West Consultation 
 Tottenham Regeneration 
 Enterprise Centre 
 639 High Road 
 London, N17 8AA

If you need assistance in completing this form  
please contact Lauren Schnieder by emailing:  
Lauren.Schnieder@haringey.gov.uk or calling  
020 8489 5317 or come to one of the drop-in 
events where officers will be available to help.

Please note: Only one feedback form will be 
considered per person.

All data responses will be reported 
anonymously.

FEEDBACK SHEET

The consultation ends on the 5TH MAY 2017. Your feedback and views 
must be received by this date.

*A Housing Association is legally referred to as a private registered provider 
but we will use the term “Housing Association” throughout this document.

Page 190



Feedback sheet. Page 2 of 6

If you would like this document in another language or large print call 020 8489 5298

Question 2: Ownership preference in relation to Existing Statutory Rights   

a) We aim to ensure that any Housing Association that would like to buy the replacement social 
housing will match, as far as possible, your Existing Statutory Rights so that the tenancy feels 
the same. 

Taking this into account, do you have a preference who owns the replacement social  
rented housing? 

Yes   No  Don’t Know  

b) If yes what is your preference and why?

• Housing Association buys and owns the replacement social rented housing
• Council buys and owns the replacement social rented housing

Reasons why:

Question 1: Existing Statutory Rights preference

a) We want to ensure that your Existing Statutory Rights are matched, as far as possible, for 
the replacement social rented housing. Please rank these Existing Statutory rights in order 
of importance to you, where 1 is most important and 9 is least important.

  Rent Level 

  Right to Succeed

  Right to be consulted on matters affecting your tenancy

  Right to Buy

  Right to assign

  Right to repair

  Right to exchange

  Right to be compensated for improvements

  Other (please state):

FEEDBACK SHEET
There is information to help you answer these questions in the information pack and definitions in 
the glossary of terms. If you are unsure please feel free to contact us to talk it through.

Page 191



Feedback sheet. Page 3 of 6

If you would like this document in another language or large print call 020 8489 5298

Question 3: Existing Tenancy Terms preference   

a) Please note we are aiming to match, as far as possible, your tenancy terms.

We would like to know which tenancy terms are most important to you or if you would like 
those terms changed in any way?

For example – how you use your home, whether you can keep pets, whether you have 
parking and what recharges there are.

 Visit www.tottenham.london/HRWconsultation to look at your existing Tenancy Terms.  

Question 4: Ownership preference in relation to Existing Tenancy Terms

a) We aim to ensure that any Housing Association seeking to buy the replacement social housing 
will match, as far as possible, your Existing Tenancy Terms so that the tenancy feels the same.

In light of this, do you have a preference who owns the replacement social rented housing?

Yes   No  Don’t Know  

b) If yes what is your preference and why?

• Housing Association buys and owns the replacement social rented housing
• Council buys and owns the replacement social rented housing

Reasons why:

FEEDBACK SHEET
Page 192



Feedback sheet. Page 4 of 6

If you would like this document in another language or large print call 020 8489 5298

Question 5: Services preference  

a) We want to ensure that you are provided with the services that are important to you. Please 
rank these services in order of preference where 1 is most important and 11 is least important.

  CCTV

  Concierge

  Lift maintenance

  More lighting

  Communal area decoration

  Green space and planting

  High quality fixtures and finish

  Cleaning and refuse

  Door entry

  Fire safety

  Other (please state):

Question 6: Ownership preference in relation to service package   

a) We do not know how much the service charge will be for the replacement social rented 
housing if either Haringey Council or if a Housing Association owns the replacement homes. 
However the service charge will reflect the level of service and will only apply to services for 
your building. We will seek to get the best possible deal on the service package for tenants in 
the new High Road West homes by negotiating the services you require. 

In light of this, do you have a preference who owns the replacement social rented housing?

Yes   No  Don’t Know  

b) If yes what is your preference and why?

• Housing Association buys and owns the replacement social rented housing
• Council buys and owns the replacement social rented housing

Reasons why:

FEEDBACK SHEET
Page 193



Feedback sheet. Page 5 of 6

If you would like this document in another language or large print call 020 8489 5298

Question 7: Ownership preference in relation to service package   

a) When you consider the financial cost to the Council of buying the replacement social rented 
housing and the impact this may have on the Council’s existing and future housing stock, do 
you have a preference for who owns the replacement housing?

Yes   No  Don’t Know  

b) If yes what is your preference and why?

• Housing Association buys and owns the replacement social rented housing
• Council buys and owns the replacement social rented housing

Reasons why:

Question 8: Overall view  

a) Taking all of the above considerations into account, do you have a preference as to who owns 
the replacement housing?

Yes   No  Don’t Know  

b) If yes what is your preference and why?

• Housing Association buys and owns the replacement social rented housing
• Council buys and owns the replacement social rented housing

Reasons why:

FEEDBACK SHEET

Personal Details

Full name:

Address

Page 194



Feedback sheet. Page 6 of 6

If you would like this document in another language or large print call 020 8489 5298

YOUR INFORMATION

Age         Prefer not to say

Do you consider yourself to have a disability?
  Yes   No   Prefer not to say

Sex 
  Female   Male   Prefer not to say

Ethnicity – please tick the box that best describes your ethnic group:

White 
  British   Irish

White other
  Greek   Greek/Cypriot   Turkish   Turkish/Cypriot
  Kurdish   Gypsy/Roma   Irish Traveller

  Other (please specify): 

Black
  Caribbean   African   British 

  Other (please specify): 

Asian
  Indian   Pakistani   East African Asian
  Bangladeshi   British

  Other (please specify): 

Chinese or Other Ethnic Group
  Chinese 

   Any other ethnic background  
(please specify): 

Mixed
  White & Black African   White & Asian   White & Black Caribbean

  Other (please specify): 

  Prefer not to say

DATA PROTECTION

We will not process information for any purpose other than that for which it was collected and we will 
not pass it on to third parties other than those delivering services on our behalf (without permission).

FEEDBACK SHEET
Page 195



CONSULTATION ON THE OWNERSHIP  
AND MANAGEMENT OF THE NEW  
SHARED EQUITY HOUSING

www.tottenham.london

ROADHIGH WEST

RESIDENT LEASEHOLDER Page 196



HAVE YOUR SAY 2

Introduction 3

What we would like you to do 4

About the consultation  5

What might affect my views? 6,7 

Our preferred option   8

The High Road West regeneration scheme 9

Glossary of terms  11

Contents

Page 197



HAVE YOUR SAY 3

Dear Resident Leaseholder
As you will be aware, in December 2014 we agreed a masterplan and 
regeneration proposals for the High Road West area which includes the 
Love Lane Estate.

Your feedback was overwhelming in support of regenerating the estate 
and building new homes, with 70% of residents supporting the change. 

I believe that the plans, created in partnership with the community, will 
bring far reaching benefits to you and your neighbours, including new 
homes, job opportunities, new community and health facilities and a 
brand new Library and Learning Centre. But I want to continue to consult 
you every step of the way about the future for High Road West.

Thank-you for being so involved and for working with us to create 
a Residents Charter, Residents Association and Design Guide and 
thank –you to the Love Lane residents who have been involved in the 
procurement process to find a development partner to build the High 
Road West Scheme, helping us select three development partners 
from a long list of 6. I hope these residents will continue to be involved 
as we discuss the partners’ proposals for High Road West and choose 
one partner.

I am now seeking your views on the affordable replacement homes, 
which will be built in the High Road West regeneration area, and made 
available to existing resident leaseholders on the Love Lane Estate.

I am committed to ensuring that existing resident leaseholders are able 
to stay within the regeneration area should they wish, therefore, your 
views on the ownership and management and terms of the replacement 
homes are important to me.

We are currently in the process of selecting a development partner 
for High Road West and there are three remaining bidders. They are; 
Barratt Developments Plc, Lendlease Developments Ltd and Linkcity 
(Bouygues). We are engaged in what is called a competitive dialogue 
process with the potential partners which means that your views will 
feed into those conversations and shape the final agreement with the 
selected developer for High Road West. 

The views you give during this consultation will also feed into the 
leaseholder offer. We will complete a 6 week consultation on the 
leaseholder offer once it is further developed in the summer. 

The questions we are asking you today are the next steps to delivering 
your new homes, with the options clearly laid out in this document. 

I really look forward to hearing your views. 

Cllr Alan Strickland 
Cabinet Member for Housing and Regeneration

Introduction

Page 198



HAVE YOUR SAY 4

Please read this pack to help you understand the 
options we are considering and what this means 
for you.

To give your feedback on this consultation you can  
do one of the following:

• Complete a feedback form online  
www.tottenham.london/HRWconsultation

• Complete the paper feedback form included with  
this pack and return in the supplied prepaid envelope

• Hand your form back in person to your Rehousing 
Officer, Lin Edwards or Lauren Schnieder, 
Engagement Officer, who are based at the  
Grange, 32-34A White Hart Lane, Tottenham, 
London, N17 8DP

• Hand your form back in person to your 
Independent Tenant and Leaseholder 
Association representative for the Love Lane 
Estate, Damian Tissier

• Email your views to:  
tottenhamregeneration@haringey.gov.uk

• Write to: High Road West Consultation 
Haringey Council, 639 Enterprise Centre,  
639 High Road, London, N17 8AA

If you would like to speak to a council officer about 
the information within this pack you can:

• Attend one of the drop-in events (dates detailed 
below) where you can speak to a council officer 
on a one-to-one basis or Damian Tissier, the 
Independent Tenant and Leaseholder Advisor  
for the Love Lane Estate;

• Arrange for your dedicated Rehousing Officer to 
visit you in your home

Your Rehousing Officer’s details and the dates of  
the drop-in sessions can be found below:

Drop in events will be held for Love Lane residents 
at the Grange, 32-34A White Hart Lane, Tottenham, 
London, N17 8DP, on the following dates:

• Tuesday 4 April 2017, 12 noon – 4pm.  
A Turkish interpreter will be available

• Thursday 20 April 2017, 7pm – 9pm.  
A Turkish interpreter will be available 

Lin Edwards, Leaseholder Rehousing Officer 
Email: Lin.Edwards@haringey.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8489 5317

If you would like this document in another  
language or large print call 020 8489 5317.

All of the feedback received will help 
to inform discussions with the three 
bidders and subsequently the selected 
development partner.
The feedback will influence the 
following decisions:
• Ownership and management of the new 

shared equity housing to be council or 
Housing Association

• The management arrangements, i.e. services 
and service charge for the new shared 
equity housing

• The terms of the shared equity offer

What we would like you to do

The consultation ends on the 5 May 2017.  Your 
feedback and views must be received by this date.

Page 199



HAVE YOUR SAY 5

What is the consultation about and why 
am I being consulted? 
When the High Road West regeneration scheme 
goes ahead it will mean all properties on the Love 
Lane estate will need to be demolished and new 
high quality homes will be built. 

As a resident leaseholder on the Love Lane estate 
you have been provided, within the Leaseholder 
Guide 2014, a range of housing options, which include:

•  Option 1: Purchase a new home in the High 
Road West area (either shared equity or 
shared ownership)

•  Option 2: Purchase a low-cost ownership home 
built by the council

•  Option 3: Leasehold swap

•  Option 4: Purchase a property elsewhere

These options are still available to you and are 
being further developed by us through the 
development of the Leaseholder Offer, which we 
will consult with you on further later in the Summer.

This consultation focuses ONLY on Option 1 –  
to purchase a new home in the High Road West 
regeneration area. 

Since writing the Leaseholder Guide we have 
committed to ensuring that the High Road West 
Scheme delivers a minimum of 46 shared equity  
units for, in the first instance, resident leaseholders 
on the Love Lane Estate.

The consultation is about the ownership and 
management of these replacement shared equity 
housing and so will only apply to you if you move 
into one of these homes.

If you would like more information about the  
High Road West redevelopment and your  
housing options – please contact your dedicated 
Rehousing Officer Lin Edwards or visit  
www.tottenham.london/HighRoadWest 

Properties included in the consultation
This area includes the following properties on the 
Love Lane estate: Charles House, Ermine House, 
Moselle House, 2-32 Whitehall Street, 3-89 Whitehall 
Street, 4-18 Brereton Road, 2-28 Orchard Place,  
9-39 White Hart Lane and Kathleen Ferrier Court.

What are the ownership options I am 
being consulted on?
You are being consulted on who should own the 
replacement shared equity housing on the High 
Road West redevelopment.

We have two options: 

• Option 1: Haringey Council buys and owns  
the new Shared Equity Housing 

• Option 2: A Housing Association buys and  
owns the new Shared Equity Housing

This is legally referred to as a private registered 
provider but we will use the term “Housing 
Association” throughout this document.

Are there relevant future consultations?
Yes – we are currently developing a detailed 
leaseholder offer which you will be consulted on 
later on in the year.

The leaseholder offer is a document being 
developed which sets out the details of what we are 
offering to leaseholders on the Love Lane Estate. 
The offer is for all leaseholders but there are 
additional options for resident leaseholders.

It will build on the options presented the 
Leaseholder Guide (freely available online and by 
request) which was sent to all leaseholders in 2014. 
The Leaseholder Guide sets out that as a resident 
leaseholder you will:

• Be offered the market value of your home

• Receive a 10% Home-loss compensation

• Be offered the opportunity to purchase a 
new affordable replacement home in the 
regeneration area

The leaseholder offer will include much more detail 
on the procedures for the council acquiring your 
property as well as your financial entitlements and 
options for moving.

We will be consulting you on the leaseholder offer 
later this year.

About the consultation

Page 200



HAVE YOUR SAY 6

What might affect my views?
What is a shared equity property?

A ‘shared equity’ property is a housing option where 
the resident leaseholder pays for a proportion of the 
property and the rest is funded by an equity loan.

What is the typical process for getting  
a shared equity property?
To purchase a shared equity home, typically 
resident leaseholders would use the funds from  
the sale of their existing property (market 
value plus 10%) to buy a property in the new 
development. This includes continuing to invest 
the same level of mortgage borrowing they hold 
 in their current property. 

If the cost of a new property is higher than the 
amount received from the Council for their 

existing property, then the Council or a Housing 
Association, would hold on to a share of the new 
property. No rent or interest would be charged on 
the share of the property that the council holds. 

Under this arrangement leaseholders can purchase 
a new, higher value property without increasing 
their existing level of borrowing. If leaseholders 
want to invest more in the new property then 
leaseholders are able to do so. 

Leaseholders have the opportunity to increase 
their share in the property over time by gradually 
buying up the council’s equity share.

See diagram below for example on how shared 
equity works.

Existing home compensation

Your home is valued as 
being worth £250,000

You will receive £25,000 
Home Loss compensation 

(10% of market value)

You will receive a total of 
£275,000 compensation 

You can take your 
£275,000 and buy 

a new home

the new home in the 
regeneration area is 

valued as being 
worth £380,000

You would need to put in 
your full compensation 
package of £275,000

Haringey Council, 
a Housing Association 

would contribute 
£105,000  

You will own 72% of the 
property and Haringey 
Council or a Housing 

Association would own 
18% of the property.

You have the opportunity 
to increase your share in 

the property over time by 
gradually buying the 
Council's or Housing 

Association's equity share.

You can use your money to buy a new home in the regeneration area 

£250,000 £25,000 £275,000 

£275,000 £105,000 £380,000 

£275,000 

£380,000 £275,000 

The values used in the illustration are indicative and 
do not necessarily reflect the value of your home.

Page 201



HAVE YOUR SAY 7

Developing the detailed terms for the new  
shared equity homes in High Road West 

The council will ensure that the terms of any future 
shared equity homes are subject to consultation 
with resident leaseholders. These terms will need 
to be met regardless of whether Haringey Council 
or the Housing Association own the homes.

Whilst we are still developing these terms, they  
are likely to include the following: 

• The leaseholder will not be required to make 
repayments on the equity loan and it only needs 
to be paid upon sale of the property

• The leaseholder will be able to increase their 
share of the property at any time subject 
to valuation

• The leaseholder will have the right to succession 
(pass the property on to a family member, who 
resides in the home)

• The property will have the same number of 
bedrooms as the leaseholder’s existing property.  
If the leaseholder would like to increase the 
number of bedrooms, they should be offered a 
shared ownership arrangement

Service package

The service package is the range of services 
provided to you as leaseholder in your building and 
includes the costs directly related to your building 
that the landlord or their management company 
must pay for those services. These costs are called 
a service charge. The services provided could be 
things like repairing lifts, maintaining gardens and 
decorating the building and communal areas.

Currently your building is managed and maintained 
by Homes for Haringey. You already pay service 
charge to Homes for Haringey for the service 
they provide.

If the shared equity homes in High Road West are 
sold to a Housing Association, the housing will be 
managed by them.

We are committed to ensuring that the service 
charge for the new homes within the development 
are affordable for all residents, however, due to 
the fact that there will be more services provided 
for residents in an improved and more secure 

environment, it is likely that the cost will go up –  
this may be due to increased services such as 
CCTV, concierge, lift maintenance, cleaning and 
repairs, more lighting and lots of green space 
and planting.

If the new shared equity housing is bought by the 
Council or a Housing Association, it is likely in both 
instances, your service charge will increase due to  
the reasons listed above. This will be charged to you. 

Your feedback in this consultation will influence 
the services that are delivered for the replacement 
social rented housing in High Road West which 
would therefore influence the service charge. 
However the overall quality and service offer 
improvements mean that the service charge is  
still likely to increase.

We want to reassure you that we will get the 
best possible deal for leaseholders when 
negotiating a new service package.

For more information about the shared equity offer 
or the service package contact your dedicated 
Rehousing Officers:

• Lin Edwards  
Email: Lin.Edwards@haringey.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8489 8272

• Lauren Schnieder  
Email: Lauren.Schnieder@haringey.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8489 5008/07725 269 569

Or you can speak to the Independent Tenant and 
Leaseholder Association for the Love Lane Estate, 
Damian Tissier – damiantissier@gmail.com

Page 202



HAVE YOUR SAY 8

Our preferred option
Financial implications

It is our preferred option for a Housing 
Association to buy and own the replacement 
shared equity housing to be built on the High 
Road West development. 

This is due to the fact that we would need 
to buy the 46 shared equity homes from the 
developer. This would be a significant cost and 
would mean less money to spend or invest 
in current housing stock e.g. major works or 
repairs or building new houses. 

We would like to undertake these activities to 
increase and improve housing as well as having  
the new regeneration schemes.

We believe that a Housing Association would be 
able to offer a high quality service across the  
whole of the High Road West Development and  
will benefit from the scale of the development.  
If the developer and housing association partner 
own and manage the whole site, the operation will 
warrant a dedicated team that all High Road West 
residents will benefit from. 

Page 203



HAVE YOUR SAY 9

The High Road West regeneration scheme
What has happened so far?
In order to get to this point we have created a series of proposals, each informed by consultation with residents. 

Spring 2012 Arup was appointed to help Haringey Council develop the High Road West 
masterplan and the process of developing a masterplan was commenced.

 

Spring 2012- 
September 2014 

A series of consultation events were held with the local community to help 
shape the masterplan options and the final masterplan. These events included 
workshops, training, one-to-one meetings, drop-in sessions.

 

2013- 2014 Haringey Council worked with Love Lane residents to develop the secure tenant 
and leaseholder guides and the Resident Charter.

 

September 
2014

The Community Hub, at the Grange, 32-34A White Hart Lane, N17 8AD opens.  
In December 2014 and ongoing, the Love Lane rehousing team support residents 
from this central location and hub.

 

December 2014 The High Road West Masterplan was approved by Haringey Council’s Cabinet. 

Included a Resident Charter which made the commitment that all secure council 
tenants on the Love Lane Estate will:

• Be offered a new, high quality, modern home in the redevelopment area that 
meets their needs

• Continue to pay social rent, not new affordable rents

• Continue to have a long-term tenancy

• Have a dedicated re-housing officer to support them through the whole 
moving process

• Receive home loss compensation, with all reasonable moving costs paid

 

December 2015 Approval by Cabinet of procurement of development partner for High Road West 
regeneration scheme.

 

Summer/
Autumn 2016

High Road West procurement process commenced to select a 
development partner.

 

October 2016 Resident representatives on a specially formed ‘Design Panel’ took part in dialogue 
sessions with six shortlisted bidders to feedback on the vision and designs proposed 
for High Road West. 

 

January 2017 Three bidders are selected to continue in competitive dialogue. They are selected by 
scoring highest overall on the different elements of their propositions – including their 
response to the Resident Charter and Design Panel.

Page 204



HAVE YOUR SAY 10

What stage are we at now?

From a longlist of six potential developers, we have 
shortlisted three. They are; Barratt Developments 
Plc, Lendlease Developments Ltd, Linkcity 
(Bouygues).

As part of the selection process the developers 
met with Love Lane residents and pitched their 
ideas to resident representatives on a specially 
formed ‘Design Panel’.

In the Spring, the bidders will each submit a final 
tender document and these will be scored and 
independently moderated in order to reach a 
preferred bidder.

The final decision on which developer is chosen  
will be taken by Haringey Council’s Cabinet in 
Summer 2017. 

What happens with my comments on 
this consultation?

Your comments will feed into the decision by 
Haringey Council Cabinet on who should own 

the replacement shared equity housing. This will 
happen in Summer 2017 alongside the Cabinet 
decision on the preferred developer for the High 
Road West regeneration scheme.

We are holding this consultation now as your 
responses will shape discussions with the  
developers and inform their future plans.

Page 205



HAVE YOUR SAY 11

• High Road West – a proposed regeneration 
scheme covering 11 hectares broadly between 
Tottenham High Road and the railway line (White 
Hart Lane Station), running from Brereton Road 
in the south to the former Sainsbury’s site in 
the north.

• New shared equity housing – the new housing 
to be built in the High Road West regeneration 
scheme that has been allocated for current 
resident leaseholders.

• Shared equity property – a housing option 
where the leaseholder pays for a proportion 
of the property and the rest is funded by an 
equity loan.

• Private registered provider – a private provider 
of social housing held on a government register 
(formerly known as registered social landlords 
or Housing Associations). Some PRPs are 
charitable bodies and others are not. 

• Housing Association – this is the commonly 
used term to describe a registered provider of 
social housing.

• Succession – the right to pass on the shared 
equity homes to a successor, usually a family 
member who is resident in the home.

• Service charge – a payment made by the 
resident to the landlord or management 
company as a portion of the costs of servicing 
only the tenant’s building e.g. repairing lifts, 
maintaining gardens and decorating the building 
and communal areas.

• Homes for Haringey – Homes for Haringey is 
an Arm’s Length Management Organisation 
(ALMO), set up in April 2006 to manage 
Haringey’s council housing.

• Concierge – a security guard present in your 
building or protected neighbourhood.

• CCTV – Close Circuit Television uses camera to 
provide surveillance.

• Door Entry – the access into a secure building.

Glossary of Terms

Page 206



Page 207



Feedback sheet. Page 1 of 5

ROADHIGH WEST

Consultation of Resident Leaseholders  
on the Love Lane Estate
Haringey Council are seeking your views 
on the ownership and management of the 
shared equity homes that will be available for 
resident leaseholders currently living on the 
Love Lane Estate. 

As set out in the information pack, moving 
to a shared equity home is just one of the 
rehousing options for resident leaseholders 
and is the option we are seeking feedback on 
as part of this consultation.

Your views are very important to us and will be 
a key part of the final decision regarding who 
will own the replacement shared equity homes. 
The options for ownership of the replacement 
shared equity housing are either that Haringey 
Council, or that a Housing Association* buys 
and owns the housing.

Your feedback will also be used to help us 
develop the detailed terms for the shared 
equity homes which will be included within 
the leaseholder offer. We will be consulting 
all Love Lane leaseholders on the leaseholder 
offer later in the Summer.

Full information on the consultation and what 
it means for you can be found in the enclosed 
information pack.

Please read the pack in full before answering 
the below questions.

If you would like this document in another 
language or large print contact Lauren 
Schneider on 020 8489 5008.

How to give your views
You can give your views by:

• Completing a feedback form online at  
www.tottenham.london/HRWconsultation

• Completing the paper feedback form 
included with this pack and return in the 
supplied prepaid envelope

• Handing your form back in person to your 
rehousing officer, Lin Edwards or Lauren 
Schnieder, Engagement Officer, who are 
based at the Grange (address below)

• Handing your form back in person to your 
Independent Tenant and Leaseholder 
Association representative for the  
Love Lane Estate, Damian Tissier

• Emailing your views to  
tottenhamregeneration@haringey.gov.uk

• Writing to: High Road West Consultation 
 Tottenham Regeneration 
 Enterprise Centre 
 639 High Road 
 London, N17 8AA

If you need assistance in completing this form  
please contact Lauren Schnieder by emailing:  
Lauren.Schnieder@haringey.gov.uk or calling  
020 8489 5317 or come to one of the drop-in 
events where officers will be available to help.

Please note: Only one feedback form will be 
considered per person.

All data responses will be reported anonymously.

FEEDBACK SHEET

The consultation ends on the 5TH MAY 2017. Your 
feedback and views must be received by this date.

*A Housing Association is legally referred to as a private registered provider 
but we will use the term “Housing Association” throughout this document.

Page 208



Feedback sheet. Page 2 of 5

Question 1: Our ambitions for your new shared equity home

The statements below set out the Council’s ambitions for the terms of the shared equity offer to 
resident leaseholders. Please respond to each of the ambitions laid out below with how far you 
agree with each. Please mark on the scale where 1 is do not agree and 5 is completely agree. 
Feel free to comment on your reasons why.

a) Resident leaseholders should not be required to make repayments on the equity loan and it 
only needs to be paid upon sale of the property.

Do not agree  1   2   3   4   5   Completely agree

Reasons why:

b) Resident leaseholders should be able to increase their share of the property at any time 
subject to a valuation being completed.

Do not agree  1   2   3   4   5   Completely agree

Reasons why:

c) Resident leaseholders should have the right to succession.

Do not agree  1   2   3   4   5   Completely agree

Reasons why:

d) Resident leaseholders should be offered a property with the same number of bedrooms  
as the leaseholder’s existing property. If the leaseholder would like to increase the number 
of bedrooms, they should be offered a shared ownership arrangement.

Do not agree  1   2   3   4   5   Completely agree

Reasons why:

e) Do you have any other comments you would like to make on the terms of the shared  
equity offer?

Reasons why:

FEEDBACK SHEET
There is information to help you answer these questions in the information pack and definitions in 
the glossary of terms. If you are unsure please feel free to contact us to talk it through.

Page 209



Feedback sheet. Page 3 of 5

Question 2: Services preference  

a) We want to ensure that you are provided with the services that are important to you.  
Please rank these services in order of preference where 1 is most important and 11 is  
least important.

  CCTV

  Concierge

  Lift maintenance

  More lighting

  Communal area decoration

  Green space and planting

  High quality fixtures and finish

  Cleaning and refuse

  Door entry

  Fire safety

  Other (please state):

Question 3: Ownership preference in relation to service package   

a) We do not know how much the service charge will be for the shared equity housing if either 
Haringey  Council or if a Housing Association owns the homes. However the service charge will 
reflect the level of service and will only apply to services for your building. We will seek to get 
the best possible deal on the service package for tenants in the new High Road West homes by 
negotiating the services you require. 

In light of this, do you have a preference who owns the shared equity housing?

Yes   No  Don’t Know  

b) If yes what is your preference and why?

• Housing Association buys and owns the shared equity housing
• Council buys and owns the shared equity housing

Reasons why:

FEEDBACK SHEET
Page 210



Feedback sheet. Page 4 of 5

Question 4: Overall view  

a) Taking all of the above into considerations into account, do you have a preference as to who 
owns the shared equity housing?

Yes    No  Don’t Know  

b) If yes what is your preference and why?

• Housing Association buys and owns the shared equity housing
• Council buys and owns the shared equity housing

Reasons why:

FEEDBACK SHEET

Personal Details

Full name:

Address

Page 211



Feedback sheet. Page 5 of 5

FEEDBACK SHEET

YOUR INFORMATION

Age         Prefer not to say

Do you consider yourself to have a disability?
  Yes   No   Prefer not to say

Sex 
  Female   Male   Prefer not to say

Ethnicity – please tick the box that best describes your ethnic group:

White 
  British   Irish

White other
  Greek   Greek/Cypriot   Turkish   Turkish/Cypriot
  Kurdish   Gypsy/Roma   Irish Traveller

  Other (please specify): 

Black
  Caribbean   African   British 

  Other (please specify): 

Asian
  Indian   Pakistani   East African Asian
  Bangladeshi   British

  Other (please specify): 

Chinese or Other Ethnic Group
  Chinese 

   Any other ethnic background  
(please specify): 

Mixed
  White & Black African   White & Asian   White & Black Caribbean

  Other (please specify): 

  Prefer not to say

DATA PROTECTION

We will not process information for any purpose other than that for which it was collected and we will 
not pass it on to third parties other than those delivering services on our behalf (without permission).

Page 212



 

- 

- 

- 

Page 213



2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 214



3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 215



4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
o 

Page 216



5 

 

o 
o 

 

 

 

                                                 
1 https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/trans-inequalities-reviewed/introduction-review 
2 Census 2011 

Page 217



6 

 

                                                 
3 Census 2011 

Page 218



7 

 

 

Page 219



8 

 

 

                                                 
4 Census 2011, rounded to 2 decimal figures 

Page 220



9 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
5https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/articles/subnationalsexualidentityest

imates/uk2013to2015#introduction 
6 Census 2011 

Page 221



10 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
7 Data based upon households containing a female parent with a dependent child aged 0-1 years old claiming Housing 

Benefit or Council Tax Relief, 15/06/2016-14/06/2017.  

Page 222



11 

 

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 
- 

- 

 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 

Page 223



12 

 

 
- 

 

Page 224



13 

 

 

 

Page 225



14 

 

 

Page 226



15 

 

 

Page 227



16 

 

 

 

Page 228



17 

 

 

Page 229



18 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
8 Census 2011 

 

Page 230



19 

 

 

Page 231



20 

 

- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 

- 

- 

Page 232



21 

 

 

Page 233



22 

 

 

Page 234



23 

 

 

Page 235



24 

 

Page 236



25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 237



26 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 238



27 

 

Page 239



28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 240



29 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 241



30 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 242



31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 243



32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 244



33 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 245



34 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 246



35 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 247



36 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 248



37 

 

Page 249



38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 250



Review of  the procurement of  a 
development partner for High Road 
West Tottenham

London Borough of  Haringey

DRAFT 01 September 2017

Partner: Paul Dossett

T: +44 (20) 77283180 

E: paul.dossett@uk.gt.com

Page 251



Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Gra nt Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.

A list of members is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldw ide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. 
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or om issions. Please see www.grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

1 September 2017

Dear Tracie, 

Review of  the procurement of  a development partner for High Road West 

Tottenham 

Further to our letter of engagement dated 23 August 2017,  wehave pleasure in enclosing a copy of our report (the 

‘Report’) containing the findings from our review of the Council’s arrangements for procurement of a development 

partner for High Road West Tottenham on behalf of the London Borough of Haringey ('the Council’). Notwithstanding 

the scope of this engagement, responsibility for management decisions will remain with the Council and not with Grant 

Thornton UK LLP.

Limitation of liability

We draw the Council’s attention to the limitation of liability clauses in paragraphs 5.1 to 5.9 in the Terms of Engagement 

between the Council and Grant Thornton UK LLP dated 23 August 2017.

Forms of report

For the Council's convenience, this report may have been made available to the Council in electronic as well as hard copy 

format, multiple copies and versions of this report may therefore exist in different media and in the case of any 

discrepancy the final signed hard copy should be regarded as definitive.

Confidentiality and reliance

We accept no duty of care nor assume any responsibility to any person other than the Council in relation to this report and 

our work.  Any third party who chooses to rely upon this report or our work shall do so entirely at their own risk.

General

The report is issued on the understanding that the management of the Council have drawn our attention to all matters, 

financial or otherwise, of which they are aware which may have an impact on our report up to the date of signature of this 

report. Events and circumstances occurring after the date of our report will, in due course, render our report out of date 

and, accordingly, we will not accept a duty of care nor assume a responsibility for decisions and actions which are based 

upon such an out of date report. Additionally, we have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances 

occurring after this date.

We would like to thank the Council's officers for making themselves available during the course of the review.

Paul Dossett

Paul Dossett

Partner and Head of Local Government

For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Our Ref: [PD1]

Tracie Evans
Interim Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

London Borough of Haringey

Civic Centre
High Road

Wood Green
N22 8LE

Grant Thornton UK LLP

30 Finsbury Square

LONDON

EC2P 2YU

T +44 (0)20 7383 5100

F +44 (0)20 7383 4715

grantthornton.co.uk

Page 252



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved |  Draft

Review of the Council's arrangements for the procurement of a development partner for High Road West Tottenham | 

September 2017

Section Page

Summary findings 04

Detailed findings 05

Timeline of activities/decisions 11

Table of  Contents

3

Page 253



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved |  Draft

Review of the Council's arrangements for the procurement of a development partner for High Road West Tottenham | 

September 2017

Summary findings

Grant Thornton UK LLP were 

commissioned by the London Borough 

of  Haringey to undertake an 

independent review of  the Council’s 

arrangements for procurement of  a 

development partner for High Road 

West Tottenham. 

Our work was undertaken during weeks commencing 21 and 

28 August 2017. 

With regard to this procurement exercise, our aim was to 

assess the following:

• Compliance with the Council’s Standing Orders and 

Financial Regulations

• Compliance with the Council’s procedures for public 

consultation

• The extent and adequacy of governance and scrutiny 

arrangements exercised by Members

We reviewed the Council’s Standing Orders, Financial 

Regulations and further relevant procedures including the 

Council’s Procurement Code of Practice. We identified the 

specific requirements and stipulations that obtain in the case 

of this procurement exercise. In each case we obtained 

evidence from management to enable us to reach an 

informed view on the three areas under consideration, as 

listed above. 

Based on the evidence provided to us we are satisfied that 

the Council has complied with its own policies and 

procedures in carrying out this procurement exercise. We 

have identified no material omissions or examples of non-

compliance with regard to Standing Orders, Financial 

Regulations or the Procurement Code of Practice. 

We have been provided with committee reports and 

supporting documentation extending back to 2013, which 

demonstrate that decisions have been taken in accordance 

with the Council’s constitution and that the local community 

were informed and consulted and their preferred option 

clearly evident in published reports.

We provided a detailed report of our findings to 

management on 1 September 2017. 

4

Page 254



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved |  Draft

Review of the Council's arrangements for the procurement of a development partner for High Road West Tottenham | 

September 2017

Detailed findings

5

Requirement Summary findings Conclusion

All procurement should be conducted 

via the Corporate procurement system.

We have been provided with a series of screenshots

and system logs to demonstrate that the procurement 

process has been conducted to date using the Delta 

e-sourcing portal 

No compliance 

issues identified

Cabinet are responsible for holding 

Directors to account for any decision 

made under their delegated authority

The masterplan was in sight of the cabinet committee 

on the following dates as per the council minutes. 

This gives the opportunity for cabinet to challenge 

and hold management to account. 

28th November 2013, 15th July 2014, 15th December 

2014, 16th December 2014, 13th September 2016

No compliance 

issues identified

Cabinet approve awards of contracts 

over £500,000

This decision will be made by Cabinet on the 12 

September 2017

Meeting not yet 

held. 

Award of contracts of £500,000 or 

more should be treated as ‘key

decisions’ and be recorded in the 

Forward Plan.

Forward plans viewed on website where this is 

detailed. Viewed the entry for August 2017 as the 

most up to date version, however previous iterations 

are still held on the website from earlier in the 

process. As per section 5 of the Constitution this is 

part of the Council policy. 

No compliance 

issues identified

All cabinet reports for contracts over 

£500,000 must contain comments 

from Finance, Legal and Strategic 

Procurement.

We reviewed five Cabinet reports from November 

2013 to December 2016. All of these reports included 

comments from Finance, Legal and Strategic 

Procurement.

No compliance 

issues identified

Key decisions should be compliant 

with the Constitution.

As per section 5 of the Constitution a key decision is 

defined as: 

In terms of the first part of the definition set out 

above, the following shall be key decisions: 

(a) Award of contracts or expenditure estimated at 

£500K or above except “spot contracts” and 

contracts for the supply of energy to the Council 

(b) Virements between service area revenue cash 

limits of £250k or above 

(c) Virements between service area capital budgets. 

As this regeneration constitutes a key decision have 

examined below that the treatment of this is 

consistent with that required for a key decision. No 

issues to note. 

No compliance 

issues identified

Ensure compliance with EU law, 

England law.

OJEU notice issued on the 3 June 2016.

Legal advice was obtained from Eversheds to 

support the procurement process.  This advice was 

summarised and provided within the Cabinet papers 

(December 2015).

In addition all Cabinet papers include a comment by 

the Council’s legal advisors, setting out the legal 

implications and impact.

No compliance 

issues identified

Compliance with Standing orders, financial regulations and Procurement code of  

Practice

Page 255



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved |  Draft

Review of the Council's arrangements for the procurement of a development partner for High Road West Tottenham | 

September 2017

6

Requirement Summary Findings Conclusion

Procurement based on qualitative 

selection questionnaire must comply 

with the Crown Commercial Services.

We have reviewed CCS guidance on this issue and we are 

satisfied that the selection questionnaire is compliant 

with this. 

No compliance 

issues identified

The responsible Director should 

record in writing the total value of the 

contract, to confirm if EU regulations 

apply.

Those above £160,000 should be led 

by Strategic Procurement.

Evidence indicates that OJEU notice was published on 3 

June 2016.

As per the ISOS it is clear this features in the strategic 

plan as this plan is included in part of the bid 

information. Given the project value, the procurement 

has been led by the Business Unit and has received 

advice and support from the Strategic Procurement 

Team throughout the duration of the process. Evidence 

for this review has been received directly from Strategic 

Procurement staff involved in the process. 

No compliance 

issues identified

Contracts over the value of £500,000 

must be let following publication of an 

appropriate advertisement.

All contracts over £25,000 must be 

published on “contracts finder”.

Evidence indicates that OJEU notice was published on 3 

June 2016. 

We viewed the entry on contracts finder which stipulates 

published date, closing date, contract start date and 

contract end date. 

No compliance 

issues identified

The procedure to be followed must be 

determined prior to advertising.

Cabinet agreed in December 2015 that the process would 

follow the competitive dialogue procedure, prior to the 

advertisement in June 2016

No compliance 

issues identified

All communication and information 

exchange should be conducted via 

electronic means of communication

Per the bid instructions at 30.2.5 and 42.4 per the ISOS 

documentation all communication must be on the e-

portal; thus electronic communications. 

No compliance 

issues identified

Decisions and approval of awards 

should be evidenced within the 

Corporate Procurement System

The procurement process has not yet been concluded, 

however we have been provided with a series of 

screenshots and system logs to demonstrate that the 

procurement process has to date been conducted using 

the Delta e-sourcing portal and that the decision and 

award will also be recorded and notified through that 

route. 

No compliance 

issues identified

Electronic bids may be opened at the 

appointed time by one officer.

We have completed a walk-through of the process for 

submission, opening and distribution of bids to 

evaluators and moderators via the Delta portal. We are 

satisfied that the process has been conducted robustly.   

No compliance 

issues identified

Detailed findings
Compliance with Standing orders, financial regulations and Procurement Code of  

Practice

Page 256



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved |  Draft

Review of the Council's arrangements for the procurement of a development partner for High Road West Tottenham | 

September 2017

Detailed findings

7

Requirement Summary findings Conclusion

The Head of procurement must 

ensure the independence of 

officers engaged in the 

procurement process.

We have been provided with copies of declarations of conflict of 

interest signed by the following officers: 

Helen Fisher, - Tottenham Programme Director

Helen McDonough – Head of Socio-Economic Regeneration for 

Tottenham 

Judith Walker – Head of Libraries and Customer Services

Liz Skelland – Tottenham Programme Manager

Matthew Maple – Regeneration Programme Officer

Patrick Uzice – Principal Laywer, Property

Paul Carten – Senior Finance Business Partner

Sarah Lovell – Area Regeneration Manager (High Road West) 

Steve Clark – Strategic Procurement

No

compliance 

issues 

identified

Officers must complete a 

declaration of conflict for each 

procurement project valued at 

£160,000 or above

As above No 

Compliance

issues noted. 

The tender documents must 

outline the basis on which bids will 

be evaluated. Evaluation criteria 

and scoring methodology must be 

clearly defined.

As evidenced in the ISOS/ITCD and ISFT weighting is assigned 

to each question with each also defining what constitutes ‘at a 

minimum’ requirements and ‘bidders should also’ considerations. 

Thus the scoring criteria is defined. 

No 

Compliance

issues noted. 

The bids are to be accepted on the 

basis of the most economically 

advantageous tender (MEAT).

Scoring criteria has been reviewed within the procurement 

documents which show a clear process to understanding and 

identifying the MEAT offering. 

No 

Compliance 

issues noted. 

Bidders clarification questions 

should be responded to promptly 

and circulated to all bidders.

We have been provided with a log of correspondence between 

the Council and prospective bidders on the DELTA system, 

which indicates a timely response to queries and transparent 

sharing of information with all bidders. 

No 

Compliance 

issues noted. 

Prior to the award of contracts 

over £160,000 financial or credit 

checks should be undertaken on 

the preferred bidder. This may also 

include insurance certificates, 

industry accreditation etc.

This is done after the agreement of Cabinet scheduled for 12th

September 2017. 

Meeting not 

yet held. 

Abnormally low bids, should be 

evaluated.

“43.1 The Council reserves the right to reject any ISOS 

Submission(s) on the grounds of being abnormally low in 

accordance with Regulation 69 of the Regulations.” In this 

instance however no abnormally low bids were received. 

No 

Compliance 

issues noted. 

The Procurement code of 

practices requires that there is a 

clear audit trail to support all 

procurement activity.

All decisions on tendering and 

contract letting must be clearly 

documented, with sufficient detail 

to support decisions.

Signed record of decision to begin procurement process viewed. 

Delegated authority clear from cosignatories of Director of 

Regeneration, Planning and Development following consultation 

with Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning. 

This flows from the Cabinet decisions as detailed below which 

act as a decision audit trail. 

No 

Compliance 

issues noted. 

Compliance with Standing orders, financial regulations and Procurement Code of  

Practice

Page 257



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved |  Draft

Review of the Council's arrangements for the procurement of a development partner for High Road West Tottenham | 

September 2017

Detailed findings

8

Requirement Summary findings Conclusion

Range of consultation undertaken to 

engage with the local community:

• Love Lane Residents 

• Local Businesses

• Wide stakeholder

Need to assess if this is transparent 

and outcomes reported

In November 2013 Cabinet were provided with the High 

Road West Consultation Feedback Report, but also 

approved further consultation as the masterplan was 

developed. 

The High Road West Consultation Feedback Report 

included qualitative and quantitative feedback over an 

eight week period and sought to inform the process as 

well as inform others on what was being proposed. It was 

aimed at three main groups:

1. Love Lane residents

2. Residents of the wider community

3. Local business services

A range of methods were used and the results provided to 

Cabinet, including the preferred option for the masterplan 

for each of the groups listed above. The Cabinet report 

provided a brief summary of these findings.

Cabinet agreed to develop a Residents Charter. The 

Residents’ Charter will set out Love Lane Residents’ 

aspirations for the regeneration proposals and build on 

the housing assurances given to residents to ensure that 

they are not adversely affected by any future regeneration 

proposals.

This was a public report and features in the cabinet 

minutes. 

Full Council and Scrutiny have not had an opportunity to 

formally respond to these reports and the decisions 

within.

Detailed 

consultation 

undertaken and 

Cabinet were made 

aware of the results 

and the decisions 

they were required 

to make as a result.

The Local 

community were 

informed and 

consulted and their 

preferred option 

clearly evident in 

the Committee 

papers.

In July 2014 Cabinet agreed:

• the Love Lane Residents Charter

• principles and approach to engagement within the 

High Road West Consultation and Engagement 

Strategy

• the approach to undertake statutory consultation with 

Council tenants on Love Lane Estate.

These all ensured that the Council continued to consult 

and meet its statutory obligations.  

This was a public report as per the cabinet minutes.

Full Council and Scrutiny have not had an opportunity to 

formally respond to these reports and the decisions 

within.

Cabinet were 

provided with 

detailed document 

that set out what 

consultation had 

ben undertaken, 

what was proposed 

and why.

Compliance with the Council’s procedures for public consultation

Page 258



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved |  Draft

Review of the Council's arrangements for the procurement of a development partner for High Road West Tottenham | 

September 2017

Detailed findings

9

Requirement Summary findings Conclusion

Evidence of a range of 

consultation activities 

undertaken to engage with 

the local community, 

including:

• Love Lane Residents 

• Local Businesses

• Wider stakeholders

Evidence to demonstrate 

that the results of 

procurement exercises are 

transparent and that 

outcomes are publically 

reported

The December 2014 Cabinet report provided the results of the 

next phase of the consultation process (September 2013 to October 

2015) and the masterplan which has taken account of the results of 

the consultation.

This stage of the consultation also included the statutory 

requirements for council tenants.

Building on the consultation undertaken the Council approved 

Secure Council Tenant, Leaseholder and Private Tenant Guides, the 

Business Charter and agreed to annually review the Love lane 

Residents Charter.

This was a public meeting as per cabinet report with notifications 

of filming rights. 

Full Council and Scrutiny have not had an opportunity to formally 

respond to these reports and the decisions within.

We have been 

provided with 

copies of published 

material including 

the masterplan –

no compliance 

issues noted. 

Cabinet Report December 2015

This report provided the High Road West Objectives for approval, 

which informed the procurement objectives.

It included:

• business case for approval

• agreement to the Competitive Dialogue Procedure under the 

Public Contracts Regulations to procure a commercial partner, 

to deliver the High Road West Regeneration Scheme

• delegated authority to the Director of Regeneration, Planning 

and Development, after consultation with the Cabinet Member 

for Housing and Regeneration, to deselect bidders, in line with 

the evaluation criteria, throughout the procurement process and 

to return to Cabinet for approval of the preferred bidder 

following the conclusion of the procurement process This was a 

public meeting, with the majority of information being available 

to the public, except for some exempt information. Eg

commercially sensitive information.

The outcome of 

this decision was 

clearly 

communicated and 

reported through 

the council 

website. 

Cabinet Report September 2016

This report provided the background and covered the approval of 

the funding for the scheme.  The majority of the information was 

available to the public, apart from a short paper which sets out the 

funding and its sources for the project.

The outcome of 

this decision was 

clearly 

communicated and 

reported through 

the council website

Cabinet report September 2017

This report sets out the preferred bidder, the process thus far in the 

procurement exercise (a reiteration of previous cabinet viewed 

reports as above) and the preferred bidder with robust explanation 

as to why. 

This Cabinet

meeting is yet to be 

held. 

Compliance with the Council’s procedures for public consultation

Page 259



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved |  Draft

Review of the Council's arrangements for the procurement of a development partner for High Road West Tottenham | 

September 2017

Detailed findings

10

Requirement Summary findings Conclusion

Have Cabinet received 

adequate information to enable 

them to make informed 

decisions?

Can be concluded from the cabinet reports as previously 

detailed that sufficient information was provided. 

No compliance 

issues noted

Have the procedures for ‘key 

decisions’ been followed,

including delegated decisions?’

Key decisions are featured on the forward plan as is 

appropriate as per section 5 of the Constitution. These have 

also been taken to Cabinet as part of delegated authority 

overview. 

Delegation is appropriate as per Section 2 of the

Constitution of the council noted on their website. 

Part 4 of the Constitution states: “Key decisions may only be 

taken by the Leader, the Cabinet, or a Committee of the 

Cabinet, or an individual Cabinet Member or the Chief 

Executive as described below. Decision-making is allocated 

between these bodies/persons in accordance with of the 

Executive Responsibilities at Part 3 Section C and the Cabinet 

collectively may also delegate specific decisions to a 

committee of the Cabinet or an officer.”. The repeated 

updates to Cabinet show compliance with this. 

No compliance 

issues noted

Do the minutes of Cabinet

meetings indicate that the 

decisions have been based on 

robust discussion and debate?

Cabinet minutes show robust discussion and debate between 

management and councillors in regards to the redevelopment. 

No compliance 

issues noted

Scrutiny – role and 

responsibility to be taken from 

the Constitution

The OSC’s functions are set out in the Constitution. There is 

a protocol setting out how OSC operates. The Council’s 

Policy, Intelligence and Partnership Unit coordinate the work 

programme of the OSC at the beginning of each civic year. 

Officers  may  suggest an item for scrutiny but is not obliged 

too. The OSC has regard to these suggestions when they 

decide their work programme. The OSC itself may request 

reports from the areas mentioned in the Protocol. There has 

been no referrals  to or call ins so far from the OSC on the 

HRW procurement exercise. Scrutiny have not been involved 

to date 

No compliance 

issues noted

Full Council are responsible 

for monitoring compliance 

with Council policy and related 

cabinet decisions

No reports have been issued to Full Council.

No decisions taken in relation to High Road West to date 

have required a Full Council decision.  The decision to 

dispose of land and seek Secretary of States Consent to 

dispose are the only Full Council decisions and as set out in 

the Cabinet report which is due to go to Cabinet on 

September 12th, these will be taken to full Council (with the 

12th Sept Cabinet report) following the  12th Cabinet decision. 

This meeting has 

not yet taken 

place. 

Governance and scrutiny role exercised by members throughout the process.  

We have considered the role of  Cabinet and delegated decisions, Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and Full Council.

Page 260



Timeline of  activities/decisions

Month/year Timeline

February 2012 Cabinet decision made to develop a masterplan and regeneration proposal for High Road West, 

Tottenham.

March to 

September 2012 

Consultation undertaken on three masterplan options.

November 2013 Cabinet decision made to develop a comprehensive masterplan for further consultation with the 

community.

September to 

October 2014

Six week consultation process on High Road West Regeneration Proposals, including the 

masterplan framework.

Statutory consultation undertaken with secure council residents living in Love Lane Estate.

December 2014 Cabinet presented with feedback on consultation and agreed the masterplan framework.

Love Lane residents charter agreed.

Funding requirements agreed.

Negotiations with Tottenham Hotspurs Football Club agreed, to include possible land pooling 

agreement.

December 2015 Cabinet provided with a progress update since December 2014.

Cabinet approved:

• the High Road West objectives

• business case , with the Director of Regeneration, Planning and Development in consultation 

with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Regeneration to refine following soft market testing 

• commencement of a Competitive Dialogue Procedure, under the Public Contracts Regulations 

to procure a commercial partner

• delegated authority to the Director of Regeneration, Planning and Development in consultation 

with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Regeneration and to agree all documentation 

required to support the procurement process and to deselect bidders, in line with evaluation 

criteria, and to return to cabinet for approval of the preferred bidder

• the phasing plan and to commence re-housing of the Love lane Estate.

Soft market testing

Start of Completive Dialogue procedure

OJEU notice issued

September 2016 Cabinet key decision, approval of funding for High Road West Housing Zone 2.

Page 261



‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide 

assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL 

and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide 

services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved | Draft

Page 262



1 
 

 

 

 

Page 263



2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 264



3 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 265



4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 266



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 267



6 
 

 

 

Page 268



7 
 

Page 269



8 
 

 

 

 

Page 270



9 
 

Page 271



10 
 

Page 272



11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 273



12 
 

Page 274



13 
 

- 
- 
- 
- 

Page 275



14 
 

Page 276



15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 277



16 
 

Page 278



17 
 

Page 279



This page is intentionally left blank



High Road West - Council Risk Register v 18th August 2017
Ref

Risk Description
[identify the risk(s) to the programme that would 

reduce or remove the likelihood of  the programme 

reaching its objectives include: the cause or 

source of risk, the event and its effect]

Possible causes of the Risk Possible consequences of the risk
Timing/ 

deadline
Risk Owner 

Impact
if risk occurs  

(1(low) - 5 (high))

Probability 

of risk 

occurring  

(1(low) - 5 

(high))

Mitigating Action 
[summarise the actions to reduce or eliminate the risk(s) 

associated with the project. It is good practice to formulate 

mitigation actions in conjunction with colleagues]

RAG Status 
[combine score of risk 

impact and risk 

probability]

Open / Closed Date closed

1

Ability of the Council and preferred bidder 

to conclude the contract negotiations 

within 3 months.

Capacity of the Council to manage the process 

- skills, resources;   contract T&C's not 

acceptable to one or other party.

Timescales slip; reputation risks to the Council and 

preferred bidder; potential impact on the relationship 

between the Council, preferred bidder and third parties.

3 months from end 

of standstill period.

Head of Area 

Regeneration
4 3

A robust programme will be put in place following 

the conclusion of the standstill periods. External 

and in-house legal and commercial advisors are 

actively engaged with Council officers to identify 

and close out any terms which may cause 

problems.  

12 Open

2
Failure of the Council to enter into the DA 

and associated legal documents.

Signing of the legal agreements may be 

compromised or significantly delayed due to 

the decision not properly made and/or 

successfully challenged through Council or 

judicial processes.

Non achievement of the delivery of the Scheme 

objectives and growth figures; unsustainable financial 

future; reputation risks to the Council; impact on the 

Council's ability to secure partners for future 

development projects

Late December 

2017/early January 

2018

Head of Area 

Regeneration
4 2

Communication with senior officers, Council 

Members and the public is in place to ensure 

concerns are answered and proposals are 

aligned with Members' expectations; where 

action is required it is built into project. Corporate 

procedures and processes in place to respond to 

enquiries and FOI's. Detailed legal assurance 

(including by QC) of cabinet papers. An internal 

and an external audit of the Scheme has taken 

place. 

8 Open

3
Failure in governance arrangements 

pertaining to the Steering Group.

Council processes conflict with the Steering 

Group;   Capacity of the Council to manage 

the process: skills and/or resources;   incorrect 

or inadequate legal advice. 

Key decisions either (a) delayed (b) are not made 

causing a delay to the scheme and loss of community 

confidence.

Post DA being 

signed

Head of Area 

Regeneration
4 2

The Council will ensure that officers representing 

the Council on the Steering Group and actioning 

as points of escalation are identified. It is 

important that officers have the correct level of 

seniority and are able to make decisions. 

8 Open

4

Failure of the Steering Group to complete 

the site wide conditions pertaining to the 

DA. 

Not securing Secretary of States Consent to 

dispose of housing land;  the development 

partner not securing planning approval; the 

Steering Group failing to agree the necessary 

strategies. This could be caused by  incorrect 

or inadequate legal advice;  incorrect or 

inadequate  planning advice; disagreement 

between organisations in the Steering Group. 

The DA does not become unconditional and the 

Scheme is not taken forward.

Post signing the 

DA. 

Head of Area 

Regeneration
4 2

External legal and QC advice will be secured and 

statutory processes followed accurately. Early 

development of the strategies and joint working 

on the strategies to ensure that they can be 

agreed quickly.

8 Open

5
Insufficiently robust legal terms and 

financial model. 

Capacity of the Council to conclude and 

execute the agreements skills and/or 

resources; incorrect or inadequate legal and/or 

commercial advice. 

Financial losses to the Council; unsustainable financial 

future; non-achievement of the Scheme's objectives.

Late December 

2017/early January 

2018

Head of Area 

Regeneration
5 1

Senior internal governance is in place to steer 

outcomes on critical issues and approve final 

terms. Expert commercial and legal advice is in 

place through to finalisation of documents. 

5 Open

6
Insufficient funds or Treasury 

arrangements to cash flow the Scheme.

A delay in entering into the individual Borough 

Intervention Agreements with the GLA; a delay 

in the Council joining the Group Investment 

Syndicate.

The Council needs to use it's own funds to cash flow 

acquisitions; a delay in acquiring land.

Post signing the 

DA. 

Head of Area 

Regeneration
4 1

Overarching Borough Agreement is in place with 

the GLA and individual BIA's are being 

progressed. The July 2016 Cabinet ring fenced 

fundinging to support the delivery of the Scheme.

4 Open

7
Public/ stakeholder/ media opposition to 

the Scheme and preferred bidder.

Propagation of misinformation, inadequate 

consultation and/ or community engagement 

processes; inadequate communications/ media 

management programme.

Non achievement of the Scheme objectives; reputation 

risks to the Council and preferred bidder; impact on the 

Council's ability to secure partners for future 

development projects.  Resident concern increases 

member opposition and/or vice versa.

Pre- and post when 

DA being signed.

Head of Area 

Regeneration
3 3

Building on the existing successful engagement 

with the community, the Council will put in place 

a robust communications and engagement 

programme, following selection of the preferred 

bidder. Post signing of the DA, the Council and 

the preferred bidder will  implement (a) a robust 

shared communications plan and (b) a strong 

commitment to transparency. The High Road 

West Team have spent many years engaging 

and building relationships with the community- 

these relationships will be key to the success of 

any future communications and engagement 

strategies.

9 Open

8

Interdependencies, or potential conflict, 

between other Council/third party 

regeneration projects in North Tottenham 

(WHL station, WHL public realm, THFC, 

HDV).

The Council's regeneration function not 

fulfilling its overall leadership and co-

ordination role; The preferred bidder and third 

parties not co-operating or communicating with 

Council and each other.

Delays to delivery of the Scheme, and other critical 

regeneration projects; reputation risks to the Council 

and preferred bidder; impact on the Council's ability to 

secure partners for future development projects;   

potential financial losses due to non-completion of 

development. 

Post signing the 

DA. 

Director of 

Regeneration
3 2

The regeneration projects in North Tottenham 

are coordinated through the Tottenham 

Regeneration Programme governance structure. 

Dependencies/risks across key projects are 

caught in risk registers and in other relevant 

programmes and actively managed. Council's 

regeneration function will co-ordinate 

development activity and brokering relationships. 

The DA will also ensure that a landowners Group 

is established to facilitate the coordination of the 

three major regeneration schemes in North 

Tottenham; High Road West, Northumberland 

Development Project and Northumberland Park 

Estate.  

6 Open

P
age 281



9
Lack of transparency of the financial 

model and associated assumptions.

Lack of Council resources to fully interrogate 

and challenge the assumptions in the financial 

model.

Assumptions within the financial model are incorrect; 

the Council's land value is affected. Overall Scheme 

viability undermined.

When the DA is 

unconditional.

Head of Area 

Regeneration
4 1

The DA sets a framework for open book 

accounting and transparently.  The preferred 

bidder will also pay for an independent cost 

consultant who will have a duty of care to the 

Council. The procurement strategy will also be 

agreed at the Steering Group. The Council will 

put in place the necessary recourse internally 

and externally to monitor the financial model and 

assumptions. 

4 Open

10 Termination of the DA.

Judicial Review challenges; failure of the 

Council or preferred partner to undertake 

obligations within the DA. 

Financial risk to Council and preferred partner.  

Jeopardy of outcomes;  Reputational risk to all parties.  

Even if failure avoided, there is risk of need to bring 

expensive consultants in at short notice to do so. 

When the DA is 

unconditional.

Head of Area 

Regeneration
5 2

Robust process followed to minimise risk from 

JR.   Commercial Deal structured and agreed by 

parties and experienced advisers Pinsent 

Masons and GVA,  so that Legal Documents, are 

based on this and capture market best practice, 

negotiation at Steering Group.

10 Open

11

Preferred bidder enters into 

administration/ is subject to take over and 

does not have the resources to deliver 

alongside other major projects..

Poor financial evaluation/ modelling processes 

by the Council and/ or preferred bidder; 

changes to wider economic circumstances or 

legislation impact on the viability of the 

preferred bidder; Bidder has a lack of 

resources to deliver the Scheme.

Cost implications for non-delivery of projects - legal 

challenges from contractors; non-achievement of, or 

delay to the Council objects; reputation risks to the 

Council and the preferred bidder

Post signing the 

DA. 

Head of Area 

Regeneration
4 1

Due diligence in the procurement process has 

assessed financial viability of the preferred 

bidder and ability to resource and deliver the 

Scheme. Ongoing review of the preferred 

bidder's financial performance will be undertaken 

post signing the DA. Independent assurance 

processes (audit) assigned to review the 

Scheme.

4 Open

12

Loss of focus on or failure to deliver the 

non-housing outcomes e.g. social 

economic, sustainability.  

Lack of financial incentives/ outcomes for the 

preferred bidder;  poor engagement and/ or 

communications between the council and the 

preferred bidder; contract T&C's do not cover 

the required delivery outcomes.

Breakdown in the relationship between the partners; 

non achievement of the Tottenham People Priority 

objectives; reputation risks to the Council and preferred 

bidder; negative media coverage; impact on the 

Council's ability to secure partners for future 

development projects

When the DA is 

unconditional.

Head of Socio 

Economic 

Regeneration 

3 1

Robust legal structure in place, which ensures 

that socio-economic outcomes are a condition 

which must be satisfied prior to land being drawn 

down. Therefore Scheme can not proceed if 

socio-economic outcomes are not achieved.

3 Open

13

Planning requirements including 

conservation, environmental, transport or 

other obligations makes viability and / or 

delivery generally difficult.

Compliance with requirements of planning 

policy, including affordable housing, viability 

review mechanisms is more difficult than 

anticipated, either due to overestimation of 

delivery team, stakeholder intervention, 

regional intervention or political intervention.

Need to refine the scheme, potentially putting pressure 

on viability, particularly on social benefits and 

potentially putting fundamental pressures on delivering 

elements of the scheme

Planning process

Head of Area 

Regeneration/  

Developer

3 3

Liaise with Planning colleagues throughout 

process, agree to Planning Performance 

Agreement, ensure high quality of skills and 

capacity to understand planning needs.

9 Open

14
Unexpected ground conditions such as 

contamination of land.

As much of the site is formerly industrial, there 

is a possibility of significant substructure 

contamination on site, particularly to the north 

(probably later phases) and Moselle Culvert 

may be too fragile to build around.

Additional cost of remediation / alternative methodology 

for delivery - e.g. if ground conditions don't sustain 

quantum / size of buildings, additional piling might be 

needed

Pre-construction Developer 3 2

Due diligence has been undertaken, indicating 

that there is limited risk of significant ground 

condition problems.  Further site surveys will be 

required during and post planning to better 

understand implications of ground conditions.

6 Open

15
Library and Learning Centre does not 

meet user needs.

Lack of understanding, e.g. through lack of 

engagement or rapid advances / changes in 

technology or changing use needs means that 

LLC is not fit for purpose.

Underused facility with problematic business case Planning process
Head of Area 

Regeneration
2 1

Close engagement with library providers and 

users, combined with levels of expertise in 

delivery to ensure flexible long term solution to 

delivery of library.  Need client support consisting 

of consultant library expertise.

2 Open

16

Land assembly including associated 

issues such as Rights of Light and 

achieving clean title is not achieved.

Unwilling land owners, lack of information, 

poor case (e.g. at CPO).

Delays or worst case scenario, changes required to the 

scheme which could change delivery of objectives or 

viability of the scheme.

Planning process
Head of 

Regeneration
4 2

Legal advice throughout the process; proactive 

and professional property team including 

engagement, valuation and property agency 

services.

8 Open

17

Costs for project delivery of elements of 

the scheme (e.g. Library and Learning 

Centre) are higher than anticipated and 

put pressure on the social benefits. 

Changing financial markets or underestimate 

of complexity of project / additional costs of 

delivery, changing of specification. 

Underspecified facility or pressure on other social 

benefits
Pre-construction

Head of Area 

Regeneration
2 1

Professional team ensuring that specification is 

fit for purpose and costs are identified from the 

outset with contingency for changes throughout 

the scheme whether due to internal or external 

pressures.

2 Open

18

Failure to overcome negative perception 

of the north Tottenham area results in 

failure to attract residential, commercial or 

other investment.

Scheme is not of a high enough quality or 

marketing is not effective

Challenges to viability in later phases.  Reputational 

damage to the Council
Construction phase

Director of 

Regeneration
4 1

Professional team ensuring that high quality is 

provided throughout the scheme and that quality 

is known in the market so that investment is 

attracted.

4 Open

19

Failure to deliver in accordance with 

external funding (Housing Zone) 

requirements.

Changes to the scheme combined with 

pressures on the fund
Reduction in the quality of the scheme / social benefits Delivery

Head of 

Regeneration
3 1

Close working with GLA colleagues and 

monitoring of the Housing Zone objectives 

through the Tottenham Regeneration 

Programme.

3 Open

P
age 282



20

Changes in government, legislation, or 

national/regional policy affect ability to 

achieve defined outcomes. 

Poor financial evaluation/ modelling processes 

by the Council and/ or preferred bidder 

following changes - failing to take account of 

legislation requirements; changes to wider 

economic circumstances.  Potential impact of 

Brexit on the housing and commercial property 

markets and construction labour market.  

Potential impact of legislation/regulation 

changes following Grenfell Tower fire. 

Breakdown in the relationship between the partners; 

legal challenges and financial losses to the Council; 

reputational risk; impact on the Council's ability to 

secure partners for future development projects 

When the DA is 

unconditional.

Head of Area 

Regeneration
3 2

The Steering Group and members will 

continuously monitor external environment, 

horizon scanning. The Council, the preferred 

bidder and the Steering Group will provide input 

into decisions which may need to be taken as a 

result of external factors.

6 Open

21
Loss of key staff and failure to fully 

resource to deliver.

Better jobs elsewhere / retirement / maternity 

leave.

Loss of skills reduces quality of the scheme and power 

of the Council to get social benefits from the developer.
Ongoing

Director of 

Regeneration
2 3

Good quality personnel approach combined with 

speedy and effective replacement process 

should key staff leave. Succession 

planning/Training of more staff to understand 

regeneration and related finance issues. 

6 Open

22
The preferred bidders performance is not 

adequate.

The preferred bidder and the Scheme do not 

meet the Scheme's objectives as defined in 

Development Agreement; the preferred bidder 

doesn't deliver to programme as attached to 

the DA;  the preferred bidder doesn't have 

adequate policies, procedures or protections in 

place; external factors (including housing 

market performance) hinder the preferred 

bidder's ability to meet objectives. 

The Scheme's objectives are not met.  Council 

outcomes and financial returns are not achieved.  

Reputational damage to the Council and preferred 

bidder.  

When the DA is 

unconditional.

Head of Area 

Regeneration
3 2

Steering Group will put adequate programme and 

risk management procedures in place, including 

for communication and escalation of critical 

issues.  The Council  will continuously assure 

quality of delivery. Member scrutiny via Overview 

and Scrutiny; engagement and communications 

strategy - resident and stakeholder involvement.  

6 Open

23

Interdependencies  in delivery of the 

District Energy Network (DEN) serving 

HRW.

Lack of co-ordinated delivery of District Energy 

Network (DEN) infrastructure at HRW.  Delays 

to preferred bidder programme delays delivery 

of the DEN Energy Centre Shell; Delays to the 

Council's  procurement of DEN contractors;  

Lack of technical & commercial information is 

available to inform the HRW preferred bidder 

creating uncertainty for energy creation and 

supply during initial phases.

An interim energy solutions for early HRW phases is 

required; the Scheme's overarching delivery programme 

is delayed;   claims for delay / compensations between 

preferred bidders at construction / implementation

When the DA is 

unconditional.

Head of Area 

Regeneration
3 2

The regeneration projects in North Tottenham 

are coordinated through the Tottenham 

Regeneration Programme governance structure. 

Dependencies/risks across key projects are 

caught in risk registers and in other relevant 

programmes and actively managed. Council's 

regeneration function will co-ordinate 

development activity and brokering relationships. 

The Council will assess delivery of the DEN 

through the Steering Group.I10

6 Open

24
Failure of the project to achieve the 

assumed regeneration uplift margins. 

Risk that cost increases are higher due to the 

potential for interest rates to increase 

combined with Brexit pressure in labour force 

availability which may drive up labour costs.

Delay in delivery as phases are either marginal or not 

viable and phases are delayed until sales value 

increase and/or phases are reworked to drive value.

Pre and Post 

Agreement 

signature

Head of Area 

Regeneration
4 2

Phases are reworked to allow lower cost or better 

margin phases to be brought forward. VFM 

review of supply chain. 

8 Open

26
Failure of Council to resource HRW 

Steering Group correctly.

Under-resourcing of Steering Group and 

Council support functions. Staff not authorised 

to approve issues at Steering Group. 

The ability of the Council to undertake its obligations  

and manage issues at the Steering Group is 

compromised and Council does not achieve it's 

objectives. Related CPO and land value issues are not 

fully understood, managed and approved by Council.

Pre and Post 

Agreement 

signature

Head of Area 

Regeneration
5 2

Council resources have been allocated and will 

be reviewed through the delivery of the Scheme. 

The Council will ensure that Steering Group  

Members understand the issues and are able to 

draw on their experience to manage issues at 

this level.

10 Open

Signing of the DA, establishment of the Steering Group and development of the 

strategies

·         Closed risks (grey)

·         Reputational (green)

·         External/market (yellow)

·         Regeneration delivery

·         Governance/management (blue)

P
age 283



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 11  

 
Report for:  CABINET 
 
Item number: 11 
 
Title: 500 White Hart Lane- Affordable Housing Acquisition 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Lyn Garner, Strategic Director of Regeneration, Planning and 

Development                                     
 
Lead Officer: Sarah Lovell 

Sarah.lovell@haringey.gov.uk 
0208 489 2025. 

 
 
Ward(s) affected: White Hart Lane 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Key Decision 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1 In July 2016, the owners of the 500 White Hart Lane site (“the Site”), Tottenham 

Hotspur Football and Athletic Co Ltd (“THFC”), were granted outline planning 
approval for a residential led mixed use development, which included 144 new 
homes, of which 29 are affordable, and accompanying commercial, retail and 
employment space. 
 

1.2 The S106 Agreement for the Site made provision for the Council to acquire the 
29 affordable homes due to be built on the Site at an agreed minimum price per 
square foot (subject to build cost inflation). This report seeks authority to 
acquire the 29 affordable homes and delegation to the Director of Regeneration 
and  the s151 Officer, after consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Regeneration and Planning, to agree the purchase price and the final terms of  
the acquisition of these affordable homes.  

 

2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 

2.1 As set out in our Housing Strategy we “need a step change in the number of 
homes being built in our borough” so that our residents have more housing 
choice and we “need to drive up the quality of homes” to ensure that our 
residents “can live happy fulfilled lives”. 

 
2.2 Development opportunities, such as 500 White Hart Lane, which will deliver 144 

new homes and regeneration opportunities such as High Road West, which will 
deliver up to 2,500 new homes, provide us with opportunities to not only 
increase the housing supply and choice but also deliver brand new homes that 
will be built to new fire and safety standards and  residents‟ needs in 
sustainable neighbourhoods.  

Page 285 Agenda Item 11

mailto:Sarah.lovell@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 11  

 
2.3 Whilst it is our priority to ensure that an increased number of high quality 

affordable homes are delivered across the borough, we understand that the 
landlord of the affordable homes is a key concern and priority for our residents. 
We understand, as shown by the recent s105 consultation on the Love Lane 
Estate, that when given a choice between the Council and a Housing 
Association being the landlord of their home, most existing council tenants want 
the Council to remain their landlord.    

 
2.4 It is not always possible on estate regeneration schemes and on development 

sites for the Council to acquire, own and manage either additional or 
replacement affordable homes, due to the impact this has on the Council‟s 
budgets and the impact this has on the viability of each bespoke scheme. But, 
where financially and legally possible, we will seek to acquire and manage 
homes, so that we can increase our housing stock, provide greater housing 
choice for our residents and meet the Housing Strategy objective to drive up the 
quality of council housing.  

 
2.5 For the Site, officers have negotiated a legal mechanism for the Council to 

acquire 29 safe,  new affordable homes and a price per square foot for the 
homes, which the Council can afford.  This has been possible as the 
justification for developing the Site was predicated on the fact that the Site 
would facilitate the delivery of the High Road West Scheme, which is a mile 
from the Site. The Site would facilitate High Road West by providing rehousing 
opportunities for Love Lane residents. Whilst, all secure Council tenants and 
resident leaseholders are guaranteed a new home within High Road West if 
they would like one, I promised the Love Lane residents that I would seek to 
maximise their rehousing choices. 

 
2.6 In an effort to do this, I requested that officers initiated a dialogue with Love 

Lane residents and THFC about utilising the affordable housing built on the Site 
as replacement housing for them. Love Lane residents were supportive of 
replacement homes being built for them at 500 White Hart Lane as it increased 
their rehousing choice. Subsequently, they worked with THFC in developing the 
planning application for the Site, feeding into the overall design and layout of 
the Site and the design proposals for the affordable homes. 

 
2.7  Given that the acquisition of the 29 affordable properties on the Site supports 

our housing objectives, responds to residents‟ aspirations, is affordable to the 
Council and also offers the opportunity for us to utilise Right to Buy (“RTB”) 
receipts I am recommending that the Cabinet agree to acquire these properties.  

 
3. Recommendations  

 
3.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 

I. Agrees to the future acquisition of 29 affordable homes for housing 
purposes to be constructed on the Site for a maximum total sum of 
£5m plus acquisition process costs and that the monies for the 
purchases shall be from: 
 

Page 286



 

Page 3 of 11  

a. Housing Revenue Account (“HRA”), including but not limited to the 
„HRA Stock Acquisitions Reserve‟ which currently has a budget of 
£6.4m  

b. Right to Buy (“RTB”) capital receipt retained budget 
 

II. Give delegated authority to the Director of Regeneration and the 
S151 Officer, after  consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Housing, Regeneration and Planning, to agree the purchase price for 
each of the properties and the final heads of terms of the acquisition  
which will be based on the terms of the s106 Agreement found at 
Appendix 1.  
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 
Supporting the Council‟s housing objectives  

 
4.1 The acquisition will increase the Council‟s housing stock. Increasing the 

Council‟s housing stock will help address the significant housing demand and 
housing waiting list in the Borough.  Even if some of the properties are used to 
rehouse Love Lane residents, it will mean that the replacement affordable 
homes in the High Road West Scheme can be freed up to rehouse residents on 
the housing waiting list. It will also mean that the Council has a wider variety of 
unit sizes and typologies, which will provide residents with greater housing 
choice. 

 
4.2 As the Council will be setting the specification of the homes, the Council will 

have control over the physical quality and performance of the homes. It will also 
have control over the quality of housing management. All of which support the 
Housing Strategy objective to drive up the quality of Council homes.  

   
 Supporting the High Road West Scheme and responding to residents‟ 

aspirations 
 
4.3 By acquiring these homes and ensuring that Love Lane residents have the 

opportunity to move to them1, the Council is increasing Love Lane residents‟ 
rehousing choice and responding to their request for new homes which are 
owned and managed by the Council. 

 
 Financial Case 
 
4.4 The costs of acquiring all of the 29 affordable homes will be c.£4.5m. These 

acquisitions will qualify for the use of retained RTB capital receipts to fund 30% 
of the cost of the scheme provided they are affordable rented housing. If the 
Council does not spend the RTB receipts within 3 years of the receipt, the 
money will be returned to DCLG together with interest. Therefore, acquiring the 
29 affordable units at 500 White Hart Lane ensures that the Council can spend 
RTB receipts on new affordable homes for Haringey. 

 
5.0 Alternative options considered 
 

                                        
1
 Subject to agreement of a Local Lettings Policy for the 29 affordable homes which prioritises Love Lane residents 

Page 287



 

Page 4 of 11  

5.1 The s106 Agreement for 500 White Hart Lane sets out two options for the 
affordable homes; the Council acquires the 29 affordable homes, or a 
Registered Provider (“RP”) acquires the 29 affordable homes.  

 
5.2 Officers have considered the implications of a RP acquiring the affordable 

homes and have chosen not to recommend this option for reasons which are 
set out below. 
 

5.3 If the Council choose not to acquire the properties, the S106 Agreements 
ensures that the Council would be able to approve the RP and approve the 
„Affordable Housing Scheme‟ which sets out the tenure and location of the 
affordable homes. This provides some comfort regarding the quality of the 
landlord and the affordable housing which will be delivered.  

 
5.4 However, the Council would not have as much control over the tenure, 

affordability and type of housing products as it would if the Council owned the 
homes. If an RP acquires these properties, the Council can only exercise its 
planning controls as the Council does not have a direct contractual agreement 
with the RP.  Council control is important, especially if these homes are used to 
rehouse Love Lane residents, or residents affected by regeneration schemes as 
the Council needs to be able to meet its rehousing commitments and be able to 
flex the tenure to meet the needs of residents.  

 
5.5 As an example, the s106 Agreement states that the 29 affordable units will 

comprise of the following; 
 

 17 social rent units 

 6 intermediate units 

 6 social rented and/or affordable rented and/or intermediate  
 
5.6 It also states that if an RP were to acquire the affordable homes, the last 6 units 

referred to in the bullet above are likely to be intermediate units. 

5.7 The number of intermediate properties and the intermediate product type is 
important in facilitating the rehousing of Love Lane resident leaseholders who 
will be seeking the most affordable housing product. 

5.8 Whilst it may be possible for the Council to negotiate with the RP to secure 
exactly what it wants in terms of tenure, product and affordability it may be that 
the RP would seek a financial contribution from the Council. 

5.9 If the Council were to acquire the affordable homes it would have control over 
the tenure and products of the intermediate properties and could flex the 
product to meet the needs of Love Lane residents or other priority need. 

 

 

6.0 Background and summary information 

Planning Application 

Page 288



 

Page 5 of 11  

6.1 In July 2016, THFC were granted outline planning approval for a residential led 
mixed use development, which would deliver 144 new homes, of which 29 are 
affordable, and accompanying commercial, retail and employment space for 
500 White Hart Lane (HGY/2016/0828).  
 

6.2 The Site is located on the north side of White Hart Lane close to the junction 
with Devonshire Road, a site plan can be found at Appendix 2. The Site is 0.9 
hectares in size and at the time the planning application was submitted, was 
divided into two sections. The south section was vacant, containing debris from 
demolition of previous industrial / commercial buildings, and some remaining 
derelict structures and the north section was being used as builder‟s yard and 
contained several permanent and temporary buildings, along with a significant 
area of hardstanding used for the storage of materials, and parking of 
commercial vehicles. 
 

6.3 The Planning Committee report sets out the justification for allowing a 
residential led, mixed use development on 500 White Hart Lane which was at 
the time designated employment land. The fact that the Site could facilitate the 
High Road West regeneration scheme, by providing replacement homes for 
Love Lane residents and potential commercial space for businesses affected by 
the High Road West Scheme was a central component of this justification.  
 

6.4 With regards to the 29 affordable units, the Planning Committee report stated 
that: 

“The Tottenham Regeneration Team are seeking to acquire these 29 units to: 

 Support the rehousing of Love Lane residents and expedite the High 
Road West Scheme; 

 Meet residents‟ desires to have an opportunity to move to this site; and 

 Ensure that the Council remains the landlord of the replacement homes.” 

6.5 The Council has first option to acquire the 29 affordable units but the final terms 
for the acquisition of these homes were not agreed/finalised with THFC . 
Instead, a process for acquisition was agreed within the s106 Agreement as 
described below. 

S106 Agreement- Process 

6.6 The s106 Agreement, completed on 30th November 2016, gives the Council  an 
option and set out the process for the Council to acquire the 29 affordable 
homes. If the Council does not acquire the replacement homes, they will be 
disposed of to a RP. The process for a decision on the ownership of the 
affordable units is detailed in page 13 of Appendix 1 and is summarised below. 

6.7 Prior to, or at the same time as the Reserved Matters Application, THFC will 
submit an “Affordable Housing Scheme” to the Council for approval. The 
Affordable Housing Scheme will set out the tenure, size and location of the 
affordable housing units.  This is beyond that which is agreed as part of the 
S106 agreement as indicated below: 

 17 social rented units (12x 1 bed, 4x2 beds, 1x3 beds) 

 6 intermediate units (1x1 bed, 3x2 beds and 2x3 beds) 

Page 289



 

Page 6 of 11  

 6 units to be either social rent, affordable rent or intermediate (2x1 bed, 
2x2bed and 2x2bed) 
 

6.8 Once the Affordable Housing Scheme has been approved by the Council the 
parties have six months to enter into an acquisition agreement. 

6.9 The Council can at any time from the date of the S106 Agreement, serve an 
“Affordable Housing Notice” on THFC informing them that the Council does not 
wish to acquire the 29 affordable housing units (and by extension of this that the 
units shall be transferred to an RP).  This can take place up to six months 
following approval of the Affordable Housing Scheme. This six-month period is 
concurrent with the deadline for the parties to have entered into the Affordable 
Housing Acquisition Agreement. If the agreement is not completed within this 
time then THFC can offer the affordable housing units to a RP. 

THFC‟s Request for a Decision 

6.10 THFC have requested that the Council, as early as possible, confirm their 
intention to purchase or not the affordable housing units.  This is due to the fact 
THFC are wishing to progress detailed designs for the scheme and state that 
they are unable to do this without a decision from the Council regarding 
ownership of the replacement homes. 

6.11 Whilst the Council does not have to make a decision at this time, it is 
reasonable that THFC do not progress to detailed designs until they are clear 
on the owner of the replacement homes and thus the required specification for 
these homes. 

6.12 An early decision also permits a timely commencement of the scheme, which 
could provide an opportunity to utilise RTB receipts (as described below). 

Costs of acquiring the affordable homes 

6.13 The S106 agreement sets out a minimum price per square foot for the 
affordable homes. The breakdown of values is as follows: 

 £140 p/sqft for the Social rent units 

 £325 p/sqft for the affordable rent and or intermediate homes 

 £223 p/sqft for the aggregate minimum  

 These figures are subject to RICS Build Cost Information Service All-in 
TPI to the date of the acquisition agreement. 

6.14 Prior to adding the inflation, the homes would be acquired for £4.1m, this 
equates to £143k per unit.  Based on an average 5% build cost inflation (over 
the past 5 years), the anticipated cost of acquiring these homes in two years 
would be c.£4.5m. The table below details the average price per unit based on 
the unit size proposed in the planning application. 

 

 

 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 

Page 290



 

Page 7 of 11  

Size 543 sqft 709 sqft 808 sqft 

Social Rent £77,649 £101,387 £115,544 

Intermediate £176,475 £230,425 £262,600 

6.15 The acquisition costs detailed above are significantly lower than the costs of 
acquiring affordable homes elsewhere in the borough.  

Additional costs 

6.16 If the Council chooses to acquire the affordable homes, it will also need to cover 
the costs of processing the acquisition and of employing an Employer‟s Agent to 
ensure that the homes are built to the agreed standard and will need to cover 
SDLT (anticipated to be £211,696) and legal costs. It is suggested that the 
additional costs could be up to £500k. 

6.17 It is intended that the homes will be managed by Homes for Haringey. The 
rental income received is sufficient to cover all management and running costs 
of these properties.    

6.18 It should also be noted that tenants that move into the social rented properties 
will retain the Right to Buy.  

Budgets- RTB receipts 

6.19 RTB receipts can be utilised to pay towards 30% of the total scheme costs (this 
includes acquisition costs and project costs such as fees)  associated with the 
social rented units and the affordable rented units only. They cannot contribute 
towards shared ownership and or shared equity units. Therefore, the amount of 
RB receipts which the Council can put towards the acquisition of the 29 units, 
will depend on the tenure of each unit. 

6.20 The Council currently has £1,690,000 of RTB receipts.  If not used, RTB 
receipts will be returned to DCLG together with an interest at 4% above the 
base rate. Some of the monies have been allocated to projects.  Future RTB 
receipts will also be available and suitable for spend against this requirement. 

Budgets- HRA Stock Acquisitions Reserve 

6.21 It is proposed that any remaining cost which is not covered by RTB receipts is 
funded from the HRA budget i.e., 70% of the total scheme costs.      

6.22 There is currently £6.4m of funds within the HRA Stock Acquisition Reserve 
which can be utilised to cover the costs of acquiring the 29 affordable homes.  

6.23 The amount of funding required from the HRA Site Acquisitions budget will 
depend on the final mix of the affordable homes. The maximum contribution 
(assumes that 17 social rented units attract RTB receipts and 12 intermediate 
do not) is £4,073,328.00 and the minimum contribution (assumes that all 29 of 
the homes attract RTB receipts) is  £3,253,784.00. 

  

Page 291



 

Page 8 of 11  

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 
7.1 The recommendations outlined in this report are key to supporting the Council 

in the delivery its corporate plan Priority 5: Create homes and communities 
where people choose to live and are able to thrive as well as support the 
Housing Strategy Objective 3: Drive up the quality of housing for residents.  

 

7.2 The acquisition of these homes will increase the Council‟s housing stock. 
Increasing the Council‟s housing stock will help address the significant housing 
demand and housing waiting list in the Borough.  Even if some of the properties 
are used to rehouse Love Lane residents, it will mean that the replacement 
affordable homes in the High Road West Scheme can be freed up to rehouse 
residents on the housing waiting list. It will also mean that the Council has a 
wider variety of unit sizes and typologies, which will provide residents with 
greater housing choice.   

7.3 The acquisition can also help expedite the High Road West Regeneration 
Scheme by offering early rehousing opportunities. The High Road West 
scheme, and the hundreds of millions of pounds of private sector investment it 
will bring to north Tottenham, supports the Council in the delivery of two of its 
corporate plan priorities - Priority 4: Drive growth and employment from which 
everyone can benefit; and Priority 5: Create homes and communities where 
people choose to live and are able to thrive.  In terms of growth and 
employment, the major new leisure and commercial quarter located around 
Moselle Square and the new work spaces being created as part of the scheme, 
will deliver an increase in employment in the area and attract significant visitor 
spend. As importantly, the High Road West scheme will deliver up to 2500 new 
homes aimed at a variety of income levels and support our ambitions to deliver 
a truly mixed and sustainable community in north Tottenham. 

8.0 Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement) Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 

 Finance  

8.1 This report seeks cabinet approval to: 
 

  The acquisition of 29 affordable homes for housing purposes to be 
constructed on the Site for a maximum total sum of £5m and that the monies 
for the purchases shall be from: 

 
o Housing Revenue Account (“HRA”), including but not limited to the 

„HRA Stock Acquisitions Reserve‟ which currently has a budget of 
£6.4m  

o Right to Buy (“RTB”) capital receipt retained budget 
 

 Give delegated authority to the Director of Regeneration and the S151 
Officer, after  consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Regeneration and Planning, to agree the purchase price for each of the 
properties and the final heads of terms of the acquisition  which will be 
based on the terms of the s106 Agreement found at Appendix 1.  
 

Page 292



 

Page 9 of 11  

8.2 The total acquisition cost of the 29 units is £4,154,053, which amounts to an 
average cost of £143,243 per unit. This is significantly lower than the costs of 
acquiring affordable homes elsewhere in the borough.  

8.3 The cost of acquisition of these units can be part funded from the RTB retained 
capital receipts. The retained receipts will be used to fund 30% of the total cost 
of the scheme provided they are affordable rented housing units.  

8.4  It is estimated that based on the past and current trend of Right to Buy receipts, 
there will be sufficient RTB retained receipts available to fund 30% cost of the 
scheme. 

8.5   The remaining 70% cost of the scheme will be funded from the HRA stock 
acquisition budget which has a budget of £6.4m in 2017/18.  

8.6      It is intended that the homes will be managed by Homes for Haringey. The 
rental income received is sufficient to cover all management and running costs 
of these properties.   

8.7 The total cost of scheme includes purchase price, legal fees, SDLT, etc.  The 
£4.2m shown above is the purchase price. The SDLT of acquiring the 29 units 
is £211,696. Legal fee is not known at this point. 
 
Procurement 

     
8.8      Strategic Procurement notes the content of this report; however there is no  

procurement input required. 
 
Legal 

8.9 The terms of the section 106 agreement are noted above. The section 106 
agreement allows the Council to purchase the affordable housing units. THFC 
can instead offer the units to a RP if (1) at any time the Council decides not to 
purchase the units and serves an Affordable Housing Notice to THFC, or (2) the 
Affordable Housing Acquisition Agreement is not completed within 6 months (or 
any other time agreed between the parties) from the date the Affordable 
Housing Scheme is approved by the Council. 

8.10 The report seeks authority to acquire affordable housing units that are yet to be 
built. The Council has authority pursuant to section 120 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to acquire for the purposes of any of its functions under 
the 1972 Act  or any other enactment,  by agreement any land, whether situated 
inside or outside its area. The properties will be held within the Housing 
Revenue Account. 

8.12 The properties are yet to be built, and heads of terms for the purchase have not 
as yet been agreed therefore legal advice must be obtained as to how best to 
protect the Council in this acquisition.  

 

Equality 
 
8.13 The Council has a public sector equality duty (PSED) under the Equality Act  

     (2010) to have due regard to: 

Page 293



 

Page 10 of 11  

 

 Tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the 
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the 
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
(formerly gender) and sexual orientation; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those 
protected characteristics and people who do not; 

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics 
and people who do not 

8.14 It is not expected that this decision will have direct negative impacts on the nine 
protected characteristics.  The Council will ensure that the PSED is rigorously 
applied to the allocation process for the new housing stock acquired by this 
decision in the development of a Local Lettings Plan, which will also be subject 
to future public consultation. 
 

8.15 The report sets out how the recommended option achieves the best balance of 
quantity of Council- owned units and per unit cost to Council budgets, 
respecting the wishes of affected residents as expressed in consultation, and 
facilitating the regeneration of the White Hart Lane area through developments 
involving the Council, THFC and other partners.  The Council is pursuing the 
third of three options listed in section 8.3 of this report, as this will provide the 
largest amount of social rented and affordable units available to residents 
affected by the regeneration of the Love Lane estate.   
 

8.16 This option will enable more of these types of units to be managed by the 
Council, after consultation indicated there was demand from current residents 
for the Council to remain their landlord when they move from their current 
properties.  This option will also maximise the amount of retained Right to Buy 
(RTB) receipts that can be used to subsidise the Council‟s purchase of new 
housing stock.  The RTB receipts currently held by the Council must be spent 
by December 2017, when they would have to be returned to DCLG with 
interest.   

 
8 Use of Appendices 
 
9.1 The table below details the appendices relevant to this report: 
 

Appendix Document 

Appendix 1 S106 Agreement 

Appendix 2 500 White Hart Lane Site Plan 

 
9 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
10.1 Background Papers: 
 

 500 White Hart Lane Planning Decision Notice (HGY/2016/0828) 

 Agreement Relating to Land Known as 500 White Hart Lane (S106) 

 Officer Report for Planning Committee (July 2016) related to 500 White 
Hart Lane (HGY/2016/0828) 

Page 294



 

Page 11 of 11  

 
 

Page 295



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 7  

 
Report for:  Cabinet, 12 September 2017 
 
Item number: 12 
 
Title: Amendments to the Terms of Reference of the Shared ICT and 

Digital Service Joint Committee 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Richard Grice – Interim Director for Transformation and 

Resources 
 
Lead Officer: Ed Garcez – Chief Digital Information Officer  
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Key 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
Following a year in operation, the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint 
Committee reviewed its Terms of Reference at its meeting on 19 June 2017 
and recommended a number of changes. 
 
The report is coming to the Cabinet because any recommended revisions to the 
Terms of Reference of the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee 
need to be referred back to the Leaders and/or Executive/Cabinet of each of the 
Councils for approval.   

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 

 
At its meeting on the 15 March 2016 the Cabinet agreed to establish a shared 
digital service with Camden and Islington Councils and established the Shared 
ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee.  
 

The Terms of Reference for the committee were subsequently agreed by the 
Leader on 22 August 2016. 
 
Following a year in operation, the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint 
Committee reviewed its Terms of Reference at its meeting on 19 June 2017 
and recommended a number of changes. These changes are now proposed to 
the Cabinet for agreement. 
 
As referred to in the legal comments in this report, the Council‟s Constitution 
has set a threshold of £500,000 or above where decisions to award contracts or 
expenditure on a service would be a key decision, which our constitution 
prohibits an officer from taking. 
 
This means that awards of contracts related to the Shared Digital IT spend, 
where Haringey‟s contribution is estimated to be £500,000 or above, that would 

Page 357 Agenda Item 12



 

Page 2 of 7  

be taken by the Chief Digital and Information Officer on behalf of Camden and 
Islington, would be taken in parallel by a Cabinet Member for Haringey. 
 
This is for the intermediate period until a more detailed review of the Shared 
ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee Terms of Reference is carried out as 
part of the Governance Model review which will include a review of the current 
Joint Committee model. 
 

 
3. Recommendations  

 
The Cabinet is asked to agree the revised Terms of Reference for the Shared 
ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee attached to this report as Appendix A 
to come into effect from 1 October 2017. The main changes to its Terms of 
Reference recommended by the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint 
Committee meeting on 19 June 2017 are as follows: 
 

 To change the name of the joint committee from „Shared ICT and Digital 
Service Joint Committee‟ to the „Shared Digital Joint Committee‟ to 
reflect the name of the shared service. 
 

 To state that each Council nominates a substitute Member rather than 
for this to be optional. 

 

 To ensure the „Joint Committee Model‟ is included in the Terms of 
Reference as a model to review along with other company models as 
part of the Shared Digital Governance Options review. 

 

 To be explicit about the frequency of the meetings; the intention being 
that the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee meets at least 
three times a year. 

 

 To clarify when the Chair will be rotated and that this should be in 
alphabetical order by Borough. 

 

 To clarify that all „Executive‟ decisions of the Shared ICT and Digital 
Service Joint Committee will be deemed „key decisions‟. This is to avoid 
administrative decisions being treated as key decisions and added to the 
councils‟ Forward Plans 

 

 To change the way the councils are listed in the Terms of Reference so 
that they are always listed in alphabetical order 

 

 To undertake a tidy up of the language in the Terms of Reference, for 
example using „Shared Digital‟ as the name of the joint service and 

Page 358



 

Page 3 of 7  

making clear how decisions  on procurement should be taken[please see 
legal commnets] 

 

A further recommendation was also made which will be added to the 

Committee‟s procedure note:  

 The Chief Digital and Information Officer consults all members of the 
Committee on reports. 

 
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 
The Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee Terms of Reference forms 
part of the legal agreement, for the Shared Service. Elements of the Terms of 
Reference need to be changed to reflect the evolution of the service.  

 
The Terms of Reference is currently not clear around how the role of the Chair 
will be rotated; frequency and order. The rotation of the venue is also unclear. 
 
To avoid administrative decisions being treated as key decisions and added to 
the councils‟ Forward Plans. 
 
The Terms of Reference currently does not state that the „Joint Committee 
model‟ will also be assessed along with other company models during the 
Shared Digital Governance Model Review. There has been a request that we 
should explicitly list that the Joint Committee model will be reviewed along with 
other company models. The Shared Digital Governance Model review is taking 
place from May – September 2017. 

 
5. Alternative options considered 

 
There is an option to „do nothing‟ and keep the current terms of reference in 
place for the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee. In adopting the 
„do nothing‟ option the requests made for changes will not be addressed; 
clarifying the number of meetings per year, how the Chair and venue will rotate 
and ensuring the Joint Committee model is included in the governance model 
review along with other company models. 
 

6. Background information 
 
There are no adverse impacts from implementing the recommended changes 
outlined in this report; they are intended to provide greater clarity regarding the 
number of meetings to be held per year, how the venue and Chair will be 
rotated and that that „Joint Committee model‟ will be reviewed alongside other 
company models. 
 
Recommended revisions to the Terms of Reference of the Shared ICT and 
Digital Service Joint Committee need to be referred back to the Leaders and/or 
Executive/Cabinet of each of the Councils for approval. If they are approved by 
each council, the Terms of Reference will be adopted from the 1 October 2017. 
 

Page 359



 

Page 4 of 7  

A more detailed review of the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee 
Terms of Reference and legal agreement will be carried out as part of the 
Governance Model review and specifically a review of the current Joint 
Committee model. 
 
In considering the options for the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint 
Committee and related legal agreement, four overarching principles have been 
agreed for the operation of the Shared Service, these are: 

i. Be as light touch as is consistent with good governance to ensure that 
decisions can be made in the most efficient and effective way possible 

ii. Avoid any form of „separate duplicated decision making within each of 
the councils that undermine the integrated nature and spirit of the 
undertaking 

iii. Facilitate, and not undermine, a potential move towards a public services 
company model in the future and 

iv. Ensure appropriate levels of input and scrutiny for each council. 
 
The councils have set out an ambition to develop a light touch, efficient and 
effective governance framework with appropriate levels of input and scrutiny for 
each council. The review of the Terms of Reference and legal agreement will 
consider how the governance framework is currently working and whether 
changes are required to ensure it aligns to the overarching principles. This may 
require changes to be made to the legal agreement, Terms of Reference and 
council constitutions. 

 
 

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 
Shared service allows the ICT service access to more resources, thus 
improving its ability to support all current corporate priority and transformation 
programmes. 

 
The shared service approach also allows the Council to reduce the current 
costs of short term resources required by transformation programmes and 
priority outcomes. 

 
 

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 

 
Finance  
 
This report clarifies the governance related to the Terms of Reference of the 
Shared ICT and the Digital Service Joint Committee. 
 
There are no financial implications implied in the report. 
 
Any financial decisions will continue to follow the financial regulations of 
Haringey. 

 
 
Procurement 

Page 360



 

Page 5 of 7  

 
Strategic Procurement notes the contents of this report and has no objections to 
the recommendations made herein. 

 
Strategic Procurement would request a clear process along with roles and 
responsibilities, in respect of procurements relating to those that fall within the 
remit of Shared Digital to avoid confusion within each authorities respective 
procurement functions. 

 
Legal 
 
By virtue of the Local Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) 
(England) Regulations 2012, (“2012 Regulations”) arrangements have been put 
in place for the council‟s Executive functions (IT functions) to be discharged 
jointly with Camden council and  also Islington council  through a Joint 
Committee created for that purpose.  Under the 2012 Regulations these 
arrangements are between the Executives/Cabinets of the 3 participating 
Councils. Any changes to these arrangements have to be approved by them.   

 
Decisions of joint committees are made on behalf of the participating councils. 
However, subject to the terms of the arrangement, the council retains the ability 
to discharge that function itself.  
 
The Joint Committee‟s Terms of Reference which forms part of the Legal 
Agreement between participating councils, (which sets out the terms of the joint 
arrangement) states that the Joint Committee may suggest revisions to its 
Terms of Reference, to be referred back to the Leaders and/or 
Executive/Cabinet of each Council for approval.  
 
The proposed changes to the Terms of Reference as set out in 
recommendation 3 of the report comply with the requirements of the 2012 
Regulations, which govern arrangements concerning joint committees. 
 
One of recommended changes to the Terms of Reference of the Joint 
Committee is to clarify that all “Executive” Decisions will be deemed to be key 
decisions and added the Councils‟ Forward Plans. However, as each of the 3 
participating councils Constitutions have adopted a different approach as to 
what is a key decision, there will be a need to identify in advance which of the 
Joint Committee‟s decisions will be key decisions for the purposes of one or 
more of the participating councils, so as to ensure that the required advance 
publicity can be given in respect of those decisions.  
 
Decision making powers regarding the award of contracts related to the Shared 
Digital IT spend must be compliant with the Constitutions of each of the 3 
participating Councils. Haringey‟s Constitution has set a financial threshold of 
£500,000 or above where decisions to award contracts or expenditure on a 
service would be a key decision.  In addition, officers are prohibited from taking 
key decisions.   

 
Awards of contracts related to the Shared Digital IT, where Haringey‟s 
contribution is £500,000 or above, and the total estimated value of the contract 
does not fall within the financial thresholds that the terms of reference reserve 

Page 361



 

Page 6 of 7  

to the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee will need to be taken by 
a Cabinet Member. This can happen in parallel with decision making processes 
in Camden and Islington. This would ensure that decisions are compliant and 
are made in the most efficient and effective way available. 
 
 
Equality 
 
The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to 
have due regard to the need to: 
 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited under the Act 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those 
protected characteristics and people who do not 

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics 
and people who do not.  

 
The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: 
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, 
sex and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the 
first part of the duty. 
 
Members of the Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee are required to 
pay due regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty when serving on the 
Committee. 
 
The changes to the Terms of Reference for the Committee will not have any 
equality implications.  
 

 
9. Use of Appendices 

 
Appendix 1  - Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee Terms of 
reference including the changes recommended by the  Committee at its 
meeting on the 19th of June 2017. 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

Page 362



 

Page 7 of 7  

 
 

Page 363



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Shared Digital 

Shared ICT and Digital Service Joint Committee – Terms of Reference 
The Joint Committee shall be known as the “Shared Digital Joint Committee” 
 
The Joint Committee is established under section 101(5) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as applied by section 9EB of the Local Government Act 2000 and Part 4 of the 
Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 
2012 by the Executives of each of the Councils and the delegations to cabinet and cabinet 
members are subject to this delegation. 
 
Membership: 
1 The Joint Committee shall comprise of six members, two appointed by each of 

London Borough of Camden, London Borough of Haringey and London Borough 
of Islington (“the Councils”). 
  

2 One member appointed by each council should be the Cabinet/Executive member 
responsible for information/digital technology 
 

3 Every member appointed to the Joint Committee shall be a member of the 
Executive/Cabinet of their council. Should they cease to be a member of the 
Executive/Cabinet they will cease to be members of this Joint Committee. 
Political balance rules do not apply. 

 
4 Each Council should nominate substitute Members who must be a member of the 

respective Executive/Cabinet to attend meetings of the Joint Committee, should an 
appointed member of the Joint Committee be unavailable or unable to attend a 
meeting of the Joint Committee. A substitute Member attending in the absence of 
an appointed member will have full voting rights. 

 
5 Each Member of the Joint Committee shall be appointed annually but shall cease 

to be a member if s/he ceases to be a member of the Council appointing him/her 
or of its Cabinet/Executive or if removed by the relevant Leader. 

 
Terms of Reference: 

The Shared Digital Joint Committee will: 
 
6 Provide democratic oversight over the strategic delivery of Shared Digital provided 

to the councils through powers delegated to them by their Executives/Cabinets. 
 

7 Approve the strategic service and financial plan for Shared Digital and the 
performance measures to ensure services are delivered to the agreed standard 
and within the resources provided by the Councils. 
 

8 Receive updates on the Business Plan and the performance of Shared Digital. 
 

9 Agree the procurement strategy and award contracts related to digital and IT 
spend where the total estimated value exceeds £2m revenue and/or £5m capital.  
Below these financial thresholds, authority to agree procurement strategies and 
award contracts is delegated to the Chief Digital and Information Officer 

 

Page 365



 

Shared Digital 

10 Suggest revisions to the Terms of Reference of the Shared Digital Joint 
Committee to be referred back to the Leaders and/or Executive/Cabinet of each of 
the Council’s for approval. 
 

11 Receive and consider a detailed report, within twelve months of the creation of the 
Joint Committee [by October/November 2017] that considers the Governance 
Model Options for Shared Digital and to make recommendations to the 
Cabinet/Executive of each of the Councils in respect of the report.  Options to be 
evaluated to include the Joint Committee model as well as company models. 
 

12 Delegate all matters not specified at 6-11 to the Chief Digital and Information 
Officer; and may delegate any matters within its terms of reference to a named 
officer of any of the councils. The Joint Committee shall not delegate a function to 
or create any Sub-Committees. 
 

13 Notwithstanding delegation of any matters to an officer the Joint Committee may 
itself make decision on any such matters. 

 
Meetings of the Committee: 
 
14 The Shared Digital Joint Committee will meet at least three times a year. The 

venues of the meetings will be rotated in alphabetical order. 
 

15 Further meetings may be called by the Head of Paid Service of any of the Councils 
as required. 
 

16 Meetings of the Joint Committee shall be held at the venue or venues agreed by 
the Joint Committee or in respect of meetings called by a Head of Paid Service, at 
the venue determined by the person calling the meeting. 
 

17 The Joint Committee shall appoint one of its members as Chair whose term of 
office shall run for one calendar year from appointment, unless that Member 
ceases to be a member to the Joint Committee.  The Chair shall rotate between 
the boroughs alphabetically (i.e. Camden, Haringey, and Islington) unless 
otherwise agreed between the members of the Joint Committee.  The new Chair 
shall be confirmed at the last scheduled meeting of the outgoing Chair’s term.  
 

18 A meeting of the Joint Committee shall require a quorum of one Member of each 
Council who are entitled to attend and vote. 
 

19 Subject to the provisions of any enactment, all questions coming or arising before 
the Joint Committee shall be decided by a majority of the Members of the Joint 
Committee immediately present and voting thereon. Subject to the provisions of 
any enactment, in the case of an equality of votes the Chair shall have a second or 
casting vote but before exercising this, the Chair shall consider whether it is 
appropriate to defer the matter to the next meeting of the Joint Committee. 

 

Page 366



 

Shared Digital 

 
 

20 Any Member of the Joint Committee may request the Joint Committee to record 
the votes of individual Members of the Joint Committee on a matter for decision. 
 

21 In its operation and functioning the Joint Committee shall, unless varied within 
these Terms of Reference, be governed and abide by the Camden Committee 
procedure rules and standing orders applying to Committees of the Council. 
 

22 Any Member of the Councils who is not a Member of the Joint Committee is 
entitled to attend the Joint Committee but he/she shall not be entitled to vote. Any 
Member not a Member of the Joint Committee shall not shall not take part in the 
consideration or discussion of any business, save by leave of the Chair. 
 

23 Meetings of the Joint Committee will be open to the public except to the extent that 
they are excluded under paragraph 25. 
 

24 All Executive decisions of the Joint Committee will be deemed Key Decisions. 
 

25 The public may be excluded from a meeting of the Joint Committee during an item 
of business whenever it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that, if members of the public were 
present during that item, confidential information as defined in section 100A (3) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 or exempt information as defined in section 100I 
of the Local Government Act 1972 would be disclosed to them. 
 

26 Each Council may call in any decision of the Joint Committee in accordance with 
the overview and scrutiny provisions of that Council’s constitution. If any decision 
of the Joint Committee is subject to call in by a Council, the Joint Committee and 
officers shall take no irreversible action to implement that decision until after the 
call in process is completed. 
 

27 All papers to be considered and/or decided on by the Joint Committee shall be 
provided to the Committee in electronic format.  Members will receive the draft 
papers for comment 5 days prior to their publication. 

 
 

Page 367



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 21ST JUNE, 2017, 10.30  - 
10.40 am 
 

 

PRESENT: Councillor Peray Ahmet 
 
32. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Cabinet Member referred those present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the 
agenda in respect of filming at this meeting and asked that those present reviewed 
and noted the information contained therein. 
 

33. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

34. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

35. SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT WORKS PLAN  2017/18  
 
The Cabinet Member for Environment considered the Sustainable Transport Works 
Plan for 2017/18, which set out the Council’s approach to managing the highways 
infrastructure, delivering Corporate Plan priorities and programmes as well as the 
Council’s transport strategies as set out in the Local Implementation Plan and the draft 
Transport Strategy. This included investment targeted at measures that: 

 Improve road safety, including tackling stretches of roads and junctions with 
accident problems; 

 Encourage walking and cycling and the use of sustainable alternatives to 
private car use; 

 Reduce congestion and delay that impact on public transport services; and 

 Contribute to Haringey’s preventative maintenance strategy to improve the 
overall condition of the road network. 

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Cabinet Member for Environment, for the reasons set out in the report:  

 Approved the Sustainable Transport Works Plan for 2017/18 financial year as set 
out in Appendix 1 – Ward by Ward breakdown attached to the report; 

 Authorised the Head of Operations to consider any objections and representations 
to statutory consultation on schemes and to report back to the Cabinet Member for 
Environment if there are significant or substantial objections or concerns raised; 

 Delegated decisions relating to detailed scheme design to the Head of Operations; 

 Approved the adoption of a new highway maintenance capital investment strategy 
comprising of a combination of “worst first” and preventative maintenance, and a 
new risk based approach to the management of reactive maintenance;  

Page 369 Agenda Item 13



 

 

 Approved the addition to the existing call-off contract with Ringway-Jacobs under 
the LoHAC Framework contract of service 5, schemes design, for support in the 
delivery of capital programmes over a 1 year period for the 2017/18 financial year.  

 

 
Alternative options considered  
There were no other relevant options as the Council has a statutory obligation to maintain 
the public highway network. The 2017/18 work plan had been informed by highway 
condition surveys and visual highways inspections.  
 
The programme included transport schemes previously agreed by Cabinet in October 
2016 and funded by Transport for London. The funding was an interim arrangement 
awaiting the production of the Mayor’s Transport Strategy and subsequent production of 
Haringey’s third Local Implementation Plan. Council funded capital projects included 
within the programme were approved by Cabinet on the 14th

  June 2016 as part of the 
Capital Strategy and 10 year Capital Programme.  
 

36. APPLICATION TO HIRE TOTTENHAM GREEN TO HOST A WEEKLY  MARKET  
 
The Cabinet Member for Environment considered a report that sought determination 
of an application made by Marika Gauci to hire Tottenham Green every Sunday for a 
one year period in order to stage a food and produce market. She also considered the 
exempt material contained at item 8 of the agenda. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Cabinet Member for Environment: 

 Noted that no comments were received from recognised stakeholders of 
Tottenham Green in response to the event notifications being set as part of the 
decision-making process; 

 Authorised the Assistant Director – Commercial and Operations, to approve 
conditional in principle agreement to hire Tottenham Green to the event 
promoter for the event detailed at paragraph 6.4 of the report; 

 Agreed that the conditions that were to be attached to any final approval of 
authority were as set out in the comments of the Assistant Director, Corporate 
Governance at paragraph 8.2.7 of the report. 

 
Reasons for Decision 
Under the terms of the Council’s Outdoor Events Policy, applications of the type 
detailed in the report were required to be determined with the prior agreement of the 
Cabinet Member. 
 
If authority were given, officers would give in principle agreement to the applicant for 
the event applications to progress. The events would then be subject to discussions 
with relevant authorities before final agreement is given. 
 
The rejection of the application would have had implications for the Parks Service 
budget, and reduce the opportunity for reinvestment into Tottenham Green (the Open 
Space) and other parks. It would also mean that the wider cultural and economic 
benefits to the borough were lost. 

Page 370



 

 

 
Alternative options considered 
In adopting the Outdoor Events Policy, the Council established its commitment to 
using the Open Space for events. Accordingly, the only other alternative option which 
could be considered would be to reject the application. That option was rejected, on 
the grounds that the event does not fall within any of the grounds set out in paragraph 
5.3 of the Policy for automatic refusal. 
 

37. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None 
 

38. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
Resolved. 
 

39. APPLICATION TO HIRE TOTTENHAM GREEN TO HOST WEEKLY  MARKET  
 
The Cabinet Member noted the additional information that was exempt from 
publication, pertaining to the decision on the application to hire Tottenham Green to 
host the weekly Tottenham Green Market.  
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Peray Ahmet 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 371



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 372



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON MONDAY, 26TH JUNE, 2017, 12pm 
 

 

PRESENT: Councillor Claire Kober (Chair) 
 

 
40. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Leader referred those present to agenda item 1 as shown on the agenda in 
respect of filming at this meeting and asked that hose present reviewed and noted the 
information contained therein. 
 

41. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

42. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

43. PAN LONDON SEXUAL HEALTH TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME ONLINE 
SERVICES  
 
The Leader considered the recommendation presented which would involve the 
Council entering into an Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) to access the new pan-
London Online Sexual Health Service contract procured by the City of London as the 
final part of the London Sexual Health Transformation Programme (LSHTP). 
The city of London, as the procuring/lead authority has recently approved the award of 
contract for the online service to Preventx Limited. The contract will commence on 1st 
June 2017 and will run for an initial term of 5 years with options to extend for 4 further 
one year periods. The Councils estimated spend on this service over the initial 5-year 
term is £1,527,888 with a first year spend of up to £95,962 (depending on uptake of 
the service) and a total estimated spend of up to £3,294,388 over the maximum 9-
year lifetime of the contract (depending on uptake of the service). 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Leader, for the reasons set out in the report: 

 Agreed to the Council entering an inter-Authority Agreement (IAA) with the City 
of London and up to 30 other London authorities in order to access the new 
pan-London online sexual health service under a contract recently awarded by 
the City of London to Preventx Limited 

 Agreed that the Council commits, in accordance with the terms of the IAA, to 
accessing the online service under the City of London-Preventx Ltd contract at 
an estimated service cost of £1,527,888 for the initial 5-year contract term and 
a further maximum estimated service cost of £1,766,500 over 4 additional 1-
year periods for which the contract may be extended resulting in a maximum 

Page 373



 

 

estimated Haringey service provision spend of £3,394,388 over the maximum 
9-year contract duration. 

 Agreed that, subject to paragraph 3.4 of the report, the Councils commits, in 
accordance with the terms of the IAA to making a financial contribution to the 
City of London for its contract management role in an estimated maximum 
amount of £122,412 over the maximum 9-year contract duration. 

 Agreed that authority be delegated to the Director of Public Health to agree the 
final terms of the IAA with the City of London and other authorities including in 
particular the length and cost (within the maximum referred to in paragraph 3.3 
of the report) of the Councils use of City of London’s contract management 
services. 

 
Alternative options considered 

 
The Public Health team could have acted outside of the London Sexual Health 
Transformation Programme (LSHTP) and procured as a single local authority. 
However it chose to be part of the LSHTP which is a partnership between 30 London 
boroughs with the purpose of creating a collaborative approach to commissioning 
sexual health services. The LSHTP case for change and business case demonstrated 
that the level of improvement in quality and cost reduction that all London clinics 
needed could only be obtained by commissioning at scale.  For this reason Haringey 
gained agreement from Cabinet in December 2015 to become a participating member 
of the pan-London online sexual health service and to procure clinic-based services 
as part of an NCL sub region. 
 
Joining the pan-London online sexual health service offers the benefits of savings via 

economies of scale and greater choice of access to online services across London for 

local residents. 

 
44. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 

45. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
That the press and public be excluded from the reminder of the meeting as the items 
contained exempt information, as defined under paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

46. PAN LONDON SEXUAL HEALTH TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME ONLINE 
SERVICES  
 
The Leader noted the exempt section of the report. 
 
 

47. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

Page 374



 

 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Claire Kober 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 375



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON TUESDAY, 27TH JUNE, 2017, 13.30hrs 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillors: Ali Demirci (Chair) 
 
 
48. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
Noted. 
 

49. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

50. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

51. DISPOSAL OF LAND ON THE CORNER OF COBURG ROAD AND WESTERN 
ROAD, WOOD GREEN  
 
Councillor Demirci considered the report which sought approval for the disposal of 
land on the corner of Coburg Road and Western Road to St. William Homes LLP, for 
inclusion in their proposed residential development at the former National Grid site in 
Clarendon Road. 
 
Following a brief discussion it was  
 
RESOLVED 
 
i) That the site be declared surplus to requirements, and to dispose of the freehold 

of the site to St. William Homes LLP for a sum set out in part B of the report, and 

based on the Heads of Terms as set out in Appendix C of the report; 

ii) The creation of a new capital programme scheme called “Disposal of Coburg 

Road Site”, with a budget as set out in part B of the report, be approved. 

 

Reasons for decision  
 
The site is adjacent to the St.William scheme on the former National Grid site and will 
benefit the proposed development providing the opportunity for a better design and 
opportunities for supporting the current regeneration proposals relating to Housing 
and employment.  

 

Page 377



 

 

The site is located in an area which is subject to a proposed Area Action Plan which 
encompasses wholesale development on this and adjoining sites in the next 5 to 10 
years. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
The alternative option is not to agree to the sale of the freehold interest in the Cobourg 
Road and Western Road land to St William. This would have the impact of not having 
an integrated approach to the development of the wider site and obtaining the best 
regeneration outcome for the area. It would retain and protect the existing 
employment space although the current amount of space will be reprovided as part of 
a new development and the existing tenants could relocate into the new scheme or 
relocate elsewhere in the Borough. 
 

52. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration 
of Item 6 as it contained exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government Act 
1985); paragraph 3 - Information relating to financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
 

53. DISPOSAL OF LAND ON THE CORNER OF COBURG ROAD AND WESTERN 
ROAD, WOOD GREEN  
 
Councillor Demirci considered information pertaining to the exempt section of the 
report. 
 

54. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Ali Demirci 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 378



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON FRIDAY, 30TH JUNE, 2017, 09:00 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillor Peray Ahmet, Cabinet Member for Environment  
 
 
 
63. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Cabinet Member  referred those present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the 
agenda in respect of filming at this meeting and asked that those present reviewed 
and noted the information contained therein. 
 

64. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None 
 

65. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

66. APPROVAL OF WASTE SERVICE CHARGES 2017-18  
 
The Cabinet Member  noted the report, which sought approval for changes to the 

Council’s waste service charges.  

RESOLVED 
 
The Cabinet Member approved the following new waste service charges for 2017-18: 

 
I. Bulky waste removal at £25 for 4 items and £10 per additional item from 24th 

July 2017; 
 

II. Replacement wheeled bins for refuse and recycling at £30 per bin from 31st 
July 2017; 

 
III. Green garden waste collections at £75 per annum from 23rd October 2017, with 

options for reduced capacity/cost available as set out in table 2 below. 
 
Reason for Decision 

 
Full Council approved the 2017/18 budget and agreed the MTFS (2018/19-2021/22) 
on 27th February 2017 following the approval of the MTFS and proposed 2017/18 
budgets by Cabinet on 14 February 2017. 

 

Page 379



 

 

Fees and charges relating to existing charged waste services were set out and agreed 
in an accompanying Cabinet report on 14 February 2017.  However, it was intended 
that the new chargeable services that formed part of the MTFS would be the subject 
of a further Fees & Charges report following Full Council approval of the budget.   

 
The Cabinet Member for Environment is now asked to approve the waste services 
charges and start dates, as set out in table 2 below. 
 
Other options considered 

 
A range of savings proposals across the council’s services was considered by Cabinet 
in December 2016 and subject to consultation.  

 
Following the consultation, no other option has been considered, other than to present 
the charges set out within the MTFS report for formal approval by the Cabinet 
Member. 

 
 

67. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
N/A 
 

 
CHAIR:  
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 380



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON TUESDAY, 4TH JULY, 2017, 11.00  - 11.15 am 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillors: Alan Strickland (Chair) 
 
68. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
Noted. 
 

69. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

70. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

71. EXTENSION OF HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT CONTRACTS IN THE GENERIC 
FLOATING SUPPORT SECTOR  
 
Councillor Strickland considered the report which sought approval for the extension of 
housing related support contracts in the Generic Floating Support Sector for a 
maximum of two extensions of up to one year each to 31st of July 2019 as follows: 
 
(a) One Housing Group (Key Support) for the provision of floating support services 
to single people and couples without children at the annual contract value of 
£597,847; a total value for 2 years of £1,195,694. 
 
(b) Family Mosaic (Haringey Families) for the provision of housing related support 
services to families at the annual contract value of £419,096; a total value for 2 years 
of £838,192. 
 
Following a brief discussion it was  
 
RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning 
approve the following contract extensions, in accordance with Contract 
Procedure Rule 16.02: 
 
i) One Housing Group (Key Support) for the provision of floating support 

services to single people and couples without children for a maximum of 

two extensions of up to one year each at the annual contract value of £597, 

847.  The total for 2 one year extension periods is £1,195,694. 

ii) Family Mosaic (Haringey Families) for the provision of housing related 

support services to families for a maximum of two extensions of up to one 

Page 381



 

 

year each at the annual contract value of £419,096.  The total for 2 one year 

extension periods is £838, 192. 

Reasons for decision  

 

It is in the Council’s overall interest to approve the extension of the current contracts 
whilst a strategic programme of transformation agreed by Cabinet in the report on the 
Supported Housing Review on 14th of March  2017 is implemented. 
 

The services meet the Council’s strategic objectives of delivering short term housing 
related support early intervention tenancy sustainment services which prevent 
escalation to higher end needs.  
 

Alternative options considered 

 

The existing contracts are due to expire on 31st July 2017 and there is no further 
facility to extend beyond this date. 
 

Procurement of new contracts was considered, however this would not enable the 
efficiencies and improvements that can be gained in strategic commissioning 
exercises with partners and may result in an increase in the price of contracts without 
corresponding value for money benefits 
 

De-commissioning the services was considered, but despite the immediate financial 
pressures on the Council this option has been ruled out as it would worsen outcomes 
for Haringey residents. Savings will be achieved aligned with service improvements  
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Alan Strickland 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 382



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 5TH JULY, 2017, 10:30 
 

 

PRESENT: Councillor Peray Ahmet, Cabinet Member for Environment 
Peray Ahmet (Chair) 

 
 
72. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Cabinet Member referred those present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the 
agenda in respect of filming at this meeting and asked that those present reviewed 
and noted the information contained therein. 
 

73. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None 
 

74. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 

 
75. PARKING PERMIT REVIEW  

 
The Cabinet Member noted the report which sought authorisation to go out to 
consultation on changes to the parking permit policy. 

 

RESOLVED 

 

I. That the Cabinet Member agreed to consult on; 

 

a. The changes proposed to the CO2 emission charge bands, as set out in 

Appendix 1of the report 

b. The changes proposed to the Visitor permit scheme as set out in paragraph 6.9 

of the report 

c. To replace the traders parking permit with a permission to park.     

 

II. That the Cabinet Member authorises officers to proceed to statutory consultation 

on those proposals and agrees to receive a further report setting out the results 

of the statutory consultation.  

 

Reasons for decision 

 

To review parking permit policy ensuring that it continues to support the delivery of the 

Council’s wider transport polices and Corporate Plan priorities. Changes to parking 

Page 383



 

 

policy and parking charges must be formally approved by the Cabinet Member prior to  

proceeding to statutory consultation on proposals.   

 
Alternative options considered 
 

Consideration was given to retaining the existing arrangements, but this was not deemed 
appropriate. Parking permit policy makes a considerable contribution to the delivery of 
our transport polices and strategies, as well as to Corporate Plan priorities. It is important 
that these policies are reviewed and if necessary adjusted periodically.   

 
76. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
There were no items of exempt information contained in the report. 
 

77. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS  
 
N/A 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Peray Ahmet 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 384



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON THURSDAY, 6TH JULY, 2017, 4.00 pm 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillors: Elin Weston (Chair) 
 
78. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
Noted.  
 

79. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

80. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

81. THE INTRODUCTION OF NEW FEE ARRANGEMENTS FOR HARINGEY'S 
MAINTAINED CHILDCARE  PROVISION FROM 2017-2018  
 
Councillor Weston considered the report which set out the changes to be introduced 
across the Council’s childcare settings from September 2017.  The Cabinet had 
agreed, in February 2017, a number of proposals for the future fee arrangements for 
eight childcare provisions maintained by the Council in the borough, which included: 

- Removing the Council’s involvement in setting the fees for school based early 
years provision, allowing the four maintained school run childcare provisions to 
set their own fees. 

- Replacing the single fee structure, applied across all four Council-run childcare 
settings with a new structure where fees may differ from setting to setting. 

- Increasing fees for the four Council-run childcare settings from September 
2017 in order to generate the levels of income required to mitigate the loss of 
subsidy funding. 

 
This report requested approval to introduce the new fee structures from September 
2017. 
 
Following a brief discussion it was 
 
RESOLVED that 
i) The introduction of a new childcare fee structure for the Council’s 

Stonecroft, Woodside and Triangle centres, as set out at 8.1 of the report, 
be approved; and 

ii) The introduction of a lunch fee rate, to be applied across all four Council-
run settings, as set out at 8.6 of the report, be approved. 

 

Page 385



 

 

Reasons for decision  
 
The impact of the introduction of a national funding formula for early years means that, 
from April 2017, the Council’s allocation of Dedicated School Grant (DSG) Early Years 
Block funding will no longer be able to provide the £1.427m per year subsidy 
previously used to meet the gap between service delivery costs and fee income. 
 
The proposed changes to the level of fees currently charged in the four Council-run 
childcare settings will address the gap between fee income and operational costs and 
support the on-going financial viability of these services.   
 
Alternative options considered 
 
The need to review and revise current fee arrangements arose as a       consequence 
of the introduction by central government of a national funding formula for early years 
from April 2017. The national funding formula introduced significant changes to the 
way in which funding for the free early education entitlement is distributed by the 
Council and included a 7% cap on the amounts of early years Dedicated Schools 
Grant funding  that the Council can centrally retain from April 2017, falling to 5% from 
April 2018.  In previous years, an amount of £1.427m has been agreed with 
Haringey’s Schools’ Forum as a subsidy, supporting the eight maintained childcare 
settings. A direct consequence of the cap was the loss of this £1.427m subsidy from 
April 2017. 
 
It was anticipated that this loss of funding would have a direct impact on the 
sustainability of the maintained childcare settings. To this end, a number of options 
were considered and increasing fee levels across all settings was deemed to be the 
only viable option to mitigate the loss of subsidy funding.  Recognising that a period of 
transition would be required before the introduction of new fee rates from September 
2017, Cabinet agreed in February 2017 that an amount of £0.7m of Dedicated 
Schools Grant would be set aside to subsidise the maintained childcare provisions for 
the period April to August 2017.  
 
The introduction of the extended free entitlement offer – up to 30 hours per week over 
38 weeks of the year for 3 and 4 year old children in families where both parents are 
working (or the sole parent in a lone parent household)  from September 2017 – will 
mean that many of the parents currently paying for full day care (up to 35 hours per 
week), in addition to receiving the 15 hours per week universal free entitlement offer at 
the maintained settings, will be able to claim the enhanced entitlement for their child, 
therefore going some way to mitigate the impact of an increase in childcare fees on 
residents.  
 
An alternative option is to maintain childcare fees at current levels for the financial 
year, 2017-18. However, there is no budget provision to maintain the current fee level 
structure and this is not therefore a financially viable option. In addition, it is 
considered likely to lead to a reduction in the overall levels of provision available as 
there would be a need to scale down the service offer, and, as a consequence, reduce 
the number of childcare places available across the maintained childcare settings. 
 
 

Page 386



 

 

82. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Elin Weston 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 387



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 388



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON TUESDAY, 11TH JULY, 2017, 11:30 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillor Alan Strickland, Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration 
and Planning.  
 

 
88. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Cabinet Member referred those present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the 
agenda in respect of filming at this meeting and asked that those present reviewed 
and noted the information contained therein. 
 

89. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

90. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

91. REMOVALS AND STORAGE POLICY FOR HOMELESS HOUSEHOLDS  
 
The Cabinet Member noted the report which sought approval for a new charging 
policy for the removal, storage and return of the belongings of homeless households. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning:      

 
I. Notes the Equalities Impact Assessment set out at Appendix A. 

 
II. Notes the financial costs of the current and proposed charging structure set out 

at Appendix B. 
 

III. Approves the new charging structure (set out at 6.13-6.25), which can be 
summarised as:  
 

 Abolishing existing charges for the collection, storage and return of goods of 
homeless households.  

 Providing a free storage service from the point a homeless household is 
placed in emergency temporary accommodation, until one month following 
either the acceptance of a homelessness duty to that household and the 
subsequent placement in self-contained accommodation, or a refusal of a 
homelessness duty.  

Page 389



 

 

 Offering to continue to provide this storage service following that date, but on 
the basis of full cost recovery. 

 Introducing this policy for all new users from 24 July 2017. 
 
Approves the approach to the introduction of these new changes for existing 
users (set out at 6.26-6.28), which can be summarised as. 
 

 Providing a free storage service until a formal notice has been served and 
expired. 

 Offering to continue to provide this storage service following that date, but on 
the basis of full cost recovery.  

 Rolling out this new policy for existing users over a six month period from 24 
July. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION  

 
Applicants who are threatened with homelessness and approach the Council 
are likely to have limited resources to fund storage, and it is in the Council’s 
interests to maximise the use of these resources to find alternative 
accommodation. 
 
The proposals also seek to give existing users ample time to make alternative 
arrangements.  

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
A number of alternative methods for recharging homeless households were 

considered: 

 
The do nothing option:  
 

The cost of the removals and storage service for homeless households in 
2016/17 was £143,225 against a budget of £50,000. The losses incurred by the 
current charging policy and the provision of this service are not sustainable or 
realistic given the budget pressures in the homelessness service. 
 
Fully recharging the cost of storage:  
 

This was rejected because households approaching as homeless have limited 
resources at the time they are made homeless. Consequently, they would be 
unlikely to be able to pay the full costs. The Council is also seeking to enable 
them to use the money they have available to seek alternative accommodation. 
 
The collection rate of the current charges is already very low, so any increased 
charges would not realistically be collected. Increasing costs in this way would 
only be likely to result in the Council accruing additional unrecoverable debts. 
 
Charging differential rates:  
 

Page 390



 

 

Charges could be varied according to how long households stay in temporary 
accommodation, or based on ability to pay.  The former was rejected as the 
highest charges are likely to fall on larger households, who wait longest for 
settled accommodation.  These are generally the least likely to be able to afford 
the storage charges.  The latter was rejected as the additional means testing 
would be disproportionately onerous to administer. 
 
Using Council garages for storage:  
 

This was rejected because the risk of damage to the households’ belongings 
was considered to be too high. Although this option would be relatively low 
cost, it is not considered suitable to fulfil the Council’s statutory duty to protect 
the households’ belongings.   

 
 

92. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
N/A 
 

 
CHAIR:  
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 391



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 392



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET MEMBER 
SIGNING HELD ON TUESDAY, 25TH JULY, 2017, 1.30pm 
 

 

PRESENT: Councillors: Ali Demirci 
 
Stephen Menzies, Ayshe Simsek 
 
98. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Cabinet Member referred to agenda item 1as shown on the agenda in respect of 
filming at this meeting , and participants noted this information. 
 

99. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no items of urgent business to consider. 
 

100. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest put forward. 
 

101. DATA CENTRES  CONTRACT AWARD  
 
This report outlined the strategy for provision of data centres across the three councils 
of Camden, Haringey and Islington and sought approval to complete the procurement 
exercise and award a contract for the provision of data centre services. 

The Shared Digital Joint Committee had approved a report in November 2016 which 
detailed the benefits to sharing data centre provision. The councils agreed to: 
rationalise their current data centres; undertake a procurement exercise to buy data 
centre services from a third party; and, migrate to the new service provider. 

Under Haringey’s Constitution, awards of contracts estimated at £500,000 or above 
are classified as a  key decision. Also under the Council’s Protocol for Key Decisions 
officers are prohibited from taking key decisions. Key decisions may only be taken in 
accordance with Cabinet Procedure Rules. Therefore the Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Resources considered the report and  

RESOLVED 

1. To approve the procurement strategy endorsed by the SD Management Board 

for the procurement of data centre services through a third party supplier via a 

framework agreement; and, 

 
2. To award a contract for the provision of data centre services to Crown Hosting 

Data Centre Limited. 

 

Page 393



 

 

3. That the Chief Digital and Information Officer provide a report to the Shared 

Digital Management Board once the final contract value has been ascertained 

setting out the year on year savings.  

 

4. To note that the five year total contract value will be in the region of £4.5m, 

apportioned across all three councils based on services that each council 

consume and the final contract cost to be confirmed once the actual level of 

provision and data migration has been confirmed. 

Reasons for decision 

The councils each have in-house provision for data centres currently.  There are 
issues with maintaining the hardware for the data centres with hardware coming to 
end of life, and needing replaced. These costs are duplicated across all three councils 
and can be reduced through consolidating data centre provision. 
 
By moving to third party provision of data centres, the councils can expect to see a 
drop in cost of service based on the 2015/16 operating costs of approximately 
£400,000 per year whilst improving business continuity through improved resilience 
and better disaster recovery.  The savings will be realised through a reduction in the 
number of staff required to manage the service, which will be subject to consultation 
and also lower hosting costs as the councils will only pay for services used. 
 
By co-locating services, and moving to a new data centre provider will reduce the 
councils’ environmental impact.  Existing hardware is end of life, consumes more 
power, and emits more heat.  Using new data centre technology the power 
consumption and levels of heat emitted will be reduced. 
 
Additionally, a standard set of facilities across all three councils would enable better 
control of each data centre’s set-up and design.  This is particularly relevant when 
considering the security design, ensuring that the councils can keep up to date with 
new security requirements, building on the recent penetration testing audit’s findings. 
 
Each council has an accommodation strategy to dispose of under utilised sites.  Co-
locating the data centres into a third party’s sites would free up further accommodation 
space, aligning to the existing accommodation strategy. 
 

This programme will directly contribute to the medium term financial strategy by 
delivering savings on the current cost of service. 

It supports better engagement with residents and local communities by improving the 
availability of digital services, with service availability guaranteed to 99.98% leading to 
fewer incidences of loss of service. By improving accessibility to the services available 
from the data centres staff will be better placed to make informed decisions on issues 
raised with them by residents 
 
Alternative options considered 
 

Page 394



 

 

Three options for data centre provision were considered: 
1) do nothing – retain existing data centres; 

2) retain service in-house, upgrade infrastructure; and, 

3) procure through another service provider. 

The table below provides an evaluation of each option: 

Criteria Do 
Nothing 

In-House 
(Upgrade) 

Third party 
provision 

A high level of resilience,  No Yes Yes 

High quality connectivity to major 
network providers with burstable 
bandwidth 

No Yes Yes 

A high level of security, both 
physical and electronic 

No No Yes 

Ability to rapidly commission and 
decommission servers as 
demand dictates 

Yes Partial* Yes 

Ability to rapidly and cost 
effectively commission and 
decommission racks as demand 
dictates 

No No Yes 

Managed service options and 
virtualisation 

No, only 
with an 
outsource 

No, only with 
an outsource 

Managed Service 
and remote 
hands is an 
option via 
separate 
providers 

*Partial the in house data centre option could be scaled but there is an upper 

limit due to power capacity and physical space available within the site. 

Based on the criteria and assumptions noted above it is recommended that the 
council seeks data centre provision through a third party as this option most fully 
meets the councils’ needs. 
 

102. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None 
 

103. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED 
 
 

104. DATA CENTRE CONTRACT AWARD  

Page 395



 

 

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the reminder of the meeting as the items 
contained exempt information, as defined under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

105. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT EXEMPT BUSINESS  
 
As per item 101. 
 

 
CHAIR:  
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 396



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE URGENT DECISIONS HELD 
ON MONDAY, 31ST JULY, 2017, 11am 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillors: Eugene Ayisi 
 
9. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
Noted. 
 

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

11. TO SEEK APPROVAL TO EXTEND THE PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 
IN THE SEVEN SISTERS AREA [ST ANN'S AND TOTTENHAM GREEN WARDS]  
 
Councillor Ayisi considered the report which presented the findings of the Public 
Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) consultation and sought approval of the extension of 
the PSPO to 31st July 2020 or discharge the PSPO as of 31 July 2017. 
 
A report was presented to Cabinet on 23 March 2017, informing Members that the 
PSPO which came into force in the Seven Sisters area in 2016 would have to be 
discharged as of 31 July 2017, unless approval was given to extend the time period.  
Cabinet agreed that the proposal to extend the PSPO should be taken to public 
consultation, and an online questionnaire was commenced and ran for 8 weeks from 
13 April to 7 June 2017.  There were 26 online questionnaires completed, with 92% of 
respondents agreeing to an extension of the PSPO for a further 3 years. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
i) based on the evidence presented to the Cabinet Member on 23 March 2017, 

and the subsequent public consultation, the Public Spaces Protection 
Order due to expire on 31July 2017 be extended for a further 3 years to 31 
July 2020. 

 
Reasons for decision  
 
In accordance with the statutory guidelines the Council consulted with the Chief 
Officer of the police as well as the local policing body for the affected areas, and they 
have confirmed their agreement to the extension of the PSPO. 
 
In addition a public consultation was carried out to ascertain the views of local 
residents, business and people working or visiting the affected area.   
 
The public consultation involved an on line questionnaire with one key question 

Page 397



 

 

Do you agree with the Public Spaces Protection Order being extended? With the 
option to provide details of any objections to the extension or any further comments on 
the extension.  
 
Although the number of questionnaires completed were significantly less than the 
previous consultation; there was however diversity amongst the respondents. The 
outcome demonstrated an overwhelming support for the extension of the PSPO, 
which now together with previously circulated evidence and previous evidence of 
support for the PSPO, forms the basis to approve extending the PSPO to 31st July 
2020. The methodology and outcome of the public consultation can be found at 
Appendix 4. 
 
The PSPO will lapse on 31st July 2017 if not extended.  The extension is necessary to 
prevent occurrence or recurrence of the activities identified in the Order, and/or an 
increase in the frequency or seriousness of those activities after that time. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to extend the PSPO. Given community feedback over many years, the ASB being 
caused, the results of the most recent Consultation (2017) and results of the previous 
consultation in 2016, this option is not considered appropriate.   
 
A discharge of the order on 31 July 2017 would be contrary to the obtained public 
view and would undermine the good work that has taken place to date .  This is a 
historical problem spanning several years, which has only just begun to lessen 
through the presence of the PSPO.  A discharge of the PSPO on31 July 2017 , would 
undoubtedly give rise to the return of the problems within the locality to the levels 
previously experienced, to the detriment of the local community. 
 

 
CHAIR:  
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 398



MINUTES OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 4 JULY 2017 

 

1 

 

Councillors Cllr Weston [Chair], Cllr Berryman, Cllr Stennett, Cllr Hare & Cllr 
Opoku 
 

Apologies 
 
Also 
attending 
 

Cllr Morris 
 
Sarah Alexander (Assistant Director – Safeguarding and Social Care), 
Dominic Porter-Moore (Head of Children in Care & Placements), 
Fiona Smith (Virtual School Head), Margaret Gallagher (Corporate 
Performance Manager), Yvonne Mendes (Interim Service Manager – 
Fostering and Adoption), Denise Gandy (Director of Housing Demand 
– HfH), Annie Walker (Deputy Head of Service - Children in Care & 
Placements), Philip Slawther (Clerk), Anneke Fraser. 
 
 

CPAC337. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Morris. 
 
Apologies were also received from Kim Holt and Lynn Carrington 
 
  
CPAC338. ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MEETING WITH ASPIRE  
 
NOTED: The actions listed in the notes of the meeting with Aspire. 
 

 Update on maintenance courses for care leavers at next meeting with Aspire. 

 Update on 14+ Aspire group around their housing support needs at next 
meeting with Aspire. 

 Report on safeguarding and semi-independent living providers at next CPAC 
meeting. 

 Final version of pledge to be sent to Aspire and Committee Members. Pledge 
to go to Full Council in July. 

 Aspire CSE film to be shown at future Aspire meeting. 
 
 
CPAC339. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
NONE 
 
CPAC340. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
NONE 
 
CPAC341. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18th April 2017 were AGREED.  
 
The Head of Service Children in Care & Placements advised that he would give a 
verbal update on Item 12. The Chair suggested that a broader update on the Care 

Page 399



MINUTES OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 4 JULY 2017 

 

2 

 

Leavers work would incorporate some of this area and requested that Mark Kidson 
attend the next CPAC meeting. (Action: Clerk) 
 
CPAC342. MATTERS ARISING  
 
The Committee NOTED the Corporate Parenting Agenda Plan 2016/17 
 
 
CPAC343. PERFORMANCE 
 
RECEIVED the report on Performance for the Year to the end of May 2017. Report 
included in the agenda pack (pages 11 to 20).   
 
NOTED in response to discussion: 
 

 434 children were in care at the end of the second week in June 2017 or 71 
per 10,000 population including 38 unaccompanied asylum seeker children. 
There had been a gradual increase in the level of children in care in 
comparison to the position at the end of March 2016 but the rate had been 
fairly steady at around 70 in the last few months.  
 

 Provisional data for indicators around stability of placements for looked after 
children remained broadly in line with statistical neighbours and targets albeit 
with a slightly increasing proportion with 3 or more placement moves. In the 
year to March 2017, 10% of children had three or more placement moves, just 
above the statistical neighbour average (7%) but in line with the latest 
published national position (10%). 77.5% of children under 16 who had been 
in care for at least 2.5 years had been in the same placement for at least 2 
years, higher than the national average (68%). 
 

 At the end of May, data showed 94% of children in care for over a month had 
an up to date health assessment, close to the target and continuing the 
positive trend.  
 

 The number of care applications increased by 20% in 2016/17 which reversed 
the downward trend maintained since 2010/2011. The expected impact of the 
improvements from the use of the PLO process and introduction of the Signs 
of Safety model of social worker practice in January 2016 to maintain the 
decrease, had not occurred.  
 

 In the 2017/18 financial year, there were 7 adoptions and 4 special 
guardianship orders to date. This was a big improvement compared with 
2016/17 were there were only 11 adoptions for the whole year. A trend 
towards placement with families, kinship or connected persons as opposed to 
adoption or SGOs was evident.  
 

 Timeliness of children placed for adoption in 2016/17 at an average 560 days 
remained higher than the national threshold (426-day average for 2013-16). In 
the financial year to June 2017, children waited an average of 402 days from 

Page 400



MINUTES OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 4 JULY 2017 

 

3 

 

becoming looked after to being placed for adoption. However, the statistical 
significance of these figures was based on only 7 adoption cases.  

 

 86 or 22.5% of Looked After Children at the end of March 2017 were placed 
20 miles or more from Haringey compared to a 16% target and 19% at the 
end of March 2016. However fewer children were being placed over 20 miles 
away, with good reasons for those placements outside the borough many 
linked to complex care requirements or long term foster care arrangements. 
 

 72% of the current LAC cohort (age 2 and over and in care for over one 
month) had an up to date dental visit as at May 2017.  There were 118 
children without a recorded up to date dental check, 70% of those with 
outstanding visits were between the ages of 13 and 17 years old. 

 

 Performance on Personal Education Plans (PEPs) declined in recent months 
with current data showing that 72% of PEPs for statutory school age children 
had an up to date PEP within the last term.  

 

 In 2016/17, provisional data as at 31 March showed that 69% of care leavers 
were in suitable accommodation down from 74% (for 19-21 year olds) and 
71% (of 17-18 year olds) in 2015/16. This performance was comparatively low 
as nationally 83% of care leavers aged 19-21 were in suitable accommodation 
and 88% of 17-18 year olds (2015/16).  

 

 In response to a clarification around the reasons behind a fall in PEP 
performance, officers advised that there had been a move to fill these in on a 
more regular basis and that this may have undermined the ability of 
respondents to meet the deadline. 
 

 In response to a question, officers advised that payments for SGOs were 
means tested. 
 

 Officers were asked to feedback to the Committee on what the exact definition 
was of a young person being ‘in touch’ with the Council. (Action: Sarah 
Alexander). 
 

 In response to a question around local authority ran children’s care homes, 
the Committee was advised that the divestment of children’s homes was very 
much the national picture and that those that still existed tended to be ran by 
the third sector.  

 
AGREED to note the report. 

 
CPAC343. DENTAL CHECK AUDIT  
 
The Committee noted that this item was deferred to the next meeting.  
 

Page 401



MINUTES OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 4 JULY 2017 

 

4 

 

CPAC344. HOUSING LEGISLATION AND WELFARE CHANGES AFFECTING   
CARE LEAVERS 
 

The Committee received an update from the Director of Housing Demand, HfH on 
recent legislation and welfare reform changes that may impact care leavers.  
 
It was noted that Homelessness Reduction Act was due to be implemented from 1st 
April. The Act included a specific clause that stated that in addition to a local 
connection with the authority whose care the young person was in; they could also 
claim a local connection with the area which they had been placed provided that it 
was a continuous period of 2 years some of which was prior to their 16th birthday. 
The Committee also noted that local housing allowance caps were being brought in 
for the social rented sector from April 2019. It was anticipated that this change would 
have a particular impact on people aged under 35 whose housing benefit payment 
would be limited to the shared room rate (£90.64 in Haringey). These changes would 
only apply after their 22nd birthday.  
 
The Chair enquired about what was known about Haringey’s current cohort and 
sought assurances about what the Council was doing to prepare for these changes. 
Officers advised that a written report would be drafted for CPAC meeting in January 
2018. The Chair requested that someone from the Benefits team also attend the 
January meeting. (Action: Denise Gandy/Clerk).   
 
The Chair queried why the cut off for the introduction of the local housing cap was 
22, given that the care leaver responsibility had been extended to 25. Officers 
agreed to raise the issue at the national care leavers forum in the first instance and 
then potentially write to the relevant Government minister. (Action: Sarah 
Alexander). 
 
CPAC345.  ADOPTION  
 
NOTED the Adoption report introduced by the Assistant Director Safeguarding and 
Social Care, which was included in the agenda pack at pages 27-36. The Committee 
was advised that there was no update on the London regional adoption agency and 
that progress seemed to have stagnated. 
 
Figures for the adoption scorecard were calculated over a three year rolling average 
and it was noted that the scores for 2016/17 were provisional. The average duration 
of adoption proceedings of 560 days compared favourably with statistical neighbours 
and whilst this exceeded the national target, data showed an improving trajectory.  
The Committee requested statistical comparison figures for consortium neighbours. 
Officers advised that the figures should be available once scorecards are published. 
(Action: Yvonne Mendes).  
 
The current number of children with Placement Orders who waiting to be matched 
was 17. The Committee were advised that the were more children on Haringey’s 
books than there were adopters available.  This was largely due to children being 
older, from sibling groups, or had special needs, which didn’t match the identified 
needs of the approved adopters. The number of adopters in Haringey had reduced 
from 11 to six in 2016/17. This was largely due to changes in court judgements and 

Page 402



MINUTES OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 4 JULY 2017 

 

5 

 

the success of placement activities. In response the Council was continuing to seek 
adopters outside of Haringey but other local authorities were facing the same issues. 
 
The Committee sought assurances that officers were satisfied that everything 
possible was being done to improve performance around adoptions. Officers 
responded that a number of staffing changes had helped and that the key aspect 
was speeding up the process and management ensuring that key timescales were 
met.   
 
In response to a question around adoption breakdowns, officers advised that the 
figures were only counted from the day the child was placed to the day the Adoption 
Order was issued and that therefore accurate figures for overdue adoption 
timescales were not available. 
 
The AD Safeguarding and Social Care agreed to email the Chair details of the 
fostering and adoption panels, including the likely level of commitment required and 
any preferred criteria. The Chair agreed to circulate the details to Members. (Action: 
Sarah Alexander/ Chair). 
 
CPAC346. SUPERVISION ORDERS 
 
NOTED the verbal report of the Assistant Director of Safeguarding & Social Care on 
the use of Supervision Orders by the courts in preference to Care orders and the 
impact on safeguarding a child in these circumstances. In Haringey there were 13 
Supervision Orders in place for children from 12 families which represented 3% of 
the total LAC. 
 
CPAC345. FOSTERING 
 
In light of pending changes to the fostering team, the report was deferred to the next 
meeting. (Action: Clerk) 
 

 
CPAC 348.  EXPLORING WHY A HIGHER PROPORTION OF CARE LEAVERS 
NO LONGER REQUIRE SERVICES    
 
The Committee agreed to defer this item to the next meeting. (Action: Clerk).  
 
 
CPAC348. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
CPAC350.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
The Committee expressed its thanks to the Director Children’s Services and the 
Head of Service for Children in Care and Placements for their hard work and wished 
them well in their future endeavours.  
 
Future meetings 

Page 403



MINUTES OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY 4 JULY 2017 

 

6 

 

 
NOTED the following provisional dates: 
 
19th October 2017 
16th January 2018 
20th March 2018 
 
Meetings are scheduled to start at 6.30pm. 
 
The meeting ended at 20:30 hours. 
 
 
Cllr Elin Weston  
Chair 
 
 
 

Page 404



 

Page 1 of 3  

Report for:  Cabinet 12 September 2017 
 
Item number: 14 
 
Title: Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Zina Etheridge, Interim Chief Executive 
    
   Bernie Ryan AD Corporate Governance 
 
Lead Officer: Ayshe Simsek 
 
Ward(s) affected: Non applicable 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Information 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by 
Directors. 
 
The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under 
delegated powers. Significant actions (decisions involving expenditure of more 
than £100,000) taken during the same period are also detailed. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 

 
           Not applicable 
 
3. Recommendations  

 

That the report be noted. 

4. Reasons for decision  
 

Part Three, Section E of the Constitution – Responsibility for Functions, 
Scheme of Delegations to Officers - contains an obligation on officers to keep 
Members properly informed of activity arising within the scope of these 
delegations, and to ensure a proper record of such activity is kept and available 
to Members and the public in accordance with legislation. Therefore, each 
Director must ensure that there is a system in place within his/her business unit 
which records any decisions made under delegated powers.  
 
Paragraph 3.03  of the scheme requires that Regular reports (monthly or as 
near as possible) shall be presented to the Cabinet Meeting, in the case of 
executive functions, and to the responsible Member body, in the case of non 
executive functions, recording the number and type of all decisions taken under 
officers’ delegated powers. Decisions of particular significance shall be reported 
individually.  

Page 405 Agenda Item 14



 

Page 2 of 3  

Paragraph 3.04 of the scheme goes on to state that a decision of “particular 
significance”, to be reported individually by officers, shall mean a matter not 
within the scope of a decision previously agreed at Member level which falls 
within one or both of the following: 
 

(a) It is a spending or saving of £100,000 or more, or 
(b) It is significant or sensitive for any other reason and the Director and 

Cabinet Member have agreed to report it. 
 

5. Alternative options considered 
 
Not applicable 

 
6. Background information 

 
To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by 
Directors. 

 
The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under 
delegated powers. Significant actions) decisions involving expenditure of more 
than £100,000) taken during the same period are also detailed. 

 
Officer Delegated decisions are published on the following web 
pagehttp://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1 
 

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 
Apart from being a constitutional requirement, the recording and publishing of 
executive  and non executive officer delegated decisions is in line with the 
Council’s transparency agenda. 
 

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 

Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations. 

9. Use of Appendices 
 
The appendices to the report set out by number and type decisions taken by 
Directors under delegated powers. Significant actions  
(Decisions involving expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the same 
period are also detailed. 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

Background Papers 
 
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report; 

 
Delegated Decisions and Significant Action Forms 

Those marked with  contain exempt information and are not available for 
public inspection. 

Page 406

http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1


 

Page 3 of 3  

 
The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, 
Wood Green, London N22 8HQ. 

 
           To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Ayshe Simsek 

on 020 8489 2929. 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 407



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 409



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 411



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Document is exempt

Page 417 Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 425
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 545
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 591
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 617
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 689
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 691
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 20/07/2017 Cabinet
	Minutes


	9 Budget Monitoring
	10 High Road West Regeneration Scheme- selection of a development partner and next steps
	Appendix 1 - Site Plan
	Appendix 5- LBH Owned properties_HRA and GF
	Appendix 6- HRW Consultation feedback report
	Appendix 7- Equalities Impact Assessment
	Appendix 8 - Grant Thornton independent procurement review letter
	Appendix 9- Consultation and Engagement Log
	Appendix 13 -Risk Register_18.05

	11 500 White Hart Lane - Acquisition of Properties
	Appendix 1- 500 WHL - Final S106
	appendix 2 WHL

	12 Amendments to the Terms of Reference for the Shared ICT and Digital Joint Committee
	170714_SD Joint Committee_TOR_19June17_FINAL_Appendix A

	13 Minutes of Other Bodies
	Minutes
	Minutes , 26/06/2017 Cabinet Member Signing
	Minutes Public Pack, 27/06/2017 Cabinet Member Signing
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 30/06/2017 Cabinet Member Signing
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 04/07/2017 Cabinet Member Signing
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 05/07/2017 Cabinet Member Signing
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 06/07/2017 Cabinet Member Signing
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 11/07/2017 Cabinet Member Signing
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 25/07/2017 Cabinet Member Signing
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 31/07/2017 Urgent Decisions
	Minutes

	CPAC Minutes  4th July  2017

	14 Significant and Delegated Actions
	Public Health  items
	Significant and Delegated Decisions -Adults
	PRD

	17 High Road West Regeneration Scheme- selection of a development partner and next steps
	Appendix 2 - EXEMPT Draft Development Agreement
	Appendix 3 - EXEMPT- Draft CPOIA
	Appendix 4 - EXEMPT -DRAFT Lease
	Appendix 10- EXEMPT ISFT
	Appendix 11- EXEMPT Bidders' Scores
	Appendix 12- EXEMPT- HRW Best Consideration Advice


